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-

Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)  |RELEASED IN PART TO CERTAIN PARTIES |

55 J
From: Germain, Ellen J (USUN)
Sent: Thursday, February 17, 2011 7:24 PM
To: Sutphin, Paul R; Baily, Jess L; Naranjo, Brian R
Ce: Simonaff, Mark A (USUN)
Subject: FW: Request for a meeting: Ahmet Dogan, father of US citizen Furkap Dogan, killed in
international waters in May 2010 aboard the Mavi Marmara aTw
Attachments: Dogan Letter and Enclosures to UN Liaison Kerry.pdf
AttachmentsCiassification:
UNCLASSIFIED
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

Paul, Jess, Brian,

The father of the Turkish-American citizen killed in the Gaza flotilla incident will be in NY and wan
from USUN. His lawyer, in the attached letter, says that Embassy Ankara refused to meet with h

ts to meet with someone
(there’s an exchange

of letters with Embassy Ankara in the atlached package). He also apparently wants to meet withjsomeone from the

Department.

Thanks very muen,
Ellen

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Sent: Thursday, February 17, 2011 4:05 PM
To: Germain, Ellen J (USUN)

Subject: FW: Reguest for a meeting: Ahmet Dogan, father of US citizen Furkan Dogan, killed in
May 2010 aboard the Mavi Marmara

Ellen,

Here is the flotilla related meeting request.

international waters in

Many thanks.
Best regards,
Mark

Mark A. Simonoff

Acting Legal Adviser

U.S. Mission to the United Nations

799 United Nations Plaza

New York, NY 10017

(212)415-4220 [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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From: Kerry, Peggy

Sent: Thursday, February 17, 2011 8:20 AM

To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Subject: FW: Request for a meeting: Ahmet Dogan, father of US citizen Furkan Dogan, killed in
May 2010 aboard the Mavi Marmara

Thanks,
Peggy

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

nternational waters in

From: Katherine Gallagher [mailto:KGallagher@ccrjustice.org]
Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 2011 6:38 PM

To: Kerry, Peggy

Subject: Request for a meeting: Ahmet Dogan, father of US citizen Furkan Dogan, killed in inter\natianal waters in May

2010 aboard the Mavi Marmara

Dear Ms Kerry,

Please find attached a letter sent on behalf of Ahmet Dogan, the father of Furkan Dogan,

the 19-year old U.S.

citizen killed in May 2010 in international waters, requesting a meeting with you next wg

ek. Mr. Dogan will

be travelling to the United States next week for the purpose of meeting with U.S. officials to discuss his
son’s killing, aud efforts to seek justice and accountability for Furkan’s death. He is available to meet

with you in New York on Thursday, February 24th.

As I note in the attached letters, Mr. Dogan’s efforts to secure & meeting with representatives of the U.S.
Embassy in Ankara, Turkey were unsuccessful, which is why he is travelling to Washington, D.C. to meet with
officials here. Mr. Dogan is also seeking meetings in Washington, D.C. at the State Department and

Department of Justice.
Thank you for your assistance and I look forward to hearing from you.
Sincerely,

Katherine Gallagher
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RELEASED IN PART B5|

“Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Balton, David A (OES)

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 10:19 AM

To: Cook, Nerissa J; Holt, Victoria K; Desjardins, Marc L

Cec: Kim, Elizabeth AB (QES); Clune, Daniel A; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN
Subject: RE: UNGA Oceans Resolution

Categories: Working

Yes. I'll stop by your office at 4:15.

Elizabeth — please come as well.

From: Cook, Nerissa J

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 10:17 AM

To: Balton, David A (QES); Holt, Victaria K; Desjardins, Marc L

Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Clune, Daniel A; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
Subject: RE: UNGA Oceans Resolution

Dave: | have nonstop meetings until 4:15. Any possibility we cauld meet then? Nerissa

SBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED
From: Balton, David A (OES)

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 9:32 AM

To: Holt, Victoria K; Cook, Nerissa J; Desjardins, Marc L

Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Clune, Daniel A; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
Subject: RE: UNGA Oceans Resolution

Tori, Nerissa and Marc — I'm available this afternoon to chat any time 2-4. I'd be
the 10 Front Office if that would make it easier.

The slightly longer version of what is happening is this:

happy to swing by

Each year, the UNGA adopts a resolution on oceans and law of the sea. It's one of the longest
UNGA resolutions every year. An informal negotiating group meets for two weeks each fall to
hammer it out. OES sends two people typically; other agencies participate as wgll. The US has

always voted for the resolution; indeed, we usually co-sponsor.

This year, Turkey proposed a paragraph using language from a recent Security Council resolution on
the flotilla incident. The US and others pushed back, saying that even though we agreed to similar
language in the SC, we did not believe it was appropriate to include in this UNGA resolution. Turkey

withdrew the proposal.

But there is at least a possibility that, when the UNGA votes on the resolution ng

will reintroduce it then. OES is trying ta clear an instruction cable to USUN. Thé

xt Monday, Turkey
draft cable says

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior _Iievie_\qrgﬁ
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N

Dave

PS for Marc - it's nice to be back in touch with you.

From: Holt, Victoria K
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 10:42 PM

To: Balton, David A (OES); Cook, Nerissa J; Desjardins, Marc L

Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Clune, Daniel A
Subject: RE: UNGA Oceans Resolution

David,

Thanks for your message. I'm copying colleague DAS Nerissa Cook, who has more insight than |
handle the Security Council and security issues. Let us know a bit more so we can work with yo

Also copying Marc Desjardins who will know more about the flotilla angle.

Tomorrow afternoon is better than the a.m.
Thanks
Tori

Victoria K. Holt

Deputy Assistant Secretary

Bureau of International Organization Affairs
US State Department

2201 C Street, NW

Washington, DC 20520-6319

tel: 202.647.9604 / fax: 202.736.4116

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

into OQES issues, while |

W

From: Balton, David A (OES)

Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 3:32 PM
To: Holt, Victoria K

Ce: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Clune, Daniel A
Subject: UNGA Oceans Resolution
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]

Victoria,

Do you have a few minutes tomorrow (Tues) morning to chat about a UNGA resolution on oceans
and law of the sea? As you may have heard, there is a small chance that Turkey|will seek to amend
the resolution on the floor of the UNGA next week to introduce language on the fiptilia incident. At
least OES, 10 and NEA should come to agreement on how to handle that eventuflity. I'd like to
discuss this with you briefly.

Many thanks,
David Balton

DAS for Oceans and Fisheries
OES

3

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307593 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004603




StateDept004604



— UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307590 Date: 05/03/2013 s
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RELEASED IN PART BS5|

Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Jacobson, Linda
Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 3:36 PM
To: Daley, John D; Kim, John J (Kimm); Johnson, Karen K; Joyce, Anne
Ce: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Townley, Stephen G; Sghwartz, Jonathan B;
Perina, Alexandra H
Subject: RE: flofilla incident — Comoros-ilagged vessel ?
Categories: Working
=7 =

From: Daley, John D
Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 3:31 PM
To: Kim, John J (Kimm); Johnson, Karen K; Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne

Cc: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Townley, Stephen G; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H

Subject: flotilla incident -- Comoros-flagged vessel ?
John/Karen -

The press is reporting today that lawyers for the families of those killed by Israeli forces in conne

rtion with the Flotilla

incident this spring have sent a letter to the ICC Prosecutor urging him to take actic_u;;.|

Thanks.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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RELEASED IN PART BS|
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 3:43 PM

To: Daley, John D; Kim, John J (Kimm); Johnson, Karen K; Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne

Cc: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Townley, Stephen G; Perina, Alexandra H;
Gorove, Katherine M; Banos, Mariano H :

Subject: RE: flotilla incident -- Comoros-flagged vesse! ?

Categories: Working

jon

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
Subject: flotilla incident — Comoros-flagged vessel ?

John/Karen -

The press is reporting today that lawyers for the families of those killed by Israeli forces in connéction with the Flotilla
incident this spring have sent a letter to the ICC Prosecutor urging him to take action. l

Thanks.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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RELEASED IN PART B5|

Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN)

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2010 6:25 PM

To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Ce: Swiney, Gabriel; Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)
Subject: RE: Kuwait attack on Israel in Sixth Commitiee Rule of Law Debate
Categories: Working

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2010 5:31 PM

To: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN)

Cc: Swiney, Gabriel; Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)
Subject: Kuwait attack on Israel in Sixth Committee Rule of Law Debate

Brooke,

During the Sixth Committee Rule of Law debate this afternoon, Kuwait just made an extensive statement critical of
Israel, calling the attack an the Turkish flotilla illegal, calling for return of Golan Heights to Syria, among other things.
Israel plans to exercise its right of reply.

Best regards,
Mark

Mark A. Simonoff

Acting Legal Adviser

U.S. Mission to the United Nations
799 United Nations Plaza

New York, NY 10017
(212)415-4220

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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RELEASED IN PART B5|

Delaurentis, Jeffrey

|
From: McLeod, Mary E (USUN) |
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:02 PM
To: Germain, Ellen J (USUN)
o Del aurentis, Jeffrey
Subject: RE: TOR for UN investigation
Categories: Working ‘
. . B l
And yet more. | o 1 B5
A
I

From: MclLeod, Mary E (USUN) f
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 7:41 PM

MO T N £l

Terms of Reference

The Commission’s tasks are:

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] |
i

l
‘ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307519 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004612



B UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307507 Date: 05/03/2013 —

~ UN CONFIDENTIAL

L ) - TERMS OF REFERENC

e il of the
== =" ‘The Secretarv-Ganaral s Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May2010 Flotilla lncldenl

Establishment of pane ]

1. In the light of the Statement of the President of the Security Council dated 1June
2010 (3/PRST/2010/9), the Secretary-General has established a panel of' inguiry on
the incident that occurred on 31 May 2010 in intemational waters, in whlch an Israeli|
military oparai:on was conducted against a convoy sailing to Gaza and which
resulted in the death of.nine cwfl:ans |

I
Taske EELEASED IN PART |
2 The panel' E j

" (a) wﬂl receive and review Interim and final reports of national investugatq:ons into the
incident; . ’

(b) may request such clarifications and information as it may require from relevant
national authorities. - . = Il

' ' r

3. In the light of the information so gathered, the panel will:
(a) examine and identify-the_facts, circumstances and context of the incident; and
. . . . r
(b) consider and suggest ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future,

4. The panel will prepare a report including its fgfjn%s. conclusauns and |
recommendations and submit it to the Secretary-General. =

|

|

Composition of the panel

' [ !
5. The panel, to be appointed by the Secretary General, will be composed of a Chair, a
Vice-Chair and one member each from Israel and Turkey, with recogngd and
relevant axpemse ‘ i

Time Frame = ;
|

6. The panel will hold its first meeting on 10 August 2010 at United Nahons
Headquarters in New York. It will hold such further meetings as requ:red in order to
submit a preliminary repart within three months. The panel will submit its final report
to the Secretary-General no later than three months after submission of the
preliminary report. This timeline may be adjusted by the Secretary-General
depending on the progress of the panel's work. ‘

Location

7. The panel will be based at United Nations Headquarters in New York.

Secretariat

|
l
|
|
_ l
UN CONFIDENTIAL If
|

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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ST UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307507 Date: 05/03/2013 —— -
I
& .. UNCONFIDENTIAL

J

|

[

: : , l
8. The UN Secrstariat will provide secretariat services for the panel. fl
J

|

|

|

Dated: XX XXX 2010 s Vijay Nambiar
Chef de Cabinet

Executive Office of the Secretaq-General

Place: New York
. United Nations

f
|
|
|
|

|

|
UN CONFIDENTIAL | 2
' |
|
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e | B5
RELEASED IN PART
BS .
: UN CONFIDENTIAL
5 METHOD OF WORK 1 "
of the ;

Secretary General's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incident
3 |

]
'
I

: I
1. The pansl will receive and review copies of the national investigations into, the
incident from Israel and Turkey. |

s i)
2. Where the panel considers that it requires further information, clarifications or
meetings from Israel and/or Turkey, it will make such request to the points of contact

designated by those States. -

. ¥ |
3. Where the panel considers it necessary to obtain information from other gﬂeﬁed
States, it may request such information through appropriate diplomatic ch‘annels.

4. The panel will conduct its work in a prompt, impartial, credible and transpé:er; T
manner, in conformity with international standards. ‘ {3

5. The report and any q lusions and recommendations it may caniain are to
be agreed by consensus. re the members of the panel are unable tq reach .
agreement on any element of the report or its findings, conclusions or
recommendations, the Chair and Vice-Chair will use their best efforts to ity fo secure
consensus amorng the members of the panel regarding that elem% _—
caniclusion or recommendation. Where, despite the best efforts of the Cita L i

air, it is not possible ’t_g__a\chieve‘m{aansus among the members 6t the panel E

on a particular element or finding, c% or recommendation, the Chair and
Vice-Chair will agree on any such ele , finding, conclusion or recomrTnendation in

the report. 3 ]

5. The UN Secretariat wiil provide secretariat services to the panel and will larrange for
the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security support, including
transportation and accommodation. :

6. The Archives and Records Management Section will provide records—ma,{nagement-
suppor to the panel. [

' ; - ; |

7.. The report of the panel shall be designated unclassified. The panelma; ; attach
confidential annexes fo its report. 1 '

% |
8. The panel shall take the necessary steps to ensure that ail documents and materials
provided to it on the understanding of confidentiality are marked ‘third party
confidential” and that all necessary measures are taken to safeguard thFir
confidentiality. _
: |

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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|
|
) ‘ J
RELEASED IN PART : ' : : ]
|'

UN CONEIDENTIAL %y
BS5 , ‘ B5
TERMS OF REFERENCE
of the

The Secretary—General's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Fiotilla Inc:dent
—_— |

Establishment of panel |

1. Inthe light of the Statement of the President of the Security Council dated ne
| 2010 (S/PRST/2010/9), the Secretary-General has established a paneKef ihquingbn
the incident that occured on 37 May 2010 in international waterd involvingian Israeli

[mjjrtarv_ ooeration aaainstla convoy sailina fo

Tasks %
2 The panel: ‘ |

{a) will receive and review interim and final reports of national mvesttgat:on's into the

incident; : L ; "

(b) may reguest such clarifications and information as it may require from rlefevant

national authont:es
f

3. Inthe light of the information so gathered the panel will: : o

- (a). examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incide}‘rt: and

(b) consider and recommend ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future.

|
4. The panel will prepare a report mcludmg its f' ndings and recommendatmns and
i e
- submit it to the Secretary- General 1-

Composition of the @nel ' - ' :

5, The pane} to be appointed by the Secretary General, will be composed of a Chalir, a
_Vice-Chair and one member each from Israei and Turkey, with recognized and
“relevant expertise. [

Time Frame . !

6. The panel will hold its first meeting on 10 August 2010 at United Nations
Headquarters in New York. [t will hold such further meetings as required it orderto
submit a progress report within three months. The panel will submit its final report o
the Secretary-General no later than three months after submission of the progress
report, This timeline may be adjusted by the Secretary-General depending on the”
progress of the panel's work. !

Location
7. The panel will be based at United Nations Headquarters in New York,

Secretariat

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
UN CONFIDENTIAL

|
f
|
?
|
J
|
|
I

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307500 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004616




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Deﬁartment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307500 Date: 05/03/2013 =—

|
|
|

Mo ‘
Ry ' s 4
UN CONFIDENTIAL

I
I
A : I
8. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat services for the panel. !
!
I
i

Dated: XX XXXX 2010 Vijay Nambiar
: ' Chef de Cabinet :
Place: New York , Executive Office of the Secratary-Ger}zeraI

United Nations . | g

UN CONFIDENTIAL
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UN CONFIDENTIAL

= " TERMS OF REFERENCE P;ELEASED IN PART R T
/f .B"-' I ) L % J
The Secretary-General's Pan{[ of ln$,n the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incident  _ __

_ Establishment of panel

\

1. Inthe fight of the Statement of tha President of the Securi y Council dated 1 June
2010 (S/PRST/2010/9), the Secretary-General-has gstablished a panel of s?qu:ry on
the incident that occurred on 31 May 2019‘5 intemational waters "mvohﬂng a convey

sailing to Gaza. 4 ‘ |
Tasks- H "%

2 The panel:
|

(a) will receive and review interim and final reports of nattonal mvestnga‘uoqs into the
incident;
B . i

(b) may request such clarifications and mformahon as it may require from felevant
national authorities. |
r
3. Inthe light of the information so gathered the pane! will:

(a) examine and’ |denlrry the facts, circumstances and context of the mcndeL-nt, and
' {b) consider and recommend ways of avoiding similar mcndents in the future .

- 4, The pane] will prepare a report including its findings and recommendatmns and
submit it to the Secretary~General

Composition of the gane] ‘ e " 1

5. The panel, to be appointed by the Secretary General, will be composed ofla Chair, 2
Vice-Chair and one member each from Israel and Turkey, with recognized,and
relevant expertise. |

Time Frame - .

6. The panel will hold its first meeting on 10 Aigust 2010 at United Nations 1
Headquarters in New York. it will hold such further meet;ngs at United Nations
Headguarters in. New York as required. The panel will submit a progress feport
within three months and thereafier as necessary. The panel will strive to submit its
final report to the Secretary-General within six months taking inte account the

- progress of the national investigations. This timeline may be adjusted by the
Secretary-General depend:ng on the progress of the panel's work.

Location ' ' |

7. The panel will be based at United Nations Headquarters in New York. |

Secretariat

|
|
UN CONFIDENTIAL l 1

[REVIFW ALITHORITY: Sharon Ahmad. Seninr Reviewar
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Dot No. 005307499 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004618



= CLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. 05307499 Date: 05/03/2013

¥ ; UN CONFIDENTIAL .

I
|
|
8. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat services for the panel. |
|
[
|

Dated: XX XXXX 2010 - Vijay Nambiar
: ' Chef de Cabinet |
Executive Office of the Secretary-Ger,eral

Place: New York - :
United Nations

|
i
|
1
|
|
%]
|
|
|
i
i
:

|
]
|
|
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UN CONFIDENTIAL |
IRELEASED IN PART‘
B5

METHOD OE WORK -

el ofOF\ ; '
Secretary General's Pa@/thg 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incigent

-~ e

1. The panel will receive and review copies of the national investigations into me
incident from Israel and Turkey.

|
2. Where the panel con.?.ldars that it requires further information, clarifications|or
meetings frem Israel and/or Turkey, it will make such request to the pdints pf cnntact
desrgnated by those States.

I
‘ 3 Where the panel considers it necessary to obtain mformat:on from other affected
\  States, itmay request such information through appmpnate diplomatic channels. j

4. The panel will condugt its work in a prompt, impartial, credible and lranspa‘};::
manner, in conformity with international standards.

5. The panel is to operate by consensus and the findings of the report and any
_ recommendations it may contain are fo be agreed by consensus. Where 31
v members of the panel are unable to reach agreement on a procedural i issue oron
any finding or recommendation, the Chair and Vice-Chair will use their best efforts to
fry to secure consensus among the members of the panel on that procedural issue,
finding or recommendation. Where, despite the best efforts of the Chair and Vice-
Chair, it is not possible to achieve consensus among the members of the panel on a
particular procedural issue, finding or recommendation, the Chair and Vicg-Chair will
agree on that procedural issue, finding or recommendation. -
I
6. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat sérvices to the panel and will ap‘ange for
the provision of necessary administrative, loglstlc and secunty support, including
transportation and accommodation. j |

7. The Archives and Records Management Section will.provide records-management
support to the panel. ; i

‘8. The report of the pane! shall be designated unclassrﬁed The panel may éltach
confidential annexes to its report.- |

8. The panel shall take the necessary steps to ensure that all documents and maierials
provided to it on the understanding of confidentiality are marked “third parFy
confidential” and that all necessary measures are taken to safeguard their
confidentiality. I

|
l
|

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Q: Flotillas of vessels sponsored by a variety of groups, including some like
IHH with terrorist links, continue to try to break Israel’s security blockade of
Gaza. We all remember the tragic events with the Mavi Marmara last May.
What is your assessment of the current efforts to break the blockade set for
the anniversary of these events? What is the United States doing to prevent
another tragedy?

A: We are closely monitoring the planned Mavi Marmara incident “anniversary
flotilla.” We currently understand that the next Gaza flotilla is being organized by
several different groups, including IHH, the Gaza Freedom Flotilla, U.S. Ship to
Gaza, and others. They could be organizing around 15 or more ships to sail from
various ports ort May 15 with plans to rendezvous in the Mediterranean and then
arrive in Gaza around May 30.

We are currently reviewing our options to avoid another deadly confrontation like
the one last May. We will be urging all flotilla participants to utilize existing
mechanisms to deliver goods to Gaza, partner countries to take any necessary
measures to ensure the safety of their citizens, and urging all parties to avoid
violence at all costs.

As we have made clear in the past, mechanisms exist for the transfer of
humanitarian assistance to Gaza. These non-provocative and non-confrontational
mechanisms should be the ones used for the benefit of all those in Gaza. Direct
delivery by sea is neither appropriate nor responsible, and certainly not effective,
under the circumstances.

All cargo bound for Gaza, including those delivered by ship, need to be inspected
to protect Isracl’s security from illegal arms smuggling to terrorist groups.
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Approved: NEA A/S Feltman
Cleared: = NEA/FO - RSchlicher
NEA/FO — JWalles
NEA/IPA — PSutphin
NEA/IPA — ]Buzbee
D(8)— DSchrepel
D(N) — SCarl-Yoder
P —ECatalano
8/P — AMiller
H - JEpping
S/SEMEP — JReed/SKhouryKincannon/ASachar
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 4:00 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Cleveland, Sarah H
Subject: Re: L Note Due to Executive Secretary Today

That would be great.

From: Schwarlz, Jonathan B

To: Townley, Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent: Fri Jul 23 15:57:39 2010

Subject: RE: L Note Due to Executive Secretary Today

Stephen —1 sent a message to Harold last night suggesting this be deferred but have not heard back. Should I call
someone in 5/S to explain the situation?

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 3:56 PM

Tao: Cleveland, Sarah H; Schwartz, Jonathan B
Subject: Fw: L Note Due to Executive Secretary Today
Importance: High

Sorry to ask, butdo we know if Harold managed to get this postponed until next week?

From: Mills, Pamela G

To: Townley, Stephen G; Williams, Veronica

Cc: S_SpecialAssistants

Sent: Fri Jul 23 15:54:20 2010

Subject: L Note Due to Executive Secretary Today

Dear L Colleagues,

We have not been able to reach you on the phone today, and have not seen any response from you on the high side to
the list of paper due. S staff is looking to receive the L note on the flotilla today.

Piease call or e-mail the Line to advise us of the paper’s status.
Best wishes,

Pamela

Pamela G. Mills
Executive Secretariat
ext. 7-8542

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
d _
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Sir— s SN

(5) Limitation of HRC action on Israel. |

Attachment:

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
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Approved: 10/FO: EBrimmer
DRL/FO: MPosner
L/FO: HKoh

Drafted:  [O/HR: GPatel, ext. 73902 and cell; (301) 509-9571

Cleared:

D(8): MAshraf (OK — provisional)
D(L): SCarlYoder (OK)

P: MCarpenter (OK)

S/P: CPowell (OK)

G: ERichardson (OK)

10/FO: GAnderson

10/FO: SNossel

IO/HR: JLapenn (OK)

IO/HR: MHonigstein (OK)
IO/MPR: LSpratt (OK)
DRL/MLGA: SChase (OK)
L/HRR: EAswad/EWoodhouse € wants FO approval
L:RHarris (OK)

NEA/IPA: JDoutrich (OK)
AF/RSA: LDees (OK)

WHA/PPC: PReilly (OK)

S/GWI: SKotok (OK)

USUN/W: EBarks-Ruggles (OK)
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[RELEASED IN PART BS|

Luther, Lorre M

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2010 4:12 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M

Ce: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: RE: flotilla memo

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2010 3:47 PM
To: Townley, Stephen G

Cc: Schwarlz, Jonathan B

Subject: RE: flotilla memo

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2010 3:36 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M

Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: RE: flotilla memo

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2010 1:51 PM
To: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: flotilla memo

‘Steve,l = = __H

| Thanks, Kate

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 8:01 PM

Tao: Koh, Harold Hongju

Cc: Cleveland, Sarah H; Townley, Stephen G; Gorove, Katherine M
Subject: LEGAL-#258419-v2-Flotilla_to_S_(2).docx

Harold — Kate has updated this draft note on the flotifla to reflect what she learned during recent briefings by the
T e = T 1 h P : b ]

lon REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

1
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From: Pan, Michael (USUN)

Sent: Thursday, June 17, 2010 4:13 PM

To: Anderson, Brooke D {(USUN); Pelofsky, Eric J; Finerty, Tressa R (USUN)
Subject: FW: Pascoe press remarks

Press Conference

Opening Remarks by 8, Lynn Pascoe

United Nations Under-Secretary-General for Political Affairs
Colombo, 17 June 2010
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 2:00 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Lindz; Dalan, JoAnn

Cc: Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Mariano H; Baumert, Kevin A; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert
K

Subject: RE: LEGAL-#256164-v1-Flotilla_Outline.DOC

Also, has anyone reviewed what apparently came out today

(http://www.nytimes.com/2010/07/13/world/middleeast/13flotilla.html? r=18&hp)?

Thanks, Stephen

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 1:56 PM

Tao: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Mariano H; Baumert, Kevin A; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K
Subject: RE: LEGAL-#256164-v1-Flotilla_Outline.DOC

All, Have there been any further comments on this? I'd like to give a version of the paper to HHK avernight to think
about before our meeting with him tomorrow. Thanks, Stephen

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Thursday, July 01, 2010 3:01 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Baumert, Kevin A; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K
Subject: LEGAL-#256164-v1-Flotilla_Outline,DOC

Linda/JoAnn — as | foolishly promised Steve Pomper, here is a quick strawman outline for the "10 pager” that Harold is
thinking of preparing for S. If you'd like to take ownership of this, get something to Steve during his one window
tomorrow to review, and elicit reactions from the broader group (including those who are out but will be back next
week like Kate Gorove and Alexandra Perina), I'd be grateful. (I see that Steve Townley and Naveed are conspiring for a
Thursday meeting with Harold, so that should probably be our target to revise this for discussion purposes.) Thanks,
Jon.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Luther, Lorre M

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:10 PM

To: Gorove, Katherine M; Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Townley,
Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda

Subject: RE: LEGAL+#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note.docx

Attachments: LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note (3).docx

Some brief comments.

Mariano

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:54 PM
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Banos, Mariano H; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Townley, Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H
Subject: RE: LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note.docx

Here is latest version, incarporating L/AN and my edits, for everyone’s editing/comments.

Thanks, Kate

From: Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:01 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Gorove, Katherine M; Banos, Mariano H; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Townley,
Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H

Cc: Jacobson, Linda

Subject: RE: LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note.docx

A few comments/clarifications noted. This looks good to me.

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2010 7:03 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M; Dolan, JoAnn; Banos, Mariano H; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Townley, Stephen
G; Cleveland, Sarah H

Cc: Jacobson, Linda

Subject: LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note.docx

| understand from Stephen that “the line” is agitating for Harold’s memo on the flotilla, though there may not be an
objective reason for this and Harold may decide to let the Secretary first enjoy the wedding. But just in case, | have
drawn on some helpful drafting by Linda and Kate to put together an initial strawman. It would be much appreciated if
the relevant experts could offer comments tomorrow {Thursday) on the sections that pertain to them —Kate would be in
the best position to collate them to generate a further draft for Harold's review in the event he wants to move
something on Friday.

Thanks.

Jonl

[I_R_E_ViEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Luther, Lorre M

IRELEASED IN FULL

From:
Sent:
To:

Ce:
Subject:
Attachments:

Gorove, Katherine M

Thursday, July 22, 2010 6:00 PM

Perina, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariano H; Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley,
Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Sharon, Chelsea C
Johnson, Clifton M

RE: LEGAL-#258297-v1-Fiotilla_Note.docx

LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note, revs. accpeted.docx; LEGAL-#258297-v1-Flotilla_Note (3)
(2).docx

lon, Attached is a clean version and a version with tracked changes, for you to review and forward to Harold for his
review. A few others may chime inlater. Thanks, Kate

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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[RELEASED IN PART B5,B§

Luther, Lorre M

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 3:15 PM

To: Schwartz_.lonath

Subject: RE:| meeting B6

Seems quite reasonable. | suggest flagging this for him tonight when you send the draft and he can raise with Jake/Joe
tomorrow morning. | think if he makes the suggestion, we can get this pushed back further.

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 3:09 PM
To: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: FW - meeting

What do you think?

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:15 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: RE:| meeting

OK, I'll send you draft as it is at end of day. Here is DRAFT EMAIL FOR HAROLD from you.

N = ' e B5
From: Schwarlz, Jonathan B
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 1:23 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M
Subject: RE:{ _Imeeting B6

Perhaps we could give Harold a draft tonight with a note on why he may want to wait and why there is no urgency?

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:57 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B = ) ) s

Subject:| meeting  |REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
T [Reviewer
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From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:51 PM

To: Gorove, Katherine M; Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Townley, Stephen

G; Banos, Mariano H

Subject: FW: Briefingwith |- 7/26, 10:30 AM B6

| : i _ BS

{ ot

From: Tsou, Leslie M

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:46 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: FW: Briefing with, -7/26, 10:30 AM

You can ask him about the[_ . B5

From: Saltzman, Amy ]

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:45 PM

To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Harris, Robert K; Cassidy, Joseph P; Banos, Mariano H; Knopf, Payton L; Bass, Warren;

Walles, Jacob; Enav, Cari R; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Doutrich, Jack T; Tsou, Leslie M; Sicade, Lynn M
(DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN);
Schedlbauer, Amy W; Andris, Matthew R; Gorove, Katherine M; Morrison, Andrew L

Cc: Ifill, Donna G (DRL); Weaver, Patricia A

Subject: Briefing with| - 7/26, 10:30 AM B6

= |will be at DOS to brief

interested parties on Monday, July 26 at 10:30 AM. This is intended to be a working level meeting, but | understand that
there may be broader interest in attending after today’s briefing with| | | have reserved the |0/FO
conference room, 6323. If joining by phone, you may call‘ ’ 3 Please let me know if you plan to B6
attend.

Thanks,
Amy

Amy Saltzman
Bureau for International Organizations (10)

Saltzma tate.gov
(202) 647-9431

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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RELEASED IN PART B3|

Luther, Lorre M

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:32 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Thessin, James H; Pomper, Stephen E;
Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; McLeod,
Mary (USUN)

Subject: RE: new version of options paper

Attachments: LEGAL-#239056-v1-flctilla_investigation_options.doc

A few edits and comments on the old version of the investigations paper.

From: Jacobson, Linda
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:24 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Thessin, James H; Pomper, Stephen E; Gorove, Katherine M; Eichensehr, Kristen
E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Mcleod, Mary (USUN)

Subject: new version of options paper

This is Jim’s recrdered paper, with Steve T's comments and includes info that JoAnn gave me 0n|_ . l B5
[ - = |JoAnn, could you please check the accuracy. F've also included

another sentence on East Timor in the UN led investigation section. Steve, pls let me know whether you will now take
this over, Thanks, Linda

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Luther, Lorre M [RELEASED IN PART |

2 ]

From: _Bolan, JoAnn
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:35 PM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Townley, Stephen G; Thessin, James H; Pomper, Stephen E; Gorove,

Katherine M; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K,
McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Subject: RE: new version of options paper

Attachments: LEGAL-#238074-v1-Israeli_flotilla_investigations_options_paper doc

One revision toi

| T

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:24 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Thessin, James H; Pomper, Stephen E; Gorove, Katherine M; Eichensehr, Kristen
E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Subject: new version of options paper

This is Jim’s reordered paper, with Steve T's comments and includes info that JoAnn gave me on|

|Steve, pls let me know whether you will now take

“this over. Thanks, Linda

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Luther, Lorre M RELEASED IN PART B5,NR

From: Prosser, Sarah E

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 3:07 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G

Cc: Cleveland, Sarah H; Draemel, Sharla; Eichensehr, Kristen E [
Subject: RE: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

In case the scope of "similar investigations” isn’t limited to flotilla incidents_,_l__ — xS _j NR

Let me know if you are interested in further info.

Sarah

From: Towniey, Stephen G
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 9:42 AM

To: Mitchell, Mary T; Jacobson, Linda; Ramish, Timothy E; Prosser, Sarah E; Joyce, Anne

Cc: Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Thessin, James H; MclLeod, Mary (USUN); Buchwald, Tedd F
Subject: FW: Options Paper on Flctilla Investigation

All, attached is an options paper we (by that | mean Linda!) prepared at Jake Sullivan’s request on possible ways to B5

| % B Do any of you have other ideas we could add? We have not shared
this outside of L yet. Thanks, Stephen

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:10 AM

To: Sullivan, Jacob J

Cc: Donoghue, Joan E; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Thessin, James H; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz,
Jonathan B; Harris, Robert K

Subject: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

Jake, Attached please find the latest draft of our paper on ~__pninvestigation into the flotilla incident.

I: o - i s .
_ | Thanks, Stephen

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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IRELEASED IN FULL]

Statement by Ambassador Eileen Chamberlain Donahoe
Special Sitting of the Human Rights Council
on the Recent Incident in the Eastern Mediterranean
June 1, 2010

Thank you, Mr. President.

As we made clear yesterday at the Security Council, the United States government
is deeply disturbed by the recent violence and regrets the tragic loss of life and
injuries suffered among those involved in the May 31 incident aboard the Gaza-
bound ships. We are working to ascertain the facts. We expect a credible and
transparent investigation and strongly urge the Israeli government to investigate
the incident fully.

The United States remains deeply concerned by the suffering of civilians in Gaza,
and the deterioration of the situation there, including the humanitarian and
human rights situation. We urge all parties to behave responsibly and uphold
their international obligations. We continue to believe the situation in Gaza is
unsustainable and is not in the interest of any of those concerned. As we have
pointed out in the past, mechanisms are in place for the transfer of humanitarian
assistance to Gaza. These non-provaocative and non-confrontational mechanisms
should be the ones used for the benefit of all those in Gaza. We will continue to
éngage the Israelis on a daily basis to expand the scope and type of goods allowed
into Gaza to address the full range of the population’s humanitarian and recovery
needs.

We will continue to work closely with the Government of Israel and the
Palestinian Authority, along with international NGOs and the UN, to provide
adequate access for humanitarian goods, including reconstruction materials,
through the border crossings, while bearing in mind the Government of Israel’s
legitimate security concerns.

Hamas' interference with international assistance shipments and the work of
nongovernmental organizations complicates efforts in Gaza. Its continued arms
smuggling and commitment to terrorism undermines security and prosperity for
Palestinians and Israelis alike.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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United Nalions

RELEASED IN FULL]

S{PRS'I'Q(I 10/4

SECI.ll'ity CouﬂCi] Distr.: General

1 June 2010

Original: English

10-38279 (E

0ltialn

A D 50 00 R0 B R

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|

Statement by the President of the Security Council

Al the 6326th mecting ol the Security Council, held on 1 June 2010, in

connection with the Council’s consideration of the item entitled “T'he siwation in
the Middle Eausi, including the Palestinian question”. the President of the Security
Council made the [oiflowing staement on behall of the Council:

*The Security Council deeply regrets the loss of life and injurics
resulting from the use of force during the Israeli military operation in
internutional waters against the convoy sailing to Gaza, The Council, in this
conext, condemns those acts which resulted in the loss of at least wen civilians
and many wounded, and expresses its condulences 1o their families.

*“I'he Security Council requests the immediate release of the ships as well
iy the civilians held by Israel, The Council urges Isriuel o permit full consular
aceess. 1o allow the countries concerned 1o retrieve their deceased and
wounded immediaiely. and 1o cnsure the delivery of humanitarian assistance
Iram the convay (o its destination

“The Security Council takes note of the statement of the UN Sceretary-
General on the aeed 10 have a Tull investigation into the malter and it calls Tor
o prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation conforming 10
ternpional siandards.

“The Sceurity Couneil stresses that the situation in Gaza is not
sustninable.  The Council  re-emphasizes  the  importance ol the  tull
implememation of Resolutions 1850 and 1860, In that context. it reileres is
grave cancern al the hutnanitarian situation in Gaza and stresses the necd lor
sustained snd regular Mow of goods and people o Gaza as well as unimpeded
provision and distribution of humanitarian assistance throughout Gz,

“The Seeurity Council underscorcs that the only wviable solution to
Ismacli-Palestinian conflict is an agreement negoiiated belween the parties and
re-emphasizes that only 2 iwo-State solution, with an independent and viable
Palestinian State living side by side in peace and security with Israel and s
other neighbours, could bring peace (0 the region.

“The Seeurity Council expresses support for the proximity talks and
voices coneern that this incident took place while the proximity wlks are
underwiary and urges the purties 1o act with restraint, avoiding uny uniluieral
andd proveocative actions, and  all inernaional pariners o promote an
atmosphere of cooperation between the partics and throughout the region.”

rncse oy &5
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

HRC 14
Explanation of Vote: The Grave Attacks by Israeli Forces Against the
Humanitarian Boat Convoy

We regret having lo call a vote and vole no on this resolution. It is our hope that,
over time, this Council will be able to unitc around balanced and appropriate
responses to urgent situations that deserve our atlention. We have cngaged intently
in discussions here in Geneva and in forums around the world in response to the
evenls addressed in this resolution, and are deeply committed to working with
partners to cnsure a (ull and appropriate response to this incident and (he
circumstances that led 1o it. '

As noted in our statement in this chamber yesterday, the United States is deeply
disturbed by the recent violence and regrets the lragic loss of life and injuries
suffered among those involved in the incident aboard the Gaza-bound ships. We
condemn the acts that resulted in the loss of at least ten lives and many wounded,
and we express our condolences to their families.

We call attention to the Security Council statement adopted on June 1. 1t is
important to cusure a prompt, credible, impartial, and transparent invesligation.
Israel has a very strong interest in conducting such an investigation that meels
international standards and exposes all the facts. There are, of course, a number of
ways 1o ensure such an outcome.

The United States continucs to be deeply concerned by the suffering of civilians in
Gaza and the deteriorating humanitarian and human rights situation there. The
situation in Gaza is unsustainable and unacceptable. In line with the Security
Council statcment adopled yesterday, we stress Lhe need [or sustained and regular
flow of goods and provision and distribution ol humanitarian access throughout
Gaza, and we will continue our work towards this end while bearing in mind the
Government ol [sracl’s legitimate security concerns.

In the context of today’s debate, it is important to once again stress that the only
viable solution to the Israeli-Palestinian conflict is an agreement, negoliated
between the parties, that ends the occupation that began in 1967 and fulfills the

[FE_VIEW _AUTHORITYE Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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aspirations of both parties for independent homelands through two states for two
peoples, Isracl and an independent, contiguous, and viable state of Palestine, living
side by side in peace and sccurity.

Unfortunately, the resolution before us rushes (o judgment on a set of facts that, as
our debate over the last day makes clear, are only beginning to be discovered and
understood. It creates an intcrnational mechanism before giving the responsible
government an opporlunity to investigate this incident itself and thereby risks
further politicizing a sensitive and volatile situation. We understand the impetus o
respond quickly to a troubling set of events. But we have an obligation to
determine facts and make considercd judgments on how to best address what is a
complex and difficult situation.

For these reasons, we must vote against this resolution.
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RELEASEDIN
FULL

Luther,LorreM =~

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B~

Sent: Tiiesday, June 08,2010 2:03 PM

To¥ Rena, GautamA. =~

Gey. Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G~
Subject: LEGAL-#248783-v1-Israell_[nvestigation_Proposal.DOC
Attachments: LEGAL-#248783-v1-Israsl_{nvestigation_Proposal.doc

‘Gaytam ~this s a quick summary paper that 'l take to:the rieeting; alofig.with a longer paper that'Stéphen can forward
10 yor that is still being worked on by others higra.  Stephén may provide both to Jake Sullivan as well, who has
expressed an.inferest,

Thanks.

Jon:

- [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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[RELEASED IN PART Bé|

Luther, Lorre M

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 9:57 AM

Fou Banos, Mariano H Gorove, Kathierine M; Perina; Alexandra H; Clevetand, Sarah H; Townlay,
_ Stephen G; Schwartz Jonathan 8: Dolan, JoAnn Harris; Robert K

Subject; RE: $BU -Fina! ‘Composition of HRC Flotilla: FactuFindIng Mission

Hello Flotilla Fans,

Any infermal oplnions:on the folks mentioned below?
Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, Q€ {Trinldad and Tobago)

Sir Desmand de Silva, GE (United Kingdom)

Mary Shianthi Dakriam (Malaysia)

Mariano

me' Baans, Manano H

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 10:26 AM

To: Gorove; Katherine M; Perina, Alexandra H; Cleveland; Sarah K; Towntey, Stephen G; Schwattz, Jonathan B; Delan,
JoAnn; Harrls, Robert K

Subject: FW: 5BY -Final Conmpositlon of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Misslon

Fyl

oy — DU U VOV Lem = s T e e e s

From: anﬁths, Douglas M

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010-6:41 AM

To: Bass, Warren; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC; Donahee, Elleen C; I0-HR-DL; Nossel; Suzanne F; DRL-MLGA-

DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michae! H; Graze, Deborah €; Andetson, Brooke D (USUN), Sfman, Jennifer J; Gefmain; Ellen J

(USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN), Schedlbauer, Amy'W; Bands, Mariario H; Cassidy, Joseph p;

Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich, Jack T; Holmstrom, Todd C; Walles, Jacob; "Kumar, Prem
G.'; 'Bushy, Scott W,'

Subject. $BU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Missioh

Dear all,

Here's the-final composition. Apparently an Austrlan candidate dropped out this wieek upon the recommendation of the
-Austrian government. At the bottom I pasted the Wikipedia bio on the new member from Trinidad and Tobago.

Regards,

Doug

pear Colleagues,

With reference to my earlier émails to you belovs, there has been some changes in the composition of the FFM on Flotilla.
‘The annouricemant will Be made early afternoon today with the final list of the members of the FFM as fallows:

Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), served a5 a judge of the Intérnational Criminal Court from 2003 to 2607, He was
Attorney General add Minister'of Legal Affalrs of Trinfdad and Tobago between 1969 and 1873, Ha was appointed Quedn's Counsel
(qc} in 1971. He has now returnad to private practice with Chambears in Trinidad and Tobago and Grenada, West Indles.
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
i
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Sir Desmond de Siva, OC (United Kingdorm), is a lawyer with extensive experience in human rights, war-crlmes; terrorism, business
crime, ésplonage trials and sports law, He sérved as Chiaf Prosecutar of thie UN backed Speclaf Court:for Stérra Leone In 2005 at the
leve! of an Under-Secretary Generaliof the. United Natlons, He'has been Queen’s Caunsel {QC} since 1984,

tary Shanthi Dalriam (Malaysia) was a member.of the Committee on the Eliminatign of Discrimination against Women fram-200% to
2008: Slnce 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Natjons Development Programme. Sheis a
founding member of the Board of Diractors of the International Women's Rights:Action Watch Asta Pacific,

Sincersly,

. ‘Kanita

e e e e e e

Kanita Sapphalsal
Second Secretary
Parmanent Mission of Thailand te the UN Office
and other Intefnational Organlzations In Geneva

Karl Terrence Hudson-th!hps, Q.C, (b. April 20, 1933) is a former Attorngy General of Trinidad and
Tobago and a formet judge of the International Criminal Co . He was also Lead Counsel in the myrder tria] of

Grenadian Prime Mlmsger Maurice Bxshog

Hudson-Phillips read law at Selwyn Collegg, University of Cambridpe;-after completing a Master's degree in
Law in 1959 he was called to the bar at Gray's Inn, London. He retamed to Trinidad and Tobago where lie
established a distinguished legal practice and was appointed a Queen's Counsel in 1970. He served as a Member
of Parliament from 1966 to 1976. Between 1969 and 1973 he setved as Attorney Géneral and Ministet of Legal Legal
‘Affairs. In this capacity he was associated with the dreaded "Public Order Act" which 'was proposed by the
People's National Movement government in response to the Black Power riots and Army Mutiny of 1970, In
1973 he fell out of favour with then Prime Minister Eric Williams (for openly campaigning toreplace Williams,
who had spoken about retirement). This ended his political caréer in the PNM.

In 1974 Hudson-Phillips founded the National Land Tenants and Ratepayers Association of Trinidad and
Tabago. In 1980 he founded the Organisation for National Reconstruction, 4 political party which cohtested the
1981 General Elections. Despite getting the sccond—hlghest vote tally In the election, the ONR failed to secure a
single seat ir Parliament. The ONR went on to form an accommodation with. the National Alliance to contest
the 1983 local govemment elections, and went on the merge with those parties to form the National Alljatice for
Reconstruction; Hudson-Phillips and Basdeo Panday, as the leaders.of the two largest factions in'what became
the NAR decided to step aside and-allow A.N.R. Robinson, léader of osie of the smaller parties, to become party
leader. The NAR contested the 1986 genera) elections and won 33 of the 36 seats in Parliament. However,
Hudson-Phillips did not take an active role in the party after the election (allegedly due to disagreements with
ANLR. Bobinson).

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State. Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C06330354 Date: 07/09/2013

StateDept004710




UNCIASSIFIED U.S, Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doe No. GO5330354 Dater 07/09/3015

In addmon to rhe Grenada murdcr tnal HudsokanEhps has been xnvolved m many }n gh—pmﬁle cases

Association of Trmldad and ’I‘obago

In Pebruary 2003, Hudson-Phillips was elected to the first. ever bench of International Criminal Court unludges
As "deanof the judges" he chaired the first meetings of judges before the election of the Presidency.M He also
‘contributed actively to the drafting of the Regulations of the Court. He fesigned from the court fer personal
reasons.on 14 March 2007.18

[edit] Publications

+ Hudson-Phillips, K. 1968 The Historical Development of the Settlement of Trade Disputes in Trinidad
and Tobago. LL.O. Monogtaph.

« Hudson-Phillips; K. 1987 4 Case for Greater Public Participation in the Legislanve Process. Statute
Law Review,

» Hudson-Phillips, K. 1997, Law and Practice of Arbitration in Trinidad qnd-Tobaga. Intérnational
Commercial Arbitration Bulletin,

[edit] References
1. ~%21nternational Critinat Court (19 March 2007). Resignation of Judge Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, Accessed 11
March 2009.
[edit] External links

+ International Criminal Court Biography

« Cumiculum Vitae, 2002

Retrieved from “http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Karl_Hudson-Phillips"

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,
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[RELEASED IN PART B35
Luthier, Lorre M
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 7:27 PM
To: Koh, Harald Hongju
Cc: Cleveland, Sarah H: Townley, Stephen G
Subjecty LEGAL-#258419-vi-Fiotlia_to_S._{2).doex
. Attachments: LEGAL-#258419-vi-Flotilla_to_S ,(?).docx

Hatold ~The L. “flotilla team” has. devetcped the attachiéd draft of a possible Note from you to Sfollowing up on our

meeting withyou. |

Saral has not had time to review so | am sending her this updated version as weil,

don

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj
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o EE_ELEASED IN PART
Luther, Lorre M BE
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent; Friday, JJuly 23, 2010 4:06 PM
¥o! Mills, Pamala G o
Ce: Townley, Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H
Subject: L's "Fiotills Nota"

Pamela ~Stephen asked me to follow-up on your inguiry about a proposed Note from Haraid Koh to S on the flotilla

incident {Stephen is on much-deserved leavel. |am one of Harold's Depiities. |

Jonathan Schwartz

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

I would be happv't.p'__spé_ak to-others In:S/S or on the Secretary’s staff if that would help. Thank you,
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{RELEASED IN FULL}

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
EUR PRESS GUIDANCE REDAGTED.
June §,2010

Secretary’s Meeting with Turkish Foreign Minister Ahmet Davutoglu
Tuesday, June 1

Q: Provide an agenda of the Secretary’s meeting with Turkish Foreign
Minister Ahmet Davutoglu.

As

» The Secretary met:with Turkish Forelgn Minister Ahmet
Davutoglu today here at the State Department, This meeting was
an opportunity fo discuss a number of issues of shared mutual
mterest | _ |

IF Pressed on Flotilla:

» The Secretary expressed our deep regret over the tragic loss of life
and injuries suffered amoig those involved. She indicated we are
* working to ascertain the facts to understand fully what occurred
and expressed our expectations, in line with the Security Council
Presidential statement, that the Israeli government will promptly
launch an impartial, credible and transparent investigation.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Akmad, Senior
Reviewer
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[RELEASED iN FULY
Luther; Lorre M

From; Pornpet, Stephen E

Sent: ‘Wednesday, June 02; 2010 8:23' PM
To: Towrniley, Stephen G’

‘Subject: ‘Gaza v3.docx

Attachmonts: Gazay3.docx

Thanks for doing this, a few thoughts here.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASED JN FULL]

Luther, Lorre M

‘From;: Schwartz Jonathan B8
‘Sent; Friday, June 94, 201010:65 AM
To: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: Gaza Update for HHK:docx
Attachments: Gaza Uptate for HHK docx

Here are some thoughts. Israzli press is reporting US has sald ‘yes’ but I have nio independent confirmation.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Sanior
Reviewer
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[RELEASED IN FULL)

Luther, Lorre M

From: Jacobsen, Linda:

Sont:. Thursday, June 03; 2010 7:56 AM _
Tor Townley, Stephen G; Thessin, James H; Bonoghue, Joan £
Bubject: Asraet Investigation Options Paperva.doc
‘Attachirients: Igigel invastigation Options Paper va.doc

I've Ihciuded some additional comments.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharan Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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[RELEASED iNFULL)
Luther, Lorié M o
From: MeLeod, Mary(USUN)
Sont: Friday, June:04, 2010 5:20 PM
To: Townley, Stephen G
-Subject: Gaza flotilainvestigation

Ste_phe_n-ul-s_e_n_t you and Joanon the high-—_si_d*'e acable that just. went.out reportingon a meeting between the SG and.
thié P-5 canicerning the Iiivestigdtion issue on Wednesday. | wasn't there so { read Jt with interest myself. Best, Mary

SBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Reviewer

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Atimad, Senior
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[RELEASED IN PART B6,NR]

Luther, Loire M.

From;: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Friday, June' 11, 20101 1:53. A0

To: Townley, Staphen G; Eichehsehr, Kristen &

Cer Harris, Robert K: Cleveland, Sarah H: Legal-HRR-DL.
Subject: HHK's welcorme hoime from /HRR

Summary of high grofie gtters at the curient session ‘of the Human Rights Council, which §nds next Frtday
ugge 18k

7. FLOTILLA: By a vote of 32-3(1US}]-9, the HRC passed in its first week of the session the Flotila
résolution, whith estabiishes “an independent international fact finding misslon to investigate
wo!ateor\s of International law, including international humanitarian and human rights law, rasulting
from the Israeli attacks-on the flotilla of ships cartylng humanitarian assistance” and instructs that
the members should report their investigative findings to the Septembiér session of the HRC. The
-President of the Human Rights Council is to appoint members of this fact=finding misslon {FFM)
upon recommendations from OHCHR, We delivered:-an EOV that regrétted having to vote no,
stressed the unbaianced nature cf thie ‘resolution, reférred to the SC PRST, and expressed that the.
United States Is “deeply disturbed by the recent violence and régrets the tragicigss of life and
Injurles suffered among those Involvad In the incident abodrd the Gaza-bound ships.”

Other L/HRR Matters:

1
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewsl
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. UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C0§330501 Date: 07/00/9073. ™

X IRELEASED IN PART NR,B8)

Fiotilla Iicident of May 31, 2010
Issues for Diseussion

E - |

I, International law s’taﬁda:”ds concerning the legatity of a naval blockade

1, Generaf framework: (1) deciaratlon including notice; (2) effectiveness; (3) impartial
application (to vessels of all nations); {4) limited to ports and coasts belonging to or in the control
of the enemy.

7, Relief: suppligs: Undg¢r what conditions must the blockading state permit passage to vessels
carrying relief supplies for the civilian pcpuiatton?

Sub-issue 1: Under what conditions can.the blockading state specify terms of search and alternate
ranites of passage (including to hearby ports and land routes)?

3. Military and dgal@ge goods: : Must a state discontinug a blockads if the damage to the civilian
population is excéssive in relation to the concrete and direct military advantage anticipated from

the blockade?
Sub-issue 1: What is the status of this rolo under international law?

Sub-issue 2: What standards determine whother damage o a civilian population is excessive? Is
international humen rights law relevant to that determination?

Sub-issue 3; What constitutes a legitimate “military advantage® of a blockade?

4, b_l tt-intlitary goods: Under what conditions conld a blockade, or interdiction of contraband
regime, constifute an act of collective punishment? What international standards determine
whether ubjects precluded by a blockade, or interdiction of contraband regime, are essential for
the survival of a civilian populdtion? I§ hunian rights law relevait to these determinations?

5. Conflict classification: Do the same legal rights, obligations, and standards apply to a biockade
in a non-internationat armed conflict?

1. International lIaw standards concerning actions te enforce a lawiuf blockade

1. What niles regulate the use of force agamst a vossel that s breaking a blockade? How do
prmciplas of necessity and proportionality apply?

2. Where (¢.g., whether in “intenational waters”) can a blockading state exercise its right to visit,
search, divert, and capture vessels that are intendini to break a blockade?

TEL, Whiat international legal standards, il any, determine the deferénce that international
abd foreign national authorities should give to national-fevel investigations: {(assuming those
investigatious are independent, credible and in accord with international standards)? Do
principles involving éxhaastion of domestic reniedies, forum non conveniens, or
international comity apply?

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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B _ [RELEASED IN PART B5,NR]
Luther, Lorre M. i ' o
Frong: Dolan JoAnn
Sent: Tuesday. Juné 01, 2010 11:50 AM
To: Townley, Step hen G
Cc: Highsmith, _{\Ieweﬂ L; Herr, dulie K.
Subjecz‘ FW: URGENT PG CLEARANGE REQUESTED - §-Davutdglu meeting today
Attachments; 601 S- Davutogiu Megting.doc
This Is only guldance | have seen so far| ' -

| ‘As far as | #m aware|

|

- “ - Mo mem e waw  wa omowow Tal ot e s -y -

From' Eills, Ben]amln H
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010'9:59 AM
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Knopf Fayton L; Schwartz, Jonathian 8; Gorove, Katherine M; Vasquez; Edgar J; Sayles; Ambrose G;

Taylor, Victoria J
Ce: Highsmith, Newell L; Herr, Julle K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra M; Baumert, Kevin A

Subject: RE: URGENT PG CLEARANCE REQUESTED - S-Davutoglu meeting taday

I ]

Ben-Elils

EUR Press

202 - 647 - 8602
sl ue Cintine

hrg;' Hleurope.atate.qov

8BU _
This email Is UNCLASSIFIED,

From. Do!an, JoAnn

Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 9:54 AM

Tor Kaopf, Payton.L; Schwaru, Jonathan B; Gorove, Kather!ne M3 Ellls, Benjamin H; Vasquez, Edgsr J; Sayles, Ambrose
G; Taylor, Victoria J

Cc: Highsmith, Newell L Herr, Julie K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Pomper, Stéphen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: RE: URGENT PG CLEARANCE REQUESTED S-Davutoglu meeting today

Looping in drafter, subject to any verther comment from L/NPV

From: Knopf, Payton L

Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 9:51 AM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B, Dolan, JoAnn; Gurove, Katherine M

Ce: Highsmith, Newell L; Herr, Julle'K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: RE: URGENT PG CLEARANCE REQUESTED - 5-Davutoglu meeting today

Correct.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
L
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From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 9:45 AM

Foi Dolan; JoAnn; Gorove, Katherine M -

Cos Highsmith, dewel L; Herr, Julie K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Pompet, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A;
Knopf, Paytor L ' ' '
Subject: RE: URGENT PG CLEARANCE REQUESTED - S-Daviutoglu meéting today

[ 85 |

Fram: Dolan, JoAnn ,

Sents Tuesday, June 01,2010 B:43 AM

To! Gotove; Kathering M; Schwartz, Jonathan B , _ _ o
et Highsrith, Newell L; Herr, Julle K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: FW: URGENT PG CLEARANCE REQUESTED = 5-Davutogly meeting today

‘Importance: High:

Flotilla-add-seems fine but am copying for Jon's info along with flotilla team.

From: Gorove, Katherine M _

Sent: Tuasday, June 01, 2010 9:37 AM

To: Highsmith, Newell 1; Herr, Julie K; Dolan, JoAnn

-Subjacty Fw: URGENT CLEARANCE REQUESTED - S-Davutogiu meeting today
Importance: High

i defarto you guys on‘this

Firom: Ellls, Benjamin H .
To: Taylor, Victoria J; Sayles, Ambrose G; Vasquez, Edgar J; Thibault, Erica; Bally, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Hilton, Robert
B; Walker, Peggy J; Yu, Alan K; Bedke, Michae! L; Catalano, Ellsa; Vasquez, Edgar J; P-NEA Duty; Eberhardt, Jeffrey L;
Muli, Stephen D; Satela, Glibert; Cooper, Kurtis A; Herzberg, John M; Von Behren, Heather W; Pelofsky, Eric J; Highsmith,
Newsll L; Gorove, Kathering M; 'Brink, Bridget A.' <Bridget A, Brink@nsc.eop.gov>; Waikin, Kardlina R; Fisher, Debora
A; Faherty, Erin C; Gray, Howard L

Ce: BUR-Press; EURZSE-DAR-DL; NEA-Press-DL

Seni: Tue Jun 01 08142:46 2010

Subject: PW: URGENT CLEARANCE REQUESTED - S-Davutoglu feeting today
Adding others per out of offlce messages.
Dear Colteagues,

Pleasa clear the attached guidante o the 5-Davutogly meet'ing today by 9:30.AM. It is updated to reflect the flotilla
ncident from yesterday. Please reply alf with changes.

Thank youl

Ben Ellis

EUR Press

202 -~ 647 - 8602
_jzlg' irus 2qligg

i state.qov

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C0O5330503 Date: 07/09/2013

StateDept004724




~ UNCLASSIFIED 'U'S. Depariment of Stale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, COBA30508 Date: 0710972013
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Dot No. G05330588 Date: 07/09/2013 -

Luther; Lorre M [RELEASED IN PART B5,86]

From; Donoghue, Joan £

Sent: Wadnasday,.June 02, 2010 5:23 PM

Tor Townley, Slephen G; Thessm. James H; Glevaland, Sarsh H; Guarin, Marc F
Subjest:. Fw

From: Joan Donoghue[
To: Donoghue, Joan E
Sent: Wed Jun 02 17: 18 462010

Dear Jake--

This ¢-mail provides some additional background on the issues that the Secretary. raised with Jim Thessinin
today’s morming meeting. In light of that discussion] T

!

REVIFW AUTHORITY: Sharan Ahmad Sanine Roview,
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StateDept004726

B6.

B5




UNCLASSIFIED US. Départment of State Gase No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, C05330588 Date: 07/09/2015  B5

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330588 Date; 07/09/2013

StateDept004727




UNCLASSIFIED. U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330588 Date: 07/09/2013

.Bs"’

UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330588 Date; 07/09/2013

StateDept004728




UNGLAGSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Dot No. COB430588 Date: 07/05/2013

g5

I hope you find this helpful. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Regards,

Jim

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05330588 Date: 07/09/2013
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[RELEASED IN FULL)

(NON-RESPONSIVE PORT{ONS"REDACTEH

United. States Department of State
Pashingion, DG, 20520

SEN 511 {VEBUT UN CLASSIFIED. June 23,2010
INFORMATION MEMO FOR THE SECRETARY

FROM: 10 -Gerald C. Anderson, Acting
DRL ~Michacl B, Posner
L—Harold Hong]u Koh

SUBJECT: Human Rights Council Foutteenth Session Summary

Diring the récerit Fourteénth Session of the UN Human Rights Council
(HRC), we made sigiificant progress i promoting country-specific human rights
Initiatives while edvancing U.S, priorities on thematic resolutions and minimizing
Isolation on issues ranging from enforced disappearances to cultural rights.

Hightights of 1.8.~led efforts include:

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
e

Other hightights from the session include:

NR

The creation of 2 new international fact-finding missitn on the Gaza
Flotilla demonsfrates the on-going challenges of antl-Israel biag in the HRC.
‘We voted against the resolution and issueda. stateinent outlining ‘olir concesns that
the HRC was pre-judging the situation and that the résolution Was one-sided: We

will continue to follow the issue closely to seek 16 ininimize the negative impactof
the'report, which Is to-be deliverod at the Seplember session, i

SENSI
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010.04183 Doc No. CO5330057 Dater 0611275673 "

Drafted:  [O/MHR ~PRruchoski x6:7038 after hours: 202-316-6664

Approved: 10— GAnderson, Acting.
DRL - MPosngr
L —~HXoh

Cleared:  10/FO: SNossel. OK
DRL/FO:  KFitzpatrick
L/FO; RHarris. OK
IO/HR:,  AOstermeier OK
DRLMVLGA: JCassidy OK
LHRR:  EAswad OK
Geneva:  EDopahoe OK
0(8): MAshraf OK
P

: JRLittlejohn OK
Sip: Chowel QK
G TWecker OK

SCA/RA: CBHowser OK
8/SRAP:  ETimbéilake OK
AFMRSA;  LDees OK
NEA/IPA; JGiaugue OK
USUN/W: [} Simon INFO
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[RELEASED IN FULL)

Luther, Lofre M

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

‘Sent: Monday, June. 14, 2010 3:42 PM

To! Moleod, Mary (USUN) Townley, Stephen G; aanoghue, Joan E

Subject: RE: Istaci Gavernimint decision’ eslabllshlﬂg Independent Public Commitiee

Thanks. Looks familiar for some reason. Israelis sald commission will have subpoena power but for sonie reason they
didn't want to say so.

'From’ McLeod Mary (USUN)

‘Sent: Monday, June 14,2010 3;38'PM

To: Schwattz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E

Subject: Fw: Israell Government decision establishing Independent Public Committes

in case you haven't seen this yet.

Fram: Schedibauer; Amy W

To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Germain, Elleri 3 (USUN); McLeod, Mary (USUN); Wolff, Alex D (USUN); Bass, Warren;
Barks-Ruggles, £rica J; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Cousens, Elizabeth (USUN); Delaurentis, Jeffrey A (USUN)

Ce: Gark, Linda R (USUN), Chang, Min (USUN)

Sent: Mon Jun 14 15:33;02 2010 _

Subject: Israell Government decision establishing Independent Publle Committee

Here's the decision, as received from the Israeli mission.

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

(Communicated by the Prime anster’é orrce)

At the start of the 57th Government Meeting, the Prime Minister said:

"In consuitation with Justice Minister Yaakov Neeman and Aﬁorney General Yehuda Weinstein, ! am,
today, submitting to the Cabinet a draft decision on establishing & special, independent public
commission to ingulre into the events of 31.8.10.

Two main principles guided us in proposing the establishment of the commission. First is maintaining
IDF soldiers' freedom of action and the credibility of the IDF investigation. Accardingt6.the proposal,
except for IDF Chief-of-Staff L1.-Gen. Gaby Ashkenaz!, IDF soldiers will not festify before the
Commission. The IDF, via the team — chaired by Maj. -Gen (ret;) Giora Eiland ~ that Chiéf-of-Staff
Lt.-Gen. Ashkenazi has established will transfer to the Commission the summaries of its operational
investigations.

The second principle that guided us is providing a credible and convincing response to the
responsible countries in the international community about the events, especially in the context of
i

REVIEW AITHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Sanior Raviawad
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330945 Date: 06/12/2013
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International faw.. }-am convinced that the Commission's uncovering of the facts will prove. that the
goals and actions of the State of Israel and the 1DF were appropriate defensive actions in' accordance
with:the highest international standards.

| estimate that the Gabinet's decision this moming to- establlsh & special, independent public
comission will make it clear to the entire world that the. State of Israel acts acearding to law,

transparently, and with-full responsibility.”

s i e e s v st
I

The Minister of Justice and the Attorey-General presented the Government with a resolution
regarding appointing an independent public. commiftee, headed by Emeritus Supreme Court Judge,
‘Yaakov Terkel, to examine the-events at:sea of May 31, 2010. After the Government discussed the

rasolution, it decided uhanimously:

1. To appomt an independent public Commission, headed by former Supreme Court Justice, Jacob
Turkel, to examine the aspects set out herein relating to the actions taken by the State of Israel to
prevent vessels from reaching the coast of the Gaza Strip on 31 May 2010 (hereinafter: the
Commission).

2. The composition of the Commission:

Members:

Justice (Ret.) Jacob Turkel, Chairperson
Shabtai Rosenne, Member
Amos Horev, Member

Two observers will be appointed to the Commission as detailed In paragraph 3:

3. In light of the exceptional circumstances of the incident, it was decided to appoint two foreign
experts who will serve as observers that will take part in the hearings and déliberations of the
Commission, although they will not have the right to vote in relation to the proceedings and
conclusions of thie Comimission.

Lord David Trimble, Observer
Ken Watkin, Observer

4. The Commission will submit its conclusions on the question of whether the actions set out in
paragraph 1 and their objectives, as well as additional matters involved therein, wire in conformity

with the rules of international law,
For this purpose, the Commissioh will address the following issues:

a}  Examination of the security circumstances surrounding the imposition of the naval blockade on
the Gaza Strip and the confarmity of the naval blockade with the rules of international law.

b)  The conformity of the actions taken by Israel to enforce the naval blockade in the incident of 31
May 2010 with the rules of international law.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Boc No. C05330945 Date: 06/12/2013
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©)  Examination of the actions taken by the organizers of the flotilla and its participants, as well as
their identity.

3. In addition, the Commission will examine the question of whether the mechanism for examining
and investigatmg complaints and claims raised in relation fo violations of the laws of armed conflict,
as conducted in Israel generally, arid as implemented with regard to the present incident, conform
with the obligations of the Stat of Israel under the rules of internationat law.

6.

a) The Commission may request any individual or entity, whether Israeli or foreign, to testify before it
or to provide information to it by othér means, on matters which the Commission believes to be
relevant to its proceedings.

b) Every relevant governmental bady will cooperate fully with the, Commission and will make available
to.the Commission information and documenits required by it for the purposes of performing its
function, including through testimony before the Commission.

¢} Notwithstanding the abové in subsections (a).and (b), with regard to its examination of the military
actions set out in paragraph 4(b) of this resolution; in-respect of personnel.of the military and other
security forces the Commission. will operate exclusively in the following manner; it will receive for its
review the dotuments it requires and will-also be able to request from the Head of the Mlhtary
Investigative Team-authorized: by the IDF Chief of the General Staff to transfer for its review the
summary findings of the operational investigations carried-out following the incident.

If after raviewing the.said summary findings of the operational investigations the Commission
considers that there exists a need for more in-depth or broader investigations, it will be able to
request from the Head of the Military Investigative: Team authorized by the IDFF Chief of General Staff
to issue an order to do so, and to transfer for the review of the Commission the summary findings of
the operational investigations to be gathered in this.context.

d) However, notwithstanding the above in subsection (¢), the Commission may request any
information from the Prime Minister, the Minister of Defence; other Ministers and the IDF Chief-of-
Staff, including through testiniony befors the Commigsion,

7. The Commission will establish its own schedule and methad of work, Commission hearings will be
public or closed, as will be detérmined by the Commission. However, the Commission will not hold a
pubilc hearing i such a hearing could endanger national security or the State's foreign relations, or if
in the  view of the Commission ‘another legal reason exists fo this effact.

8. The. Commission Chairperson may determine that certain documents or certain information will not
be made avallable to the Observers, if he/she beélieves that revealing such information to them is
almost certain to cause substantial harm to national security or to the State's foreign relations.

8, The Commission may authorize qualified persons to gather material needed for the worlk of the
Commission and to assist the Comimission in its duties,

10. Upon completion of its work, the Commission will submit to the Government, by way of the Prime
Minister, & report.

11. The Commission will publish its report soon after its submission to the Government, However,
those sections of the report with regard to which the Commission is convinced, after hearing the
opinion of the authorized bodies, that their publication could cause substantial harm to national

3
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-sacurity, foreign relations; or the wei!—being or pnvacy of an individual, or to confidential operationai
methods of an authorized entity, will- not be publishad.

12. Upon complstion of its work, the Commission will deposit all of the minutes of its procesdings, as
wellas:all of the material brought before Tt, in the State-archive.

13. The Ministry-of Finance will provide the Gommission with a budget for amploymg assisiance staff,
the scope of which will be determined by the Commission, in accordance with its needs; as
determined by the Cominission. In addition, the Office of the Prime Minister will provide the
Commission:with all the. means required. by it to-earry out its duties:

14. The Governtnent takes note of the statement of the Attorney General that in light of the vital public
interest in allowing the Commission to seek the fruth, law.enforcerment agencies will not make use of
testimanies given before the Commisslon or befare: those individuals tasked with collecting

information for the Commission, as evidence in‘a legal proceeding,

TOHUHN AR -~ ON0FRE T TN
2010 2 14
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_ IRELEASED IN FULL)
Luther, Lotre M

From: Harris;: Robert K

Sont; Wednesday, June 23, 2010 5:01 PM

To: Kruchogki, Paul H

Get Aswad, EvelynM; Townley; Stephen G
Subjecty RE: IM o' on HRC 14

Attachments: 1M to S HRC14 v4 (2).docx

Here are L's final &dits. {Forsome réason the text we received had an extra téxtual fragment in:the last sentence, which
was deleted from the version you sept.)

You carnvinitial on Harold's behalf. Thanks.

Bob

.F'ro;n:krud;t;skir Pau_l H ' - T
Sent: Wednesday, June 23, 2010 4:58 PM
To: Harrig; Robert K

Subject: FW: IM to S-on HRC 14

Bob,
Here's a digital copy of the text as it left 10.

Paul

This emall Is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Sadoski, Nicholas A

Sant: Wednesday, June 23, 2010 1:25 PM
To: DRL Staff Assistants

Ce: Kriichoski, Paul H; 10 Staff Assistants-DL
Subject: IM to Son HRC 14

DRL Staffers,

Could you have the attached cleared and signed by your offite, then deliver to L for thelr approval. 10 would like to clear
and sign last and uitimately deliver to the Line.

Thanks for your help,

Nick

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer)
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[RELEASED |N PART BS|

Luther, Lorre M

From: Eichensehr, Kiisten E-

Sent: Wednesday June 02, 20104:36 PM

“To: Claveland; Saral H; Baumert, Kevin A

Cei Towhlay, Slephen &; Harris, Robart K: Pemper; Stephen E
-Subject: RE: law bf séa and lex spécialls

Attachments: Gaza doc rev.docx

A couple of edits and two questions in the attached. Thanks.

st e aw R VPRpSSUE [ — © Mt om e e e e m - R e et

From. Cieveland Sarah H

Sant: Wednesday; June 02, 2010 4:31 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A

Ces Tcwn!ey, Stephen G; Elchensehr, Kristen E; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E
Subject: FW; law of sea and lex specialis

Hi Kevin -1 just sent Steve the uninformed question below, but as he is out, | was wondering whether you have thoughts
onthis? Thanks!

Sarah

e - - 2w —r

From: Cieveland, Sarah H

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:25 PM
Toi Porviper, Stéphen E

Cc: Hamis, Robert K

Subject: law of sea and lex specialis

Steve — regarding the following statement in the draft flotilla cmail:

Sarah H. Cleveland

Counselor on International Law
Office of the:Legal Adviser
Depaitrient of State.

2201 C SI. NW, Rm. 8421
Washington, D:C. 20520

ph: 202-647-9077

fax: 202-847-7096.

email; clevelandsh@state.qov

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
N .
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RELEASED IN PART B8]

Luther,lorre™d .

From: Bauriart, Kevin A

Bent: Wednasday, Junes 02,2010 5:00 PM

Tos: Cleveland; Sarah H_ o o " L

Ser gn_wiﬁley! Stephén G; Eichensehr, Kristeri £ Harris, Robert K; Poniper, Stephan E; Sulfivan,
. avid J ) _

Subject; ‘RE: law of sea and lex specialis

Hi Sarah — I've riot been tracking what the varlous groups have been sayirg abiout the refevant jJaw,|

Adding Dave Sullivan here, as he may have additional thoughts.
Thanks,
Kevin

From; Cleveland, Sarsh H
Sent:Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:31 PM
To: Baumert, Kevin A

Ce: Townley; Stephen G; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E
Subject: FW: law of sea antl lex specialis

Hi Kevin — 1 just sent Steve the uninformed question below, but as he is out; I was wondering whether you have thoughts
on this? Thanks!

Sarah
From: Cleveland, Sarah H

Senti Wednesday, June 02; 2010 4:25 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E

Cc: Harrls, Robert K

Subject: law of sea and lex specialis

Steve — regarding the following statenient in the draft flotilla email:

|
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Sarah H: Cieveland

Counselor on International Law-
Office of the Legal Adviser
Deparlment of Stdle

2201 C'St. NW, Rm. 6421
Washington, D.C, 20620;

ph: 202-647-9077

fax: 202-647-7096

email: glevelandsh@state.goy
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igELEAs:-:n.m PART BS|
Luther, Lorre M _ o
“From: Sallvan; Jacoh 4
8Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010612 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Ce: Townley, Stephen @) Donoghue, Joan E
Subject: Ri! Israal [nvestlgation

Thanks Jon. That makes gaod sense, Vil follow up with you tamarrow.

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Fo: Sullivan; Jacob: 2

-Cc: Townley, Stephen G;. Donoghue, Joan E
“Sent: Tue Jun 08 17:32:46 2010

Subject: RE: Israel Investigation

Jake ~ if of Interest | could send a report of the meeting on the other system {just let me know what address 1o use).

Jon

R T T

Fram: Donnghue, Joan E

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 2:17 PM

To; Sullivan, Jacoh 3

Cer:Schwartz; Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: Israel Investigation

Jake,

Will get you some thoughts on —}hortly It the meantime, here are some thoughts from L on'the
| | Jon Schwartz will be attending Torm Donilon’s meeting this aftermoon, We've

shared this paper with Jim Steinberg, who will also be there.

Joan

1
IREVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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; IRELEASED IN
Luther, Lorre M __JFULL -
From: _McDonough Pamcia E
Sent: Wednesday, June 23, 2010 4:50 PM
To: “Dolan, JoAnn; Townley,; Stephen G
Ce: _ Johnson, Clifton M
Subject: Flotilla:Q

JoAnn, Stephen - Do yau happen to have any detalls on Israel or Turkey inguiriés.into the Amcit flotilla death? DOJ just
asked me whether we have any information on status of foreign investigations; I do not personally have Information
other than understanding that Israel had progoséd an independént commissioh to examine the rald:. If you have any
Hon=public specifics that we.can share with DOJ, please let me know... '

Thanks,
Trish
~ Patricia E. McDonough
Attorney-Adviser
US Department of State
Office of the Assistant Legal Adviser; Law Enforcement and Intelligence (L/LEL)

Tel: 202-647-6194

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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[RELEASED IN PART B3|
Luther, Lorre M
From: Danoghue Joan E
Sent: Friday, Juhe 04, 2010 8:10 PM
To: Sytlivan, JacobJ Towntey Stephen-G; Juhmsen, Cliften M; Mcﬁoneugh Patrloia E; Crocker,
Bathsheba N; Ashraf, Madeeha ]
Subject: Criminal statutes —~ flotilta
Dear Jake;

As you requested, this e-mail addresses the impllcaticns under U.S. criminal law of the death

‘of one AMCIT and injuries sustained by another in conpection with the Gaza flotilla and
assotiatéd protests, |

1
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Please let us know 1f we can provide additional information,

Joan

2
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Claveland, SarahH
Sent:: Friday, June 04, 2010 4:06 PM
To: Townlay, Stephen G

ce: Donoghts, Joan E

Subject: flotilla civil clalms.
Attachments: Fiotita eivil olaims.docx

Attachied is my attempt at this. We may want to ron by1./DL and L/HRR. On to my next assignment....

],

Sarah H. Cleveland
Counselor on International Law
Offite of the Legal Advisar
Department of State
2201 C St NW, Rm. 8421
Washington, D.C, 20820

ph: 202-647-8077

fax:. 202-647-7096

ermall; glevelandsh@state.aov

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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[RELEASED N FULL]
Luther, Lorre M _
From: Cieveland, Sarahd =~
Seit: Wetdnesday, June 02; 2010 6:13. PM
Toy Townlsy, Stephien (3; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Donoghue, Joan E
Subject: flotitla email =~
Attachments: Gaza'doc rev.docx.

‘Here is my chop at it, which. has it been révised in light of the conversation with Joan, but raises some.of the same
concens.

8.

Sarah H. Cleveland
Counseloron international Law
Office of the Legal Adviser
Department of State

2201 C St. NW, Rm, 6421
‘Washington; D.C. 20520

ph: 202-647-9077

fax; 202-647-7096

email: clevelandsh@siate gov
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sant: Friday, June 25, 2010 12:28 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Cleveland, Sarah H; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz,
Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Helnetann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A;
Harris, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marlano H

Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla issues

All - In advance of the 1 pm meeting, attached is a good article by Yoram Dinstein on humanitarian assistance; the
section on maritime blockades Is excerpted below.
A,

:/fibLihiresearch.org/index.cfm?fuseaction=page viewPagelpage!D=R088&node|D=2

Maritime Blockade

Article 23(1) of Geneva Convention (IV) enunciates, "Each High Contracting Party shall allow the free passage
of all consignrents of medical and hospital storcs and objects necessary for religious worship intended only for
civilians of another High Contracting Party, even if the latter is its adversary. It shall likewise permit the free
passage of all consignments of essential foodstuffs, clothing and tonics intended for children under fifteen,
expectant mothers and maternity cases."!

Although no explicit reference to blockade is made in article 23(1), there is no doubt that blockade constitutes
the background of this clause.? The obligation created in it is extremely limited in scope. Apart from being
subjected to various conditions spelt out in other paragraphs of article 23, free passage of consignments for all
civilians is confined to medications, and other items (food and clothing) are circumscribed to certain segments
of the population deemed singularly vulnerable.? There is plainly no requirement to allow the supply of food
and clothing to the civilian population in general. *

Other provisions pertaining to blockades appear in article 59(3)-(4) of the Convention. Paragraph (3} states that
"[A]ll Contracting Parties shall permit the free passage of these consignments and shall guarantee their
protection,"*® According to paragraph (4), "[A]} Power granting free passage to consignments on their way to
territory occupied by an adverse Party 1o the conflict shall, however, have the right to search the consignments,
to regulate their passage according to prescribed times and routes, and to be reasonably satisfied through the
Protecting Power that these consignments are to be used for the relief of the needy population and are not to be
used for the benefit of the Occupying Power."?® These stipulations must, of course, be read together with
paragraphs (1} and (2) of article 39 quoted abovc, dealing with relief consignments to occupied territories.
Paragraph (3) is viewed by the ICRC commentary as "the keystone of the whole system"; its thrust is that such
consignments must be allowed to cross through a blockade, subject to verification and supe:rvision.:t

The prohibition-incorporated, as noted, in Protocol I-of starvation of civilians as a method of warfare does not
by itself render blockade unlawful as a method of warfare, provided that such starvation is not the sole purpose
of the blockade, 2 This follows from the language of article 49(3) of the Protocol: "The provisions of this
Section [articles 48-67) apply to any Jand, air or sea warfare which may affect the civilian population,
individual civilians or civilian objects on land. They further apply to all attacks from the sea or from the air
against objectives on land but do not otherwise affect the rules of international law applicable in armed conflict
at sea or in the air,"*

As the ICRC commentary on the protocol explains the paragraph, "In general the delegates at the Diplomatic
Conference were guided by a concern not to undertake a rovision of the rules applicable to armed conflict at sea
1

[REVIEW AUTHORITY; _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewar]
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or in the air. This is why the words 'on land' were retained and a second sentence clearly indicating that the
Protocol did not change international law applicable in such situations was added."

Even those advocating the illegality of a blockade giving rise to starvation of civilians are forced to concede that
their position collides head-on with the original i mtennon of the diplomatic conference that the instrument it
produced have no impact on the law of blockades.”!

PR PR - " memar . - e ama ¥ o v e mm e b e ABE AL 4w

From. Dolan, JoAnn

Sant: Friday, June 25, 2010 8:50 AM '

To: Khan, Navaed 3, Cleveland Sarah H; Townley, Stephen G;. Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper,
Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Héinemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harrls, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M Perlna,
Alexandra H; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marlane H

Subject; RE: Gaza flotilla Issues

Was this meeting ever finalized?

From: Khan; Naveed J

Sant! Tuesday, June 22, 2010 9:54 AM

To: Cleveland, Sarah W) Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin,
Marc F; Helnemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Aswad, Evélyn M; Perina, Alexandra H; Rajpal,
Sabeena; Banos, Mariane H; Dolan, JoAnn

Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla issues

Would Fridoy; June 25" at 1:00 pm be ok?
From: Clevaland, Sarah H

Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2010 9:50 AM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarln, Marc F; Helnemann,
Thomas B; Baumnert, Kevin A; Harrs, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Perina, Alexandra H; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marano
H; Koh, Harold Hongju; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Khan, Naveed ]

Subject: Gaza flotiila issues

Naveed —

Can you set up a meeting on Friday for those in this group who want to.attend, to discuss the flotilla issue in light of
yesterday's ACIL meeting? (Feel free to loop in-others).

Thanks,

Sarah
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[RELEASED ﬂ

9:00~-9:30

9:30 — 9:45

9:45 ~10:45

10:45-11:00

11:00-12:00

12:00~ 12:45

12:45 -2:00

2:00-2:45

2:45-3:15

3:15-3:30

3:30-4:30

4:30 -~ 5:30

5:30 ~ 5:45

ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL LAW
DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The Géorge Washington University Law School
2000 H Street, NW, Waslingion DC
Michael K, Young Faculty Conference Center, 5™ Floor

June 21, 2010
AGENDA

Check-in; coffee and light refreshments available

Welcome; introductory remarks
s Dear Frederick M, Lawrence, The George Washington University Law School
*  Harold Hongju Koh, Legal Adviser, Department of State

ICC Review Conference and Ad Hoc Criminal Tribunals: Stock-Taking and Next Steps
o Harold Hongju Koh, Legal Adviser, Department of State
= Todd Buchwald, Assistant Logal Adviser for United Nations Affairs
» Anne Joyce, Acting Assistant Legal Adviser, Office of European and Eurasian
Affairs -

Coffee Break

Detention, Targeting, Prosecution and the Law of War: Reactions to Koh ASIL Speech
o Prof. Steven Ratner, University of Michigan Law School

Introduction of Joan E, Donoghue, U.S. Candidate for Election to the Intemational
Court of Justice

Lunch

International Responsibility of Intemationa! Organizations: ILC Draft Articles
o Kate Gorove, Attorney-Adviser, Office of United Nations Affairs
¢ Prof. José Alvarez, New York University School of Law

International Law Commission: 1.8, Topic

»  Prof. Lori Damrosch, Columbie University School of Law

o Prof. Sean Murphy, The George Washington University Law School
Coffes Break

Nonproliferation; START, NPT Review Confercnee & Nucloar Security Summit
»  Newell Highsmith, Assistant Legal Adviser for Non-Proliferation &
Verification

Current Topics in Intemational Humanitarian Law: The Flotilla
o Prof. Ryan Goodman, New York University School of Law

Cther Matters & Closing Remarks

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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[RELEASED IN PART B3|

Luther, Lorre M

From: McLeod, Mary (USUN}

Sent: Wednesday, Jung 02, 2010 436 PM
To: Mitchell, Mary T; Jacobson, Linda
Ce: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation

Linda—There really wasn't any discussion about| - [uring UNSC negotlations on
‘Monday/Tuesday. | . . B5

| Best, Mary

SBL
This emait is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mitchell, Mary T

Sant: Wednsesday, June 02, 2010 4:14 PM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN)
Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subjact: RE; Flotilfa Investigation

You're wefcome,[wm . - o

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:08 PM
To: Mitchell, Mary T; McLeod, Mary (USUN)
Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE; Flotilla investigation

Thanks, very helpful.

From: Mitchell, Mary T

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:06 PM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN}
Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation

HI Linda

REVIEW AUTHORITY: ~ Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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From; Jacobsan, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:48 PM
To: Mitchelf, Mary T; Mcleed, Mary (USUN)
Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: Fiotilla investigation

Steve and | were just asked by Jim to pull some matarial togather (due tonight) on “options”|

Ma_a_ry__l_\{l — could you give me some background on |

Mary Mcl - was there any discussion this week during the UNSCR negotfations about[™ """ =

Thenks for vour help and sorry for the mad rush. Linda
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RELEASED IN PART B5|

Luther, Lorre M RS

From: thn_son. Clifton M

Sent: Thursday, Jurie 03, 2010 2:33 PM

To: Townlay, Stephen G; Cleveland, Sarah H

Cc: Harmis, Rober K; Landslidle, Jennifer R

Subject: RE: flatidle

Stephen, ‘ - , .
Thathelps. ) B - B B | - | Bs

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 1:57 PM
To: Johnson, Clifton M; Cleveland, Sarah H
Cc: Harrls, Robert K; Landsidle, Jennifer R
Subject: RE: Aotilla

Thanks, Stephen

From: Johnson, Clifton M

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 1:55 PM

To: Cleveland, Sarah H

Cc: Harrls, Robert K; Townley, Stephen G; Landsldle, Jennifer R
Subject: RE: flotilla

Sarah, , . ) -
... I'mnot an expert on this, but my sense i_su_that[_ _ . s . _ _l BS
Co | | |

| may have missed something, but that's what I've found. Cliff
From: élevéii;ﬁd, SarahH " [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 11:59 AM  [Reviewer
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‘ Toa: Johnson, Cifton M
! Cc: Harrls, Robert K; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: flotiiia

Cliff

- — R e e T S

The question came wp todayl

Thanks!
Sarah H. Cleveland

Counselor on International Law
Office of the Legal Adviser
Department of State

2201 C St NW, Rm. 8421
Washington, D.C. 20520

ph: 202-847-8077

fax: 202-847-7096

email: plevelandsh@stale. gov
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[RELEASED IN PART B8]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Cleveland, Sarah H
Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:54 PM
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen 3; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz,

Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarln, Marc F; Helfiemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A:
Harrls, Robert K; Rejpal, Sabeena; Banos, Mariano H; Pering, Alexandra H; Martin, Julie B
Subject RE: Gaza flotilla issuss
Attachments; ﬂotilleﬁ |NoteonSurvivalCivilianPopulation.doc BG

From: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:49 PM

To: Cleveland, Sarah H; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen
E; Guarin, Mar¢ F; Heinemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marlano H;
Perina, Alexandra H; Martin, Julie B

Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla issues

Looping in julle, EA

From: Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:48 PM
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarln, Marc F;
Helnemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Mariano H;
-Perina, Alexandra H

Subject: FW: Gaza flotilla issues

l"romir“__J FYL
-I;mn;:L_‘ ]
Sent: rriday, June 25, 2010 2144 PM

To: Cleveland, Sarah H
Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla Issues

Thanks. Dinstaln may be in a minority on the last paragraph below (non-application of Protocol i to blockades).

Here are a few counterpoints:

1. Article 49 states that the Protocol does apply to "sea warfare which may affect the civillan population, individual
civiltans or civllian objects on tand." Hence it would cover a sea blockade that has an effect on the clvillans on land.

2. Although the ICRC Commentary states that the Protocol might not otherwise change the law of naval blockades, soon
thereafter the Commentary discusses how Article 70 applies to blockades. This is oddly In the Commentary on article 54,
not on article 70 Itself (p. 654)

3. The leading commentator on Protocol i, Michael Bathe states that despite some contrary evidence in the travaux,
articles 54 and 70 of Protocol { apply to biockades and the control of contraband. Michae! Bothe, Commentary in The
Law of Naval Warfare: A collection of agreements and documents with commentaries 760, 764 {N. Ronzitti ed, 1988).
See also Efmar Rauch, The Protocot Additional to the Geneva Conventions for the Protection of Victims of Interhational
Armed Conflicts and the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea: Repercussions on the law of naval warfare 93

(1984).

i
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4. The leading treatise on Protocol §, Michael Bothe, Karl Partsch, and Waldemar Solf, NEW RULES FOR VICTIMS OF ARMED
CONFLICTS 338 n. 10 {1982}, states: "Rellef, however, is covered by Section Il of Part IV, Accordingly, it modifies the law
refevant to blockade and contraband by extending the types of supplies which cannot be considered to he contraband
and by enlarging the class of persons for whom relief is intended.”

]

Fnom' Cleveland Sarah H [maI!tO'CIeveIandSH@state gov)

Sent: Fridav, June 25, 2010 1:54 PM
Toi|
Subject: FW: Gaza flotilia issues

- case it's helpful, attached Is a good article by Yoram Dinstein on humanitarian assistance; the section on
maritime biockades is excerpted below.

tpi/fihlihlresearch.org/index.cfm?fuseaction=page.viewPage&pagelD=8088&nodalD=2

Maritime Blockade

Article 23(1) of Geneva Convention (IV) enunciates, "Each High Contracting Party shall allow the free passage
of all consignments of medical and hospital stores and objects necessary for religious worship intended only for
civilians of another High Contracting Party, even if the latter is its adversary. It shall likewise permit the free
passage of all consignments of essentml foodstuff‘s, clothing and tonics intended for children under fifteen,
expectant mothets and maternity cases."

Although no explicit reference to blockade is made in article 23(1), there is no doubt that blockade constitutes
the background of this clause,22 The obligation created in it is extremely limited in scope. Apart from being
subjected to various conditions spelt out in other paragraphs of article 23, free passags of consignments for all
civilians is confined to medications, and other items (food and clothing) are circumscribed to certain segments
of the population deemed singularly vulnerable. B There is plainly no requirement to allow the supply of food
and clothing to the civilian population in general,?

Other provisions pertaining to blockades appear in article 59(3)-(4) of the Convention. Paragraph (3) states that
"[AJ (,ontractmg Parties shall permit the frec passage of these consignments and shall guarantee their
protection."? Accordmg to paragraph (4), "[A] Power granting free passage to consignments on their way to
territory occupied by an adverse Parly to the conflict shall, however, have the right to search the consignments,
to regulate their passage according to preseribed times and routes, arid to be reasonably satisfied through the
Protecting Power that these consignments-are to be used for the relief of the needy population and are not to be
used for the benefit of the Occupying Power."*® These stipulations:must, of course, be read together with
paragraphs (1) and (2) of article 59 quoted above, dealing with relief consignments to occupied tetritories.

2
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Paragraph (3) is viewed by the ICRC commentary as "the keystone.of the whole system"; its thrust is that such
consignments must be allowed to cross through 4 blockede, subject to verification and supervision,?”

The prohibition-incorporated, as.noted, in Protocol [-of starvation of civilians:as a method of warfare does not
by-itself render blockade unlawful as a method of warfare, provided that such starvation is not the sole purpose
of the blockade.? This follows from thie language of article 49(3) of the Protocol: "The provisions of this

Section [articles 48-67] apply to any land, air or sea warfare which may affect the civilian population,

individual civilians or civilian objects on land. They further apply to all attacks from the sea or from the air
against objectives on land but do not otherwise affect the rules of international law applicable in armed conflict
at sca or in the air,"* '

As the ICRC commentary on the protogol explains the paragraph, “In general the delegates at the Diplomatic
Conference wete guided by a coneemn not to undertake a revision of the rules applicable to armed conflict at sea
or in the air. This is why the words 'on land' were retained and a second seritence clearly indicating that the
Protocol did not change international law applicable in such situations was added."*"

Even those advocating the iJlegality of a blockade glving rise to starvation of civilians are forced to concede that
their position collides head-on with the original intentfon of the diplomatic conference that the instrument it
produced have no impact on the law of blockades.’'
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[RELEASED IN PART BB

{.uther, Lorre M

From: Perina, Alexandra H
Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 3:39 PM
To: Aswad, Evelyn M, Cleveland, Sarah H; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan

E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Mare F; Helnemann, Thomas B;
Baumert, Kevin A; Hanis, Robert K; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marlano H; Martin, Julle B
Subject; RE: Gaza flotilla Issues

Sarah - thanks for this.

A

Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:49 PM

To: Cleveland, Sarah H; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen
E; Guarin, Mare F; Helnemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Rajpai, Sabeena; Banos, Marfano H;
Perina, Alexandra H; Martin, Julle B

Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla issues

Looping In Julie, EA

From: Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:48 PM

To! Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F;
Helnemann, Thomas B; Baumert, Kevin A; Harrls, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Rajpal, Sabeena; Banos, Marlano H;
Petina, Alexandra H

Subject: FW: Gaza flgtitla issues

From|  [FYI. B6
From:| - ] ]

Sent: Friday, June 25, 2010 2:49 PM

To: Cleveland, Sarah H REVIEW AUTHORITY: ~Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

Subject: RE: Gaza flotilla Issues
Thanks, Dinstein may be in a minority on the last paragraph below {non-application of Protocol | to blockades).
Here are a few counterpoints:

1. Article 49 states that the Protocol does apply to "sea warfare which may affect the civilian population, individual
civilians or civilian obJects on land." Hence it would cover a sea blockade that has an effect on the civillans on land.

1
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2. Although the ICRC Commentary states that the Protocol might not otherwise change the law of naval biockades, soon
thereafter the Commentary discusses how Article 70 applies to.-blockades. This is oddly In the Commentary on article 54,
not on article 70 itself (p. 654)

3. The leading commentator on Protocof |, Michael Bothe states that despite'some contrary evidence in the travaux,
articles 54 and 70 of Protocol | apply to blockades and the control of contraband. Michael Bothe, Commentary in The
Law of Naval Warfare: A collection of agreements and documents with commentaries 760, 764 {N, Ronzitti ed. 1988).
See also Elmar Rauch, The Protocol Additional to the Geneva Conventions for the Protection of Victims of International
Armed Conflicts and the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea: Repercussions on the faw of naval warfare 93
{1984),

4, The leading treatise on Protocol I, Michaei Bothe, Karl Partsch, and Waldemar Soif, NEw RULES FOR VIiCTIMS OF ARMED
CONFLICTS 338 n, 10 (1982), states: “Relief, however, Is covered by Section 1l of Part IV, Accordingly, it modifies the law
relevant to blockade and contraband by extending the types of supplies which cannot be consldered to be contraband
and by enlarging the class of persons for whom rellefis intended.”

N B&

s ama mmw U M S U e e e T s TR

From: Cleveland, Sarah H [mailto:ClevelandSH@stats.gov]
Se r:_Er_lda\L_,‘lum,?S.urom 1:54 PM

To .\

Subject: FW: Gaza flotilla Issues

in case it's helpful, attached is a good article by Yoram Dinstein on humanitartan asslstance; the section on

http:/fihLihiresearch.org/index.cfm?fuseaction=page viewPage&pageID=808&nodelD=2 |

aritime Blockade

Article 23(1) of Geneva Convention {IV) enunciates, "Each High Contracting Party shall allow the frce passage
of all consignments of medical and hospital stores and objects necessary for religious worship intended only for
civilians of another High Contracting Party, even if the latter is its adversary. It shall likewise permit the free
passage of ali consignments of essential foodstuffs, clothing and tonics intended for children under fifteen,
-expectant mothers and maternity cases."”

Although no explicit reference to blockade is made in article 23(1), there is no doubt that blockade constitutes
the background of this clause.”? The obligation created in it is extremely limited in scope. Apart from being

subjected to various conditions spelt out in other paragraphs of article 23, free passage of consignments for all
civilians is confined to medications, and other items (food and clothing) are circumscribed to certain segments

2
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of the population deemed singularly vulnerable.”® There is plainly no requirement to allow the supply of food
and clothing to the civilian population in general.”?

Other provisions pertaining to blockades appear in article 59(3)-(4) of the Convention. Paragraph (3) statcs that
"TAIN Conlractmg Parties shall permit the free passage of these consignments and shall guarantee their
protection."?* According to paragraph (4), "[A] Power granting free passage to consignments on their way to
territory occupied by an adverse Party to the conflict shall, however, have the right to search the consignments,
to regulate their passage according to prescribed times and routes, and to be réasonably satisfied through the
Protccting Power that these consignments are to be used for the relief of the needy population and are not to be
used for the benefit of the Occupying Power."?® These stipulations must, of course, be read together with
paragraphs (1) and (2) of article 59 quoted above, dealing with relief consignments to occupied territories.
Paragraph (3) is viewed by the ICRC commentary as "the keystone of the whole system"; its thrust i s that such
consignments must be allowed to cross through a blockade, subject to verification and supervision.?’

The prohibition-incorporated, as noted, in Protocol I-of starvation of civilians as a method of warfare does not
by itself render blockade unlawful as a method of warfare, provided that such starvation is not the sole purpose
of the blockade.?® This follows from the language of article 49(3) of the Protocol: "The provisions of this
Section [articles 48-67) apply to any land, air or sea warfare which may affect the civilian population,
individuaj civilians or elvilian objects on land. They further apply to all attacks from the sea or from the air
against objectwes on land but do not otherwisc affect the rules of international faw applicable in armed conflict
at sea or in the air."

As the ICRC commentary on the protocol explains the paragraph, "In general the delegates at the Diplomatic
Conference were guided by a concem not to uitdertake a revision of the rules applicable to armed conflict at sea
or in the air. This is why the words 'on land' were retained and a second sentence clearly indicating that the
Protocol did not change intcrnational law applicable in such situations was added. w3

Even those advocating the illegality of a blockade giving rise to starvation of civilians are forced to concede that
their position collides head-on with the original 1ntent10n of the diplomatic conference that the instrument it
produced have no impact on the law of blockades.?
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RELEASED IN PART B6,B8]

Luther, Lorre M

From: Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent; Menday, Jung 07, 2010 11:34 AM

To: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: FW: Options Paper on Flotila investigation

Attachmenta: lsrael Investigation Options Paper v3.doc

I wil! get back to Power and Posner on this, -. J BS

From: Koh, Harold Hongju

Sent! Monday, June 07, 2010 11;11 AM

To; Cleveland, Sarah H

Subject; Pw: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

Should you reply?

Harold Hongju Koh

The Legal Adviser

U.S. Depariment of State
Suite 8421

2201 G 5. NwW

Washington, DC 20520-6421
202 647 9598 office

202 262 B295 mobile

202 647 7096 fax

From: Power, Samantha 3§ o B6
To: Posner, Michael H; Koh, Hafgld Hongju
Cc: Busby, Scott W, | - ] B6

Sent: Mon Jun 07 09:53:38 2010
Subject: FW: Options Paper on| |

Do you know who there prepared this paper and what the status is?

From: Kumar, Prem G,

Sent: Thursgay, June 03, 2010 9:00 AM

To: DL-NSC-Suite; DL-NSC-European Affairs; DL-NSC-Legal Advisor
Ce: DL-NSC-NENA; Ross, Dennis B,

Subject: FW; Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

Please see attached State’s discussion paper for| o
] Thanks, Prem

I
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RELEASED iN PART
1.4{B),B1,1.4(D}

Luther, Lorre M

From: Pornper, Stephen E

Sent: Tueaday, June 01, 2010 4:24 PM

To: ‘DaRosa, Mary B.'; 'oegan@nsc.eop.gov; ‘brian_j._agan@nsc.eop.gov'

Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Harris, Robert K; Towniey, Stephen G; Denoghue, Joan E

Subject: FW: The Flotilla fo Gaza Materials, inclutling legal background

Attachmants: FW: Remarks - Secretary of State Hiltary Rodham Clinton And Romanlan Foreign Minister

Teodor Baconsehi After Thelr Meeting

Mary and Brian—

As promised, here is some legal background we recelved via intermediaries that contains some legal analysis by the
GOl it lsn't clear to us that this is finished product {or a formal GOI view) but it should give a sense of how thelr MFa
lawyers are thinking about the issues that we discussed.

| am also attaching the Secretary’s remarks from eatlier this afternoon.

Please let us know If there are any issues hera that you'd like to discuss further.

Thanks Classified by DAS, AJGIS, Do$ on i 07-08-2013__ ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL
‘Steve ~ Reason;11,4(B}), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on; 06/01/2030
e ——— SPTR
1.4(D)
B1

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
1
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e Flotilla Incident of May 31, 2010: Issues for Di;cussion', Prof. Ryan Goodman

in addition, the following documents are available online and wili be avaitable in hard copy at the meeting:

Terms of Reference for Israell Commission of Inquiry
fa.gov.il/MFA/Government/Communiques/2010/Cabinet _to rove_independent public comm

13-Jun-2010.htm

Statement by the White House Press Secretary on Israel's investlgation Into the flotilla lncident June 13, 2010

1DF Military Advocate General: Interception of the Gaza fletilia - Legal aspects
btto:/www.mag idfl/992-4071-enfpatzar.aspx

ICRC News Release on Gaza Closure, June 14, 2010
http://'www.icrc, orefweb/eng!sueengﬂ nsf/htmlal /galeghne-undate-lfiom 0

_____ p—— :

Please do not hesltate to let me know if you have any questions about this material. |look forward to seeing you on
Monday.

Sincerely,
David

David M. DeBartolo

Attorney-Adviser

Office of the Legal Adviser -- Claims and Investment Disputes {L/CID)
Department of State

Suite 203, South Building (SA-4)

2430 E Street NW, Washington, DC 20037-2800

Phone: 202-776-8323

Fax: 202-776-838%

Cell: 781-572-2217

debartolodm@state.gov
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Luther, Lorre M

[RELEASED IN FULL

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Note first item,

From' OpsAIert

REDACTED -
Schwartz, Jonathsn B

Wednasday. June 30, 2010 3:42 PM

Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Gorove, Katherine M; Banos, Mariano H;
Clavaland, Sarah H; Dolan, JoAnn Jacobsan, Linda; Townley, Stephen G

FW: Afternoon Brief 06."30!" {SBU Verslon)

Sent; Wednesday, June 30, 2010 2:57 PM
Subject: Afternoan Brlef 06/30/I (SBU Version)

ENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIE

(@ EXECUTIVE SECRETARIAT
YalL? Operations Center

Afternoon Brief

Wednesday,; June 30, 2010
1500 EDT

ESRAEL TO EXPAND POWERS OF GAZA FLOTILLA INQUIRY

(SBU) The statement by Prime Minister Netanyahu followed pane! head Jacob Tirkel's threats to resign if the

government refused to grant it powers to subpoena witnesses and recommend sanctions, media report. The

Office of Israel and Palestinian Affairs comments the government is likely to strengthen the panel to improve its

reputation in the international community and approve the request during a July 5 security cabinet meeting.
{Ops/Israel and Palestinian Affairs Qffice telcon, BBC)

e T PR RN

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad. Senior Raviewen
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[RELEASED IN FULL|

Luther, Lorre M

From: Dolan, JoAnn

Sent; Tuesday, June 01, 2010 12:57 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G~

Subject; FW; FOR IMMEDIATE -CLEARANCE: Isragl/Palestinlans: UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotilla
Attachments: 060110-Israal-Palastinians - UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotilla (2).doex

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sant: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 12:48 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Marlano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Baumert, Kevin A

Cr: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Bischoff, James L; Youel Page, Kathryn
Subject: RE: FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE; Israel/Palestinlans: UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotilla

A few comments attached.

- [, - PP, i ame [ -

From: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 20410 12:45 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Marlano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Baumert, Kevin A
Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Bischoff, James L; Youel-Page, Kathryn
Subject: RE: FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE: Israel/Palestinians: UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Fiotilla

Attached integrates comments | have seen from L/CA, Linda and Jonathan. Any others would be useful to include in this
version.

From: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Tuesday, lune 01, 2010 12:25 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Parina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Marlano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Baumert, Kevin A
Cc: Schwarltz, Jonathan B; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Bischoff, James L; Youet Page, Kathryn
Subject: RE: FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE: Israel/Palestinians; UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotilla

Sorry. Please use this version to Integrate comments. Just in from L/CA.

from: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 12:23 PM

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Banos, Marlano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Baumert, Kevin A

Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Bischoff, James L; Youel Page, Kathryn
Subject: FW. FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE: Tsrael/Palestintans: UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotllla
Importance: High

For others to review as well. There is language in hiere that we changed in the draft EOV last evening but | am not sure
which of those changes were finally accepted. Pending circulation of revised version of EQV, could Marlano or Evelyn
advise, §am happy to coordinated commaents on this. L/CAis also forwarding their commients to me.

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 12:01 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn

Subject: Fw: FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE: Istael/Palestinians: UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotila

Importance: High

QOthers are sending in changes.
1
[Ii_EVIEW AUTHbﬁ{TY:_l Shroﬁiﬂgl_'l_mad, Senior Bg\.ji.ej'g)@
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From: Sayles, Ambrose G

To: Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Bernler-Toth, Michelle; Giaugue, Ivna; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Jacobson,
Linda; Schwarlz, Jonathan B; Wills, Regina M; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Ellis, Benjamin H; Waller, Robert P; Catalano,
Elisa; Rana, Gautam A; Rand, Dafna H; Reynolds, Arllssa M; Hoyer, Kurt J; Harutunfan, Ruben; Morrison, Andrew L.;
Cooper, Kurtls A; Bass, Warren; Kornblau, Mark (USUN); 'Michael_A._Hammer@nsc.eop.gov’

<Michael A, Hammer@nsc.zop.gov>; 'Chang, Benjamin' <Beniamin Chana@nsc.eop.govs; 'Hensman, Chris D.'

<Chrls D, Hensman®@®nss.eop.goy>; Pelton, Erin; Ratney, Michae! A

Sent: Tua Jun 01 11;39:2% 2010

Subject: FOR IMMEDIATE CLEARANCE: Israel/Palestinlans: UPDATE Rald on Free Gaza Flotilla

HI Everyone —

Piease clear the attached UPDATED press guidanice re: Free Gaza Flotilla. Piease note that this updates
yesterday's press guidance and all updated sections are highlighted In yellow. Your clearance Is appreciated by
12:15pm latest. This wili need to get to PA ASAP for use by the Secretary and senior officials.

Thank you,

Ambrose

<<0§0110-Israel-Palestinians - UPDATE Raid on Free Gaza Flotilia.docx>>
Ambrose Sayles | Press Officer | Bureau of Near Bagtarp Affairs | U.8. Department of State

2201 C St, NW Rm 2234, Woshington, DC 20520 | B! 202.647.4184 | B shylesagéisiate.aoy
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(RELEASED IN PART B

Luther, Lorre M

From: Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent: Frigay, Juna 04, 2010 607 PM
To: Townlay, Stephen G

Subject: FWip

Hero you gol

From: Doncghue, Joan E

Sent;: Friday, June 04, 2010 5:09 PM

To: Suliivan, Jacob ]

Cc: Crocker, Bathsheba N; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Schwartz, Johathan 8
Subject: | ]

Dear Jpke -

B5

we'll get you something on[.

- TR N
[REYEEWAQTHQB’IY‘ Sharon Ahmad, Senlor Reviewer
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Please let us know If you would like additional detalls.

Joan
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Luther, Lorre M [RELEASED IN PART BE,B¢)

From: Donoghue, Joan E

Sent: Safurday; June 05, 2010 3:38 PM

Ta: Townlay, Stephen G

Ce: McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Subject: Fw: Fiotlila distussion

Stephen, . . N

From talking to Jake, | have a liltle additional color| ‘ e ]55
N . |Cd yoii please see whather peopla i Lknow or cd check es? Even —

partlal info this weekend is good as things are moving quickly. My clugs follow.

} can give you some-more flavor this evening as you and cothars are rushing out of the pool to escape elther thunder or

pompar's gordon fightfoot playlist. '

(For mary — last refarance Is to peol party chez nous for ashley's farewell, but uniike lemp's farewell to you, | am not

aware that anyone pians to hula. )

Joanh

Thanks,

Joan

Front: Egan, Brian J, [ T [ BE

To: Denoghue, Joan E; Pomper, Stephen B '

Cc: DeRosa, Mary B, B

Sent: Sat Jun 05 14:55:95 20107
Subject: Flotilla discussion

Joan and 5teve,

Apologies for the last-minute switch regarding today’s conversation.

'REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Ssnior Reviewer]
1
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Any views/insights that you alt might be able to offer on these issues would be welcome {and sorry again for not being
able to connect you today),

Thanks, Brian
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[RELEASED IN PART B3|

NEA Press Guidance
June 1, 2010 B5

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewey]
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L

Background:
Text of PRST:

SECURITY COUNCIL PRESIDENTIAL STATEMENT ON THE RECENT INCIDENT IN THE
EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN

The Security Coungil decply rogrets the loss of life dnd Injurigs résulting fron the use of force durlny the
Tsragl mititary operation in inlemational waters against the convoy sailiog to Uaza, The Councll, i this
context, condemns those scts which resulted in the 1ass.of at least ten civilians end many wounded, and
expressed Its condalenees to thelr femillcs.

The Security Counsi! requests the immediate releass of the ships as well as the clvillans held by Israel.
The Counall urges isract to pormit (ull conswliir access, W allow the countries congerned to retricve thelr
devensed and wounded immediately, and to ensurs the delivery of humanitarian assistance from the
conyoy to its destinetion,

The Securlty Council {akes.note of the statement of the UN Secrotary-Qencral on the need to have a full
investigation tfe the mattér and it calls for a prompt, impartlel, credible and trangpareal investigation
conforming 1o internationna standards,

The Stcurity Council stresses that the situation In Gnza is not sustalnable. The Counclt re-cmphasizes the
fmportance of the Full implementation of Resotutions 1850 and 1860. In that context, if reftcrates its
grave concemn at the humanitarian situation In Qaze and sivesses the necd For sustalned and regutar flow
of goods and people 1o Oaza as well as unimpedsd provision ond distribution of humenitarian assistanoe
{hroughout Qaza,

The Scourity Counolt underscores that the only visble solution to lsracli-Palestinlan conflict is an
agreement negotinted betwicen the partios and re-emphasizes thot only a two-Stata solution, with an
independem and vinble Palestinian State living side by aide in peace and security with Tsmel and fts other
neighbours, coutd bring peace to the reglon.

The Security Counci! cxpresses support for tie proximity talks and voicss concem that this kncident took
plave while the-proximily 1alks are underway and wrges the parties to act with restraint, avoiding ony
unifaterat and-provocaiive actions, and all internationn! partaers to promots an almosphero of cooperation
bgtween the parties and throughout the region. ‘

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Stale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05332001 Date; 06/02/201 3
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Drafled by:

Approved by:

Cleared by:

NEA/PPD: A Sayles, 74184

D{S}: ] Stcinberg
NEA/FQ: ] Feltman
NEAFOQ: M Connelly
SEMEF: D Hale
L/FO: Y Schwartz

NEA/IPA: T Holmstrom
NEA/PPD: M Ratncy
CA/OCS/ACS: M Bemier-Toth
CAJOCS/ACS/MNESCA: VLopatkiewicz
CA/P; RMacray

[4CGA: KY oudlPage

[/AN: L Jacobson

PRM: R Wills

DRL: ] Licberman

EUR: B Glils

F: R Waller

S/, D Rand

D{8): G Rana

CQ Jerusalem: A Reynolds
Emb Tel Aviv; R Harutunian
I0/UNP: A Morrison

[QO/PAQ: K Cooper

USUN/W: W Bass

USUN/NY: M Komnblau

NSC: M Hammer
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{RELEASED IN PART B

Luther, Lorre M

From; Youel Page, Kathryn
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 11:39 AM
To: Macray, Rosemary R
Cel Townley, Stephen G; Dickey, Gordon J, McDonough, Patricia E
Subject: . FW: gaza ameit guidance
Attachmants: Amgcit on Free Geza Flotila 06-04-10.docx
e B6&
Rosemary, thanks, this iooks fine:from L/CA's perspective. | assume we have a PAW for[ o ' m

looping in others In { who have been following this In case they have comments . regar&s, Katy

From: Macray, Rosemary R

Sent;: Friday, June 04, 2010 11:28 AM
To: Youel Page, Kathryn; Gallegos, Adrlana M; Echard, John E Jr
Ce! Dlckey, Gordon )

Subject: RE: gaza amcit guidance

Yes, | had been walting for Input from EUR, but here’s what we have now. Thanks!

Rosemary Muacroy

Media Unjt Chief

Office of Policy Caordination and Public Affairs {CA/P}
U.S. Deportment of State

(202} 647-1488

- . t T e mememim op o e d- - - s b - - e = e . P W mam

From: Youal Page, Kathryn

Sant: Friday, June 04, 2010 10;52 AM

To: Gallegos, Adriaiva M; Macray, Rosemary R; Echard, John E Jr
Cc: Dickey, Gordon )

Subject: gaza amcit guldance

I'm not sure if CA is doing guidance on this today, but if so could you please send to Gordon and me for clearance?
thanks, Katy
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RELEASED IN PART B3]
Luther, Lorre M

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 5:15 PM

To: Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E
Ce: Townley, Stephen G; Sullivan, David J

Subject: FW: Geza fiotllla memo

Attachments: Gaza Flotilla Clash {legal memo}.docx

B5

some addltional edits/comments.[ .

Thanks
Kevin

v w2 aa - St e tEm e e — SRR R e b m—n e

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent! Tuesday, June 01, 2010 4:37 PM

To: Guatln, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A

Cc: Townley, Stephen G; Pomper, Stephen E
Subject; RE: Gaza flotilla memo

A few edits from me attached.

From: Guarin, Marc F

Seant: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 1:04 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H
Cc: Townley, Stephen G; Pomper, Stephien E
Subject: Gaza flotilla memo

Kevin/AP-

Attached is my first stab at a lagal memo on the Gaza flotilla Incldent {largely cobbled together from existing e-mail
strings}. Obviously it still needs some work.,, please feel free to add, modify, correct, and improve as you see fit.

I have to run in with Steve to see Joan now.
Marc

M. F. GUARIN

COR JAGC USN

Attorney Adviser

U.S. Dapartment of State {L/PM)
(202} 647-7563

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Luther, Lorre M RELEASED IN PART B§

From: Mcl.eod, Mary (USUN}

Sent: Monday, Juna 07, 2010 12:48 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Harris, Robert i; Gorove, Katherine M; Townley, Stephen G;
Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Subject: FW: Haaretz; Istael to appoint state panel to investigate Gaza Flotila

This emalt s UNCLASSIFIED.

T T o - . e emke e e e f e e e e e - h = m—— = = - m———

From: Peiton, Erin
Sent: Monday, June 07, 2010 12:44 PM

To: Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group

Subject; Haaretz: Israel to appoint state panel to investigate Gaza Flotilla

HAARETZ.com

Israel to appoint state panel to
investigate Gaza flotilla raid

Senior government source says committee to
comprise top justices, as well as two international
observers.

By Barak Ravld Tags: Israel news Gaza flotilla

Prime Mir;ister Benjamin Netanyahu was expected to anhounce on Monday or Tuesday the creation of a
state panel of inquiry to investigate the Israel Navy's deadly rald of a humanitarian aid fiotitla bound for
the Gaza Strip last week.

A senior source in Jerusalem sald the panel would comprise top justices expertenced in matters of
international and marine law, Two international justices - at ieast one of them American -~ would be
Invited to participate as observers, sald the source,

In addition to investigating the clrcumstances surrounding the Israel Navy's seizure of the Turkish-fagged
Mavi Marmara, the committee will also be charged with loakling inte the legality of Israel's closure of the
Gaza Strip and its naval blockade.

Netanyahu's forum of top seven ministers decided fo create the Interpal Investigative panel on Maonday,
after days of deliberation. An official announcement on the matter was awalting approval from the
attorney general, to ensure that there were no conflicts of interest among the potential members of the

commitfes.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewsr|
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The forum of seven ruled In its decision that the panel would not be allowed to interrogate soldlers or
officers who took part in the commando raid, which left nine Turkish activists dead and several people
wounded. It was not yet clear whether senlor Israel Defense Forces officlals ~ Including IDF Chief of Staff
Gabi Ashkenazi and Israel Navy Commader Eliezer "Chiney" Marom.

The ministers’ decision-comes on the heals of a United Natlons proposal to establish an International
committee comprising representatives of Israel, the U.S. and Turkey to investigate the incident,

Desplte growing International pressyre, Netanyahu had baiked at the proposal, claiming Israel has the
right to Irivestigate itseif.

Erin Pelton | Deputy SP_‘E‘,';EP_EE.S_‘}.‘LE?}' Fareign Media | Bureau of Near Fastern Affairs | US Departiment of State

r: (202} 647-4148 | bb! | Email: PeltonE@state.gov

B6&
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RELEASED IN PART

Luther, Lorre M |BE.

From: Johnson, Clifton M

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 4:08 PM

To! . Harrls, Robert K

Ce: Heinamann, Thomas B; McDonough, Patricia E; Townlsy, Stephen G
Subjoect: FW: Initial dreft: Gaza

Bob,

I've added my edits on top of Stephen's (some of which | tweaked, but you decide how to handle). Once
you've reviewed/commented, it Is ready for Joan.

Best, Cliff

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent; Friday, June 04, 2010 3;16 PM

To: McDonough, Patrlc!a E; Hartis, Robert K; Heinemann, Thomas B; Johnson, Clifton M
Subject: RE: Initlal draft: Gaza

A few reactions for consideration. Thanks, Stephen

From: McDonough, Patricia E

Sant; Friday, June 04, 2010 2:44 PM

To: Harils, Robert K} Heinemann, Thomas B; Townley, Stephen G; Johnson, Clifton M
Subject: Initial draft: Gaza

.‘Cllff suggested | forward to
“you for your input. (He’s at a meeting and wHl return at'about 3:30 to finalize ).

Trish

Patricia E, McDonough
Attorney-Adviser

US Departmont of State

Office of the Legal Adviser (L/LE])
2201 C Street NW

Washington, DC 20520

Telephono (202) 647-6194
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[RELEASED iN PART B5)
Luther, Lorre M

From: Clevgiand, Sarah H

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 12:20 PM

To: Townlay, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E
Subjoct: FW: Israel -Flotilla and bayond
Importance: High

I already forwarded to Jon,

PO et i iy e w ey G = WA e we s L EeEAde mmeerm Aedm ML b % de Rk — sy e A b e em W e e e ua

From: Posner, Michael H _
Sent: Tuesday, Juie 08, 2010 12:05 PM
To: 'Power, Samantha J.'; Feltman, Jeffrey D
y 'Busby, Scott W.'; Graze, Deborah E; Koh, Harold Hongju
Subject: FW: Isragl -Flotitla and beyond
Importance: High

BS

Samantha and Jeff

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senjor Reviawer
1
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Luther, Lorre M [RELEASED IN PART BE B¢

From; Cleveland, Sarah H

Sent; Wednesday, June 02, 2010 11:50 PM

To: Koh, Herold Hongju; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Thessin,
James H

Subject: Fw: |srasl Investigation Options Paper

Attachments: Israel Investigation Options Paper v2.doc

From: Sarah Cleveland |
Yo Cleveland, Sarah H
Sent: Wed Jun 02 23:57:15 2010

Subject: Israel Investigation Options Paper

B6

B5

:_I_made_gng_sught.emhﬁ_,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Luther, Lorre M RELEASED IN PART B3

e DOD-CP,B5,B6 -

From: Donoghue, Joan E

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 9:22 PM

To: Harris, Robert K

Ce: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: Fw: Mesting on issues Relatad to the Flotita tnvestigation

-Hi bh. For this gall tomorrow at 930, any thoughts or papers that | should review, i..,_,_, - SO |

o B ] Thanks
1: DeRosa, Mary B. | - B
: w m@—d—ﬂm" Donoghue, Joan E; {eeremmeena @S, pentagon.mil) <B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Fri Jun 04 20:51:29 2010
Subject: Fw: Meeting on Issues Related to the Flotilla Investigation
[ e T ] B5
Li_,.__,__..____mm_ . ) It is tomorrow AM at 8:30.
From: Zimmerman, Thornas 5, ‘
To: ‘Kb te.gov‘ <Khe y>; "WrightEB@state.gov' <WrightE te.00v>; ] B3DOD-CP
) " I®js.pentagonmil>; | 1@sd.mil @sd.mil>; ‘ses-
o@state. gov <§_§§_g@s;;;gﬂg__yz- Hawkins, Stacey T,; Dirksen, Ward F.; Kahan, Alexandra L.; Ross, Dennis B.; Biinken,

Antony 1.; Mchonoigh, Danis R.; Alhassani, Mehdi K.;. Rhodes, Benjamin J.; Govashiri, Ferlal; Chang, Cindy; Shapiro,
Daniel B., Childress, Latesha D,; Kumat, Prem G.; DeRosa, Mary B,

Cc: DL-OVP-National Security; DL-NSS-LEGAL; DL NSC-NENA

Sent: Fri Jun 04 20:42:06 2010

Subject: Meeting on Issues Related to the Flotilla Investigation

Good evening 7 TJmr. Doniton will host a meeting on Issues related to the Flotilla B5
investigation, tomorrow (6/5) 9:30am, i the Situation Room. SVTC and Call-Ins are welcome. Please conflrm
particlpation as shown below. Thanks.

For Questions, please contact Mary DeRosa

Requested participants:
Joan Donoghue +1
Jeh Johnson +1

Jim Crawford +1
Tony Blinken
Dennis Ross

Dennis McDonough
Bien Rhodes

Dan Shapiro

Prem Kumar

Mary Derosa

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Shaton Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Luther, Lorre M [RELEASED IN PART B3
{DOD-CP,BE,BB —
From: Donoghue, Joan E
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 9:20 PM
Tao: Townley, Stephen G
Subject: Fw: Meeting on issues Related to the Flotllla Investigation
Fyl, mary dr says it is about | told ops that | wd join  BS

by phone and | alerted mary MErand SUggestad hat shetry td get added.
| have laft message for pomper-asking for him as-pius one.

From: Beekman, Philip M

To: Donoghue, Joan E

Sent: Frl Jun 04 21:04:48 2010 _

Subject: FW: Meeting on Issues Related to the Flotilla Investigation

As per your request,
Regards,

Fhilip Beekman
Senfar Watch Officer
Operations Center
Department of State
202-647-1512

From: Zlmmerman, Thomas S, {mg_[tgj T ) T B&
Sant; Friday, June 04, 2010 8:53 PM

To: Khan, Naveed J; Wright, Ellzabeth 8;( _l@is.pentagonmil; LT “t@sd.mil; SES-0; Hawkins, SB3 DOD-CP
T.; Dirksen, Ward F.; Kahan, Alexandra L.; Ross, Dennis B.; Blinken, Antony J.; McDonough, Denis R.; Alhassani, Mehdi
K.; Rhodes, BEnjamin J.; Gavashir, Ferial; Chang, Cindy; Shaplro, Daniel B.; Childress, Latesha D.; Kumar, Prem G.;
DeRosa, Mary B.; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Hartls, Grant T; Rangarajan, Taara A; Pelofsky, Eric J; Johnson, Calista; Hanley,
Monica R; Sullivan, Jacob J

Cc: DL-OVP National Security; DL-NSS-LEGAL; DL-NSC-NENA; DL-NSC-Sulte

Subject: RE: Meeting on Issues Related to the Flotilla Investigation

Hello Again ~ Erica Barks-Ruggles and Jake Sullivan are also welcome to attend.

Additionally, the meeting will be non-secure. Many Thanks.

From: Zimmerman, Thomas S.
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 8:42 PM .
To: 'KhanNJ@state gov'; 'WrightEB@state.gov'; | l@igggmaggn_mﬂ)“[ lesa. mil';
'ses-o@state.gov'; Hawkins, Stacey T.; Dirksen, Ward F., Kahan, Alexandra L.; Ross, Dennis B.; Blinken, Antony 1
McDonough, Benls R.; Alhassani, Mehd! K.; Rhodes, Benjamin }.; Govashiri, Ferlal Chang, C{ndy, Shapliro, Daniel B
Chiidress, Latesha D.; Kumar, Prem G.; DeRosa, Mary B,

Cc: DL-OVP-Natlonal Security; DL-NSS-LEGAL; DL-NSC-NENA

Subject: Mecting on Issues Related to the Flotilla Investigation

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: ‘Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

1
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Good evening o |Mr, Donlon will host a meeting on issues related to the Flotitla B5
investigation, tomerrow {6/5) 9:30am, Tn the Situation Room, SVTC and Call-ins are welcome. Please confirm
participation as shown below. Thanks.

For Questions, please contact Mary DeRosa

Requested participants:
Joan Donoghue +1
Jeh lohnson +1

Jim Crawford +1
Tony Blinken
Dennis Ross

Dennis McDonough
Ben Rhodes

Dan Shapiro

Prem Kumar

Mary Derosa
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[RELEASED [N FULL

Law, Ros¢mary C

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL}
Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 9:21 AM
To: Bass, Warren; Eilts, Colin C; Doutrich, Jack T; Prem G, Kumar, 'Powell, Catherine', Hickey,

Matthew B; Schrank, Alexarider D; Reisser, Weslay J; Martin, Julle B; Razzouk, Kely L;
Gorove, Katharing M; Kolb, Natalle; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar (Algiers); Quinn, Shannon D

Subject: HRC Fiotilla final resolution and vote count
Attachments: Document.pdf _ i
Hi,

The HRC resolution on the flotilla issue 1s attached, it was adopted by 36 yes-8 abstain-1
no (U.5.). The 8 abstainers were; Camercon, Hungary, Poland, Moldova, Korea, S5lovakia,
Ukraine, and Zambia. Gabon did not vote; Libya 1is suspended.

It appears the EU has succeeded in improving the text: 1)the recommendation for the UNSYG to
consider the HRC FFM report on the flotilla issue has been altered - there is now a reference
to the UNSYG panel and the expectation for them to finish their work soon and a call on the
HC to refer her reports and the HRC FFM to the UNSYG (so not tasking the UNSYG directly). 2)
There is a call for HC Pillay to submit a "concluding report” on the matter in the 26th
session,

Thanks,
S5arah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Forelgn Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs
(MLGA)

202-647-08293

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlor Reviewer)
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Covshizring thai the promotion of vespedy for the abligations axisiz front the Thuno and e
other instrumenis onc muier of IEmatione! aw is among the basic Jurpwses BnG poietiple: of L
Unifec Nationg,

Tuking inte ronvicerarion the relevam provisions of intemmtions! humaniarien and e
Fights law,

Empiasizing the impenanee of the safeny and well-bcing of sl civilians. including
humartiirian personnel,

Recalling Humar Riglts Councl resobution 14/1 of 2 June 2010, in which the Counsil decided
to dispatch an independent internationa! fact-finding mission to investigarc violations ol human rights
law and internntional humanitarian law resuliing flom the Israoli attacks on the fiotilla of ships
carrying humanitarian assistance,

Recalling ofso Human Rights Council resolution 15/1 of 29 Scpiember 2010 and 16/20 of 25
March 207 1, in which the Council endorsed the conclusions contained in the report of the independent
intomational fact-finding mission, calied upon oll coneemed parties to ensure the immediate
implementation of the conclusions contained in the report of the fact-finding mission-and requested the
United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights to report on the status of implementation of
those conclusions,

Welcoming the establishmont by the Secretary-Gencral of a pane] of inquiry and recalling that
{ts work has not becn completed,

1. Takes note of the report of (he United Nations MHigh Commissioner for Human Rights;

2. Regres the non-cooperation of the occupying Power, Israch, with the independent
intenntional fact-finding mission on the Gaza Rotilla incidonr;

3. Calls upon concerned parties to ensure the immediate implemontation of the couclusions
contaiied in the report of the fact-finding mission;

4rev. Takes notfe that the Pancl of Inquiry estublished by the Sceretary General is

expeeted to complete its work soon;

4bis. Requests the High Commissioner to bring te the attentian of the Secretary-Genoral
the conclusions contuined i the report of the fact-finding mission, as well as the follow-up
reports;

Svev. Requests the High Commissioner to submit a concluding report on the status of the
implementation of paragraph 3 nbove to the Human Rights Council at its twenticth session:

6. Decides to follow up the implementation af the present resalution at its rwentieth session,
16 June 2011 Fingl Version
REVIEW AUTHORITY: “8haron Ahmad, Senior Reviewsr .
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[RELEASED IN FULL

Law, Rosemary C

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B _
Sent: Wednesday, August 11, 2010 8:64 AM
. To: Gorove, Katherine M
' Subject; Emailing:-clechanovertappad-for-un-fotilla-proba-1

Apparently you have to be over 75 to recelve Israeli appointments to these commlssions.

The message is ready to be sent with the following file or link attachments:

Shortcut to: http://www.haaretz.com/print-edition/news/ciechanover-tapped-for-un-flotilla-
probe-1.3066247

Mote: To protect against computer viruses, e-mall programs may prevent sending or recelving
certain types of file attachments. Check your e-mail security settings to determine how
attachments are handled,

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviswer]
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) RELEASED IN FULL)
Law, Ro{émary C
From: Townley, Stephen G
Sont: Friday, July 30, 2010 2:21 PM
To: Gorove, Katherlne M

Subject: Flotilla

Have we heard further from USUN? Thanks, Stephen

UNCILASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331030 Date: 08/01/2013
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

L aw, Rosemary C

From: Townlay, Stephen G

Sent: Friday, July 30, 2010 3:17 PM
To: Gorave, Katherine M
Subject; flotilla

Can you send me the finai, either on the low ar high side? Thanks! Stephen

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

1
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Law, Rogsemary C

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Friday, July 08, 2010 2:15PM

To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject; FW: LEGAL-#256184-v1-Flotilla_Outiina:doc
Attachments: LEGAL-#256164-v1-Fiotilla_Outline.doc

Kate, this is the latest version.

RELEASED IN
FULL

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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[RELEASED IN PART B

Law, Rosemary C

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Friday, QOctober 14, 2011 12:06 PM
To: Doutrich, Jack T; Bitar, Maher B; Rangaswamy, Roopa; Gragonls, Meghan E; Hutchison,

Stephanie J; Matthews, Theresa J, Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Bass, Warren;, Tess, Carcline;
Ried, Curtis R; Horak, Gall R; Reisser, Wesley J; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M;
Levinson, Jesse S

Cc: Zurcher, Kenneth M
Subject: Claarance: Cousens Palmer Flotiiia.docx
Attachments: 111014 Cousens Palmer Flotilla.docx

Good afternoon,

Attached plez\s_ejind n Q&A for Elizabsth Cousens's confirmation regarding the findings of the Palmer
B5

commission. |

Given the need for input- 1 would ask for substantive comments by COB today, so that T might finalize it for
clearance on Monday.

Much appreciated,
Ken

SBU
This emait is UNCLASSIFIED,

1 )
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Law, Rosemary C

[RELEASED IN PART BS)

From: Banos, Marlano H | )

Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2011 12:23 PM
To: Jacabson, Linda

Ce: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: Fletilla investigations

Linda,

I've put together some points below. | am most famiilar with the HRC piece, Kate may have edits or further

Info on the UN piece and you may know more about the israeli piece,

Hope that helps,

Marlano

United Nations’ Commission of Inquiry (the Palmer Commission)

Israeli Flotilla Investigation:

Israel released the first of two parts of the Turkel Commission report on its investigation,
Israel's independent internal investigation into the Flotilla incident which included two
international observers. The repott absolves the IDF of any wrongdoing and places the
blame for violence and the deaths of the nine civilians on the Turkish non-governmental
organization, fHI, which was one of the flotilla’s main sponsors.

Publically, we welcomed the Israeli completion of the report and their submission of it to
the Palmer Commission. The second part of the Turkel Commission’s investigations is
scheduled to be released in the early summer, it will examine the Israeli legal system
response to allegations of violations of the law of armed conflict and crimes against
humanity, and judge whether it comports with international law.

Turkish Response and Investigation

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05331031 Date: 08/01/2013

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Revigwer

1

StateDept004804

B5 |




-1 UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331031 Date: 08/01/2013

¢ Turkey immediately criticized the Turke! Commission report on the Flotilla and
continues to pursue the issue both in New York with the Palmer Commission and at the
HRC in Geneva. The Turkel Commission findings contrasted sharply with those of the
Turkish National Commission, which refeased its final report in February. The Flotilla
incident has become the central point of contention in Israel and Turkey's strained
relationship,

o The Turkish view the HRC, which they strongly support, as completely separate from the
Palmer Commission. The USG position is that that Palmer Commission is the primary
investigation process for the international community, giving it the opportunity to fully
review the circumstances surrounding the incident.

Human Rights Council Investigations:

» The United States was opposed to Resolution 14/1, which handed this Fact-Finding
Mission a flawed mandate—something the Mission itself acknowledged in its report.
Israel did not cooperate with the Mission.

» The Mission’s Report essentially drew the opposite conclusions than the subsequent
Israeli report, including that a humanitarian crisis exists in Gaza, that the blockade is
unlawful, that Israeli actions in response to Hamas rocket fire may constitute collective
punishment, that the conduct of the Israeli military is disproportionate and “totally
unnecessary,” and that several violations of international law had becn committed,
including torture and willful killing.

e We have also opposed subsequent “flotilla resolutions™ at the HRC which have endorsed
the conclusions of the report and called for the High Commissioner to report on their
implementation at the next HRC, To Turkish annoyance, we have consistently repeated
that we do not believe further HRC action is watranted, and that the Palmer Commission
is the primary process for the international cornmunity to review this incident,

2
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[RELEASED iN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Gorove, Katherlng M

Sent: friday, December 10, 2010 6:31 PM
To:. . Schwartz, Jonathan 8

Subject: flotitla terms of ref.

Attachments: Doc.doex

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer,

i
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) UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331051 Date: 07/31/2013 ™7

Law, Rosemary C RELEASED IN PART B5,Bg)

From: Banos, Marianc H

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 4:55 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Kathering M; Perina, Alexandra H; Martin, Julie B
Subject: FW: Draft FFM Resolution

Attachments: REV_1_{2)[1).doe

FYI

From; Andris, Matthew R

Sent; Thursday, September 23, 2010 4:37 PM

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacab; Lapenn, Jessica; Sutphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mara;
Khoury-Kincannon, Sghar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sehar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D

{USUN); Germaln, Ellen J (USUN); Masiiko, Barbara 1 (USUN); Banos, Marlano H; Gassidy, Joseph P~

Cc: Honlgstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David ;[ ] B
} Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey O;

' | Donahos, Efleen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le

I
Mon, Christopher J; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan D
Subject; Draft FFM Resolution

All;
BS

Best,

Matthew R. Andris

Bureau of International Organization Affairs
Office of Human Rights
(202) 647-5892 - office
] B6
andrismr@state gov

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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RELEASED IN PART
1.4(B),B1,B5,1.4(D),B6|

Law, Rosema_r! C

From; Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Tuesday, Juna 08, 2010 11:27 AM

To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: FW: Fiotllla to Gaza Materials

Attachments: LEGAL-#196110-v11-lsrael__best_practices__|Hl__non-paper.doc; LEGAL-#195490-v2-

Cormmisslon_of_knquiry_draft.docx

1 think you already have these ~ related to Posner trip.

' From: Dolan, JoAnn

' Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 10:46 AM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Ce: Jacobson, Linda
Subject: FW: Flotlila to Gaza Materials

From: Harris, Robert K

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:48 AM
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Marlano H; Pomper, Stephen E; Perlna, Alexandra H; Townlay, Stephen G
Cc; Jacobison, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M
Subject: RE: Flotllia to Gaza Materials

Froni: Dolan, JoAnn

Sant: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 8:39 AM
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Marlano H; Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H; Townley, Stephen G
Cc: Jacobson, Linda

Subject: FW: Flotllia to Gaza Materials

From; Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Wednasday, June 02, 2010 2:26 AM
Ta: Dolan, JoAnn

Cct Jacobson, Linda

Subject: Fw: Flotilla to Gaza Materjals

|

Thanks.

Jon Classified by DAS, AJGIS, DoS on + 11/08/2012 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL
~ Reason:21.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declagsify on: 06/02/2030

e = rem e 1
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad Senlor Reviewey]
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From: r
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent; Tue Jun 01 23:46:21 2010
Subject: RE: Flotilla to Gaza Materials

Jon,

It would be very good to speak to you. Not sure what time | will be back in tsrael on Thursday morning. Do you have an
Israeli cell no { can reach you on?

I attach a summary of the State's response to a HCJ petition on the flotilla.
Best.r

[Schwartz, Jonathan B [mailto:SchwartzIB@state.gov :From
Wednesday, June 02, 2010 12:40 AM :Sant

Taub Daniel :To

Re: Flotilla to Gaza Materials :Subject

Thank§ |l @men route 1o Israel and may have time Thursday morning if convanient. (I will be staying In Jerusalem

and am not plEnning to join Mitchell for that moming's activities.)
- Regards,
Jon

From:[__ o
To: kohh@state,gov <kohh@state.gov>; Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Tue Jun 01 15:39:15 2010

Subject: Flotilla to Gaza Materlals

Harold, many thanks for your time and insights today. Following our conversation here is some initial background
materlal about the flotilla incident, which | hope will be useful to you. | wili make sure you are copied on significant
material as it becomes available,

Jon, Hope all is well with you, Copying this to you at Harold's suggestion. Hopé to speak soon,

||

VIDEQS

1, IOF Spokesperson viden:

The Israel Navy warns flotilla that the Gaza region is closed to maritime traffic, and invites the ships to enter
Ashdod port to transfer humanitarian aid.

http:/ fwwv, youtube .com /watch?v=P5iDIQr595k

Z. . iDF Spokesperson Znd video taken from helicopter

UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331087 Date: 07/31/2013
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http: / fwww. youtube, com/watchfv=bll 1 2KW-XyZE

and ane more by the IDF Navy

hitp: / fwwyr. youtube. com /watchivayphfyNOdgiB & NR=1
3. Hamas is behind hurnan rights vielations clips:

http:/ /www.youtube,com/watchiv=bS$i3koQ10h4 -

4, Channel 10 clips with 2 main points;
1. The flotilla mob attacks soldiers and try to take weapon from one of them while stabbing
him with a knife.
2. 10 hours before the takeover they are calling Kaybahr ya yabud which basically means kill
the Jews.

Click here to download the video: htips:/ /www.yousendit.com/download/dXFYWGJJYXUCWRFQIEIPQ
Another video with the stabbing

http: / /wyvw.nrg.co.ilfonline/1/ART2/ 114/ 294 btmlzhp=1&loca2Btmp=2454

5. MFA CLIPS
http:/ /www.youtube.com/watch?v=5wlWcNXzst|

Medla coverage;

http: / /www. justjournalism.com/media-analysis/view/peace-activists-or-vigient-attackers-how-the-media-narrative-
on-flotilia-incident-is-shaping-up

Regarding claims of israel violating Laws of the seg click here

http://blog.camera.org/archives/2010/05/ny_times_fiotilla_coverage_mis.htm!{

and legat update by MFA

"B
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
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[RELEASED JN PART B8
Law, Rosemary C
From: Pomper, Stephen E
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 9:05 PM
To: Guarin, Marc F; Harrls, Robert K; Baumart, Kevin A; Gorove, Katherine M
Subject: FW: Gaza email
Attachments; Gaza vd.docx

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 9:01 PM

To: Donoghue, Jozn E

Cc: Pomper, Stephen E; Cleveland, Sarah H, Eichensehr, Kristen E; Jacobson, Linda
Subject: Gaza emall

Joan, Attached and pasted helow for your review Is one further iteration of the proposed emall, reflecting comments
from various offices. The kev difference Is that based on discussion with Steve and Llndal ]

{ n | Thanks, Stephen

J

Dear Jake--

PTVIEW AHITUADITV. Shavan nk Crniar Dnuinur
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[ hops you find this helpful. Please let me know if you have any questions,
Regards,

Joan
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[RELEASED I PART B5,56

Law, R_oaemalx‘ r C

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1:67 PM

To: Jacebson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Parina, Alexandra H
Subject: FW: Reclear HRC 16 FFM Statement

Attachments: HRG 15 Flotilia Intervention. docx

Please let mie know if you have any comments by dpm.

From: Andris, Matthew R

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1;45 PM

To: Khanna, Melanle J; Doutrich, Jack T; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Gregonis, Meghan E; Banos, Mariano H; Johnston-
Gardner, Sarah R {DRL); Bass, Watren; Masliko, Barbara J (USUN)

Subject: Reclear HRC 15 FFM Statemient

All,

Due to the fact that {

] Please reclear by Coﬁnfdﬁ_av.

Matthew R, Andris

Bureau of International Organization Affairs
Office of Human Rights
{202} 647-5892 - office
T |- cell
andnsmr@state.pov B6

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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[RELEASED IN PART B

Law, Rosemary ¢

From: Schwartz, Jongthan B

Sent: Tuasday, Octobar 26, 2010 4:38 PM
To: Gorove, Kathering

Subject: FW: Research on o
Attachments: isragl Flotilta, pdf

Here's some general background on| | I was unaware of this summer intern research project, though 1 am listed
as an addressee!

From: Grosh, Lisa J.

Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2010 4:11 PM
To: Schwartz, Joriathan B

Cc: Kovar, Jeffrey D

Subject: Researchon|

Here Is a paper that one of our Interns prepared this summer that includes some discussion of [ . I _ . 7

Lisa

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASED IN
Law, Rosemary C FULL
From: Baumen, Kavin A _
Sent: Thursday, Juna 10, 2010 11,11 AM
To: Banos, Mariano H; Forbes, Cariton E; Gorove, Katherine M
Subject; RE: gaza -- Slate Parties to LOS Convantion
Attachments: Gaza - HRC EOV remarks.docx

This wilt at Ieast save you helf the trouble,..

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 11:10 AM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Forbes, Carlton E; Garave, Katherine M
Subject: RE: gaza -- State Parties to LOS Convention

Yes. Carlton, can you please copy this Into a document and link it to our interactive?
Thanks,

Mariano

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 11:07 AM

To: Banos, Mariand H; Forbes, Cariton E; Gorove, Katheting M
Stutbjects RE: gaza -- State Parties to LOS Convention

This is It, right?
htto://geneva.usmission.gov/2010/06/02/hre-resolution/

If 50, I'm set...no more assistance needed.
Thx, Kevin

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 10:00 AM

To: Forbes, Carlton E; Gorove, Kathering M; Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: FW: gaza -- State Parties to LOS Convention

Carlton,

I can't seem to find the final HRC EOV delivered on the Flotilla rez. Can you send it to this group and add it to the
Interactive doc {it's prob on the mission website).

Tharks,

M

From: Baumert, Kevin A
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 9:47 AM
To: Banos, Mariano H; Gorove, Kathetine M-
Subject: RE: gaza -- State Partles to LOS Conventlon
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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Yes, | have Welff's remarks...but don't seem to have a final copy of the HRC EOV. [f you can provide, that would be
great...

Thanks}

Kevin

From: Banos, Marlano H

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 8:05 AM

To: Baumert; Kevin A; Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: RE: gaza -- State Parties to LOS Convention

Wolff’s statements and our intervention at the HRC are the only thing | can think of. 1 think you have the former, I'll find
you the [atter. This Is moving fast, though, s0.you may need to come up with updated points.

Mariano

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 6:55 AM

To: Gorove, Katherlne M; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H
Subject: gaza -- State Partlas to LOS Conventlon

Next week Fll be at the UN In NY for “SPLOS” — mtg of States Partias to the Law of the Sea Conventlon, Itls entirely
possible, If not likely, that Turkey or others wil raise the Gaza flotifla issue and try to make a big stink of it {as they've
done at IMO and elsewhere)...in which case USDEL may need to respond.

Do we have a set of approved TPs or guidance for what to say/do whenthen comes up In UN or other fora? I havea
sénse of what they might be, but | don’t think )'ve seen anything...

Thanks,
Kevin
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RELEASED iN FULL]

http://geneva.usmissiongov/2010/06/02 /hre-resolution/

Statement by the Delegation of the United States of Amarlea

Delivered by Ambassador Efleen Chiamberlain Donahoe Human Rights Council
14th Session, Geneva, June 2, 2010

EQV: The Grave Attacks by Israeli Forces Against the Humanitarian Boat Convoy

We regret having to call a vote and vote nc on this resolution. It is our hope that, over time, this
Counicil will be able to unite around balanccd and appropriate r¢sponses to urgent situations that
deserve our attention. We have engaged intently in discussions here in Geneva and in forums
around the world in response to the events addressed in this resolution, and are deeply committed
to working with partners to ensure a full and appropriate response to this incident and the
circumstances that led to it.

As noted in our statement in this chamber yesterday, the United States is deeply disturbed by the
recent violence and regrets the tragic loss of life and injuries suffcred among those involved in
the incident aboard the Gaza-bound ships. We condemn the acts that resulted in the loss of at
least ten lives and many wounded, and we express our condolences to their families.

We call attention to the Security Council statement adopted on June 1. It is important to ensure
a prompt, credible, impartial, and transparent investigation. Israel has a very strong interest in
conducting such an investigation that meets international standards and exposes al} the facts.
There are, of course, a number of ways to ensure such an outcome,

The United States continues to be deeply concerned by the suffering of civilians in Gaza and the
deteriorating humanitarian and human rights situation there. The situation in Gaza is
unsustainable and unacceptable. In line with the Security Council statement adopted yesterday,
we stress the need for sustaingd and regular flow of goods and provision and distribution of
humanitarian access throughout Gaza, and we will continue our work towards this end while
bearing in mind the Government of Israel’s legitimate security concerns.

In the context of today’s debate, it is important to once again stress that the only viable solution
to the Israeli-Palestinian conflict is an agreement, negotiated between the partics, that ends the
oecupation that began in 1967 and fulfills the aspirations of both parties for independent
homelands through two states for two peoples, Israel and an indépendent, contiguous, and viable
state of Palestine, living side by side in peace and security.

Unfortunately, the resolution before us rushes to judgment on a set of facts that, as our debate

over the last day makes clear, are only beginning to be discovered and understood. It creates an

international mechanism before giving the responsible government an opportunify to investigate

this incident itself and thereby risks further politicizing a sensitive and volatile situation. We

understand the impetus to respond quickly to a troubling set of cvenits. But we have an

obligation to determine facts and make considered judgments on how to best address what is a .
complex and difficult situation. '

For these reasons, we must vote against this resolution,

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Abmad, Senior Reviewer
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Law, Rosemary C

- [RELEASED IN FULL)

From:

Sent:

To;

Subject:
Attachments:

From: Mcleod, Mary

Buchwald, Todd F

Friday, Ootober 15, 2010 1:55 PM

Mcl.eod, Mary; Gorove, Katherina M; Daley, John D

RE: Gaza flotlla and the ICC )

RE: Tiotilla Incident - Comoros-flagged vessel 7; RE: flotilla incident -~ Comoros-fiagged

vessel 7

Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 1:45 PM _
To: Buchwald, Todd F: Gorove, Katherine M; Daley, John D
Subject: Gaza flctilla and the ICC

I untierstand some emails were floating around on this yesterday, Would you mind forwarding them, Just for my
information, ! don't intend to meddle, | malntain a perverse interast in the fiotilla, after my twelve hours in captivity at

the UN working on the PRST,

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Sanior Reviewed]
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[RELEASED IN FULL)

Law, Rosemary C

From: Martin, Julie B
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 11:20 PM
To! Elits, Colin C; Masiiko, Barbara J (USUN); Bags, Warran; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA}Y, Relsser,

Wasley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Meghan E; Khoury-
Kingannon, Sahar (Algiers); Hickey, Matthew B;: Carey, Laura N (DRL}; Gorove, Kathering M;
Ingber, Rebecca M; Ried, Curtis R; Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Danlel B; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Prem G. Kumar; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Gallndo, David R
Subject; RE: HRC item 7 and flofilla USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26
Attachments: 05-26-11 HRC item 7 and flotilla staternents.dock

One additional chonge for L/HRR, with which | cleor.

From: Eilts, Colin €

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 6:57 PM

To! Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Bass, Warren; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Relsser, Waesley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R
(DRL): Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonls, Meghian E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL);
Martin, Julie B; Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M; Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Richardson, Evic N; Baer, Daniel B;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Prem_G._Kumar@nss.ecp.gov'; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Slcade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject: RE: HRC Item 7 and flotilla USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

Clear with IPA’s edits.

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 3:14 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Relsser, Wesley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (BRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts,
Colin C; Gregonls, Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Martin, Julie B;
Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M; Ried, Curtls R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Daniel B; Cassidy, Joseph P;
‘Prem_G._Kumar@nss.cop.gov'; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject: RE; HRC Item 7 and flotlila USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

| added a few changes on top of Warren's edits to the flotilla interactive remarks.

I did not edit the flotilla EOV, because | would really like to see the Turkish resolution before commenting.

sBy
This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Bass, Warren
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 12:52 PM
To: Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Relsser, Wesley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Colin C;

i
fl@féﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ':—_sharon Ahmad, Sep for Re\_{!g\_gv_e_lj
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Gregonls, Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sehar; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Martin, Julie B; Gorove,
Katharine M; Ingber, Rebecca M; Masilko, Barbara J {USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Daniel B;
Cassidy, Joseph P; 'Prem_G,_Kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject; RE: HRC Item 7 and flotilla USG statements - clearance réquest COB Thursday, May 26

D'oh! With attachment this time,

From: Sachar, Aion (NEA/IPA)

‘Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 12:50 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Relsser, Wesley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Elits, Colin C; Gregonls,
Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahat; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL}; Martin, Julle B; Gorove, Katherine M;
Ingber, Rebecca M; Masliko, Barbiara J (USUN); Rled, Cuttls R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Danlel B; Cassidy,
Joseph P; 'Prem_G._Kurmar@nss.eop.gov'; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cce: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subfect: Re: HRC Item 7 and fiotilla USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

+ julia reed

From: Bass, Warren

Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 12:43 PM

To: Relsser, Wesley J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Calin C; Gregonis, Meghan E; Sachar,
Alon {NEAJIPAY; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Martin, Julie B; Gorove, Katherine
M; Ingber, Rebacca M; Masliko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtls R (USUN); Richardson, Erlc N; Beer, Daniel B; Cassidy,
Joseph P; 'Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov' <Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov>; Zurcher, Kenneth M '

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galinde, David R

Subject: RE; HRC Item 7 and flotilla USG statemnents - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

A few initial suggestions from USUN/W too.
Warren

From: Relsser, Wesley J

Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 11:59 AM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Eiits, Colin C; Gregonis, Meghan E; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA);
Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Bass, Warren; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Martin, Julle B; Gorove, Katherine M;
Ingber, Rebecca M; Masilka, Barbara J (USUNY); Ried, Curtls R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Danlel B; Cassidy,
Joseph P; ‘Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M {DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject: RE: HRC Item 7 and flotifla USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

Soma initial edits from 10 attached. Adding Ken Zurcher for the Flotilla language as well.

SBU
This email 13 UNCLASSIFIED.

From; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL)
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 11:19 AM
To: Relsser, Wesley J; Doutrich, Jack T; Ellts, Colin C; Gregonls, Meghan E; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Khoury-Kincannon,
Sahar; Bass, Warren; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Martin, Julle B; Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M;
Masliko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Baer, Danlel B; Cassidy, Joseph P;
'Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov'

2
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Cc; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R
Subject: HRC Item 7 and flotilla USG statements - clearance request COB Thursday, May 26

Heilo all,

it's that time again! Attached please find the USG statements at the HRC on item 7 and the High Commissioner’s report
on the flotilla issue. We have a confirmation from the Palestinian charge that they to not plan to run any resolutions,
including Goldstone during this session. However, we have not heard whether the Turkish government will go forward
with another folow-up resclution on flotilla or not. I've Included a statement-on a possible resolution for clearance so
Geneva s prepared in the case that there isa resolution. Most of this lariguage will look vary familiar, On item 7,1
included some updated language from the POTUS statement.

Please provide your clearance no later than COB tomorrow, Thursday May 26.

Thank you,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Offlcer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor [DRL)
Office of Multllateral and Glabal Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293

This emall s UNCLASSIFIED.

3

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05331012 Date: 07/31/2013

StateDept04824




UNGLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05331047 Date: 07/31/2013

RELEASED iFﬁ:_J[j_] NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
T REDACTED
Law, Rosemary C
From: Dalay, John D
Sent: Friday, July 20, 2010 4:14 PM
To: Johnson, Darin E; Gorove, Katharine M; Buchwald, Todd F
Ge; Legal-UNA-DL
Subject: RE: top §

From! Jehnson, Darlp €

Sent: Friday, July 30, 2010 4:13 PM

To: Gorove, Katherine M; Buchwald, Todd F
C¢: Legal-UNA-DL

Subject: RE: top 5

[l

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Friday, July 30, 2010 4:10 PM
Tot Buchwald, Todd F

Cci Legal-UNA-DL

Subject: top 5

Todd — here is top 5 for you to send forward.

Flotilla: Sending forward today the Note to § from you on the US and international responses

_aver the coming months_ta the Gaza flotilla incident given their lesal imnlications.........

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlor Reviewar]
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[RELEASED IN FULL)

Law, Rosemary C

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2011 6,28 PM
go: (Gorove, Katherine M

ubject; RE: Turkel, Turkish investig?
Hi there,

I don't think the USG has a copy of the Turkish ane, I've asked for it. | haven't written up one on Turkel but I've read
most of it. Heven't been asin to it as we will be on the second part, But we do have a great intern here who just read it
too In prep for the next flotilla and can write up something tomorrow for you, |did do a summary of the HRC flotilla
report, would that be helpful? | think Mariano is looking for something too, are you both assigned the same task? If
there Is somathing specific you’re looking for let me know. | think Jan in Emb. Tel Aviv is attending the sessions and
wrote a good cable recently on the IDF testimony last week, My understanding Is that once Turkel Il is done {no idea
when that will be according the GOI which 1 believe because Turkel Is very independent) than the Palmer will finish, but
I've never been able to get a straight answer on this from USUN. If you do, let me know!

1 did find a super short item on Turke! which [ sent to Posner back in January:

(V) Israel’s Turkel Commission Report on Flotiiia Incident Releasad: Part 1 of the Turkel Commission's report was
released yesterday. It examined three issues: 1) the legality of the naval blockade imposad on Gaza, 2} the legality of the
actions carried out by the IDF in order to enforce the blockade In accordande with international law, 3)the actions of the
flotilla organizers and participants. They clear the [DF of wrong doing during the May 31 flotifla incldent and conclude
that the blockade of Gaza is legal. They found that some IHH flotilla organizers planned on provoking a violent exchange
with the 1DF and did not carry humanitarian supplies, We expect the second part, which will analyze Israel’s
Investigation system to follow in February. in NY, the UNSYG appointed “Palmer panel” will now review Israef's report
and release thelr interim report in February. Mission Geneva reports that Turkey has already told High Commissioner
Piltay that the report is a disappointment, which implies that HRC March follow-up action can be expected.— Slohnston-
Gardner

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affalrs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human RIghts and Labor {DRL)
Office of Multidateral and Global Affairs [MI.GA)
202-647-0293

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

Fram: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2011 5:18 PM
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL)
Subject: Turkel, Turkish investig?

Did you ever do summaries of these Investigations. If so, would love to see them. | have to write a
short summary for Hareld and may crib from yours, Any news on when the Palmer Commission is
expected to issue areports

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharen Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
i 1
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Monday, August 09, 2010 3:17 PM
To: Forbas, Carlton E

Ce: Gorove, Kathering M

Subject: Rice Statement

Cariton,

Can you add this to the Flotlila doc if it’s not there?

htto://usun.state.gov/briefing/statements/2010/145549 htm

Thanks,

Mariano

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlor Reviewer
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[RELEASED iN PART B8
Law, Rosemary C

From: Schwarte, Jonathan B

Sent: Tuesday, August 10, 2010 2:19 PM

To: : Gorove, Kathering M

Subject: RE; Fwd: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza fiotilla: Internationa! Independent Fact-finding Mission

opens in Genava

B&

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent; Tuesday, August 10; 2010 1:47 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: FW: Fwd: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza flotiila: International Independent Fact-finding Misslon opens in Geneva

Fram: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Tuesday, August 10, 2010 1;45 PM

To: Gorove, Katherine M; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Subject: FW: Fwd: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza flotilla; International Independent Fact-finding Misslon opens in Geneva

FYl

From: Khanna, Melanie J
Sent: Tuesday, August 10, 2010 1:23 PM
To: Donahoe, Eileen C; King, Betty; 10-HR-DL; Cassidy, Joseph P; Banos, Marlano H; Simon, Jennifer ); Nossel, Suzanne

F
Subject; Fw: Fwd: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza fiotifla: International Independent Fact-finding Mission opens in Geneva

Trﬂalustln| — o _ et e senms H

From: Aharon Leshno Yaar <ronnyaarl@gmall.com>
To: Khanna, Melanig J

Sent: Tue Aug 10 13:03:02 2010 _
Subject: Fwil: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza fiotilla: International Independent Fact-finding Mission opans in Genava

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Hillel Neuer” <hcneuer@unwatch,org>
Date: 10 xyov 2010 18:54:34 GMT+02:00

To: <ambassador@geneva.mfa.gov.il>
Ce: "Taub Daniel™ <danielt@mfa.gov.il>

o UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Dog¢ No. C053309968 Date. 07/31/2013 e
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Subject: PRESS RELEASE - Gaza flotilla: International Independent Fact-finding Mission
opens in GGeneva

FY# below —

Hillat

Press Release

10 August 2010

Gaza flotilla: International Independent Fact-finding Mission opens in Geneva

GENEVA - The internationa! independent fact-finding mission of high-level experts appointed
by the President of the Human Rights Council to inquire into the Gaza flotilla incident on 31
May 2010 held its inaugural meeting at the Palais Wilson in Geneva yesterday.

Further to an urgent debate held on 1 and 2 June the Human Rights Council decided to dispatch
an independent fact-finding mission to determine whether any violation of international law,
international humanitarian and human rights law had taken place.

The Mission of hiph-level experts is chaired by Judge K. Hudson-Phillips, former judge of the
International Criminal Court in the Hague, arid has two other eminént mombers. Sir Desmond de
Silva, Queen’s Counsel, was Chiief Prosecutor of the Sierra Leone War Crimes Tribunal and Ms.
Shanthi Dairiam, human rights expert of Malaysia and former member of the Commiittee on the
Elimination of Discrimination against Women.

The Chairman indicated that in approaching the task the Mission had been given the authority to
scttle its own terms of reference taking into account the resolution of the Council. He indicated
that the Mission interprets the resolution as requesting it to ascertain the facts surrounding the
flotilla incident and then give an opinion as to whether there had been any violation of the law.

Hudson-Phillips emphasized that the Mission intended to approach its task in a totally unbiased
manner, free from any assumptions or prejudgments.

The Chairman of the Mission noted that the Mission's principal task is to condugt an inquiry into
2
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legal issues and possible violations of international humanitarian and human rights law, He
hoped that the Mission would be permitted full access to all relevant persons and material in all
of the countries concemed, so as to enable the Mission to ascertain the proper factual basis for its
legal opinion.

To this end, the Mission intends to make contacts with all ambassadors of the countries involved
in the coming days. It is its intention to travel to the region in order t¢ interview persons and
gather first-hand information as far as possible,

As requested by the Human Rights Council’s resolution, the Mission will present its repott at the
next session of the Council in September.

(*) See the Resolution a&op!ed by the Human Rights Counci};
htp:/fwww2.ohchr.org/englis ie neil/docs/ dsession/RES, 14,1 AEV. pdf

For further media information, please contact flotiflaffin@onchr.org
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[RELEASED IN PART B

Law, Rosemary C

From: Kim, John J (Kimm)

Sent: Friday, Gctober 16, 2010 3:42 AM

To: Daley, John D; Johngon, Karen K, Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne

Ge: Buchwald, Todd F, Simonoff, MarkA Townlay, Stephen G; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina,
Alexandra H

Sublect: RE: flotilla ingident -- Comoros-flagged vessel ?

ohn{ " ] o ]

[ T | Best, iohin

SBU

This emall Is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Daley, John D
Sent; Thursday, October 14, 2010 9:31 PM
To: Kim, John J {Kimm); Johnson, Karen K; Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne

Cc: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Townley, Stephen G; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H

Subject: fiotilla Incident ~- Comoros-flagged vessel 7

John/Karen -

The press is reporting today that lawyers for the families of those killed by Israeli forces in connection with the Flotifla

Incident this spring have sent a letter to the ICC Prosecutor urging him to take action.|

Linda/Anne do you know if there is any truth to the aEEegatuon that the ship was registered In Comoros?| i

Thanks. REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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[RELEASED IN PART B&|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Powell, Catherine [Catherine_B_Powsli@nss.eop.gov]
Sent: Wadnesday, June 08, 2011-8:57 AM
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Prem G, Kumar; Ellts, Coiin C; Masilko, Barbara J

{USUNY; Bass, Warren; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Reisser, Wesley J; Doutrich, Jack T;
Gregonis, Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar {Alglers), Hickay, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N
{DRL); Gorova, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M; Ried, Curtis R; Richardson, Eric N; Zurcher,
Kenneth M; Gregonis, Meghan E; Cassldy, Joseph; Busby, Scott W; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL);
Hickey, Matihew B; Baer, Lauren E; Haldemari, Willlam € (P); Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: MRC Flotllla resclution, USG vote and EQV

Attachments: Us EQV on Flotilla HRC 17 resolution.docx

Just one small additional edit on top of Prem's. All clear for NSS.

Thanks.
Catherine

Catherine Powell

Oirector for Human Rights

Office of Multilateral Affairs and Human Rights Natienal Security Council
(202) 456-9141 (general)

(202) 456-9145 {direct)

cpowell@nss.eop.gov (emall)

----- Original Message-----

From: lohnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL) [mailto:lohnstonGardnerSR@state.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, June @8, 2011 9:22 AM

To: Kumar, Prem G.; Ellts, Colin C; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Bass, Warren} Sachar, Alon
{NEA/IPA); Relsser, Wesley J; Doutrich, Jack T; Gragonis, Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar;
Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M; Ried, Curtis
R {(USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Zurcher, Kenneth M; Gregonis, Meghan E; Cassidy, Joseph;
Powell, Catherine; Busby, Scott W; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Hickey, Matthew B; Baer, Lauren E;
Haldeman, William E (P); Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: HRC Flotilla resclution, USG vote and EOV

Thank you. Will include.
This emaill 1s UNCLASSIFIED

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affalrs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Muman Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs
(MLGA)

202-647-0293

----- Original Message---w+

From: Kumar, Prem G. [mallto:Prem_G._Kum2r@nss.eop.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, June @8, 2011 5:16 AM

To! Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Ellts, Colin C; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Bass, Warren;
Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Relsser, Wesley }; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Meghan E; Khoury-
Kincanhon, Sahar; Hickey, Matthew B; Carey, Laura N (DRL); Goroveé, Katherina M; Ingber,
Rebecca M; Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Richardson, Eric N; Zurcher, Kenneth M; Gregonis, Meghan g;
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Cassidy, Joseph; Powell, Catherine; Busby, Scott W; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Hickey, Matthew B;
Baer, Lauren E; Haldeman, wWilliam E (P}; Lapenn, Jeéssica
Subject: RE: HRC Flotilla resolution, USG vote and EQV

Thanks, Prem

----- Original Message-----

From; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL) [mailto:JohnstonGardnerSR@state,gov]

Sent: Wednesday, June @8, 2811 8:58 AM

To: Eilts, Colin C; Masilko, Barbara ] (USUN); Bass, Warren; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Reisser,
Wesley 1; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Meghan E; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Hickey, Matthew B;
Carey, Laura N (DRL); Gorove, Katherine M; Ingher, Rebecca M; Rled, Curtls R (USUN);
Richardson, Eric N; Kumar, Prem G.; Zurcher, Kenneth M; Gragonis, Meghan E; Kumar, Prem G.;
Cassidy, Joseph; Powell, Catherine; Busby, Scott W Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Hickey, Matthew B;
Baer, Lauren E; Haldeman, William E (P); Lapenn, Jesslca

Subject: HRC Flotilla resolution, USG vote and EOV

Hi all,

We have just received the Turkish flotilla resolution for this session. It 1s very similar
to previous resolutions in the HRC, It calls for continued debate at the 2@th Session and
encourages the UNSYG to take the HRC FFM report and the HC's reports into consilderation.

Thank you,
sarah

SBY
This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) office of Multilateral and Global Affairs
(MLGA)

202-647-0293

----- Original Message-----

From: Khanna, Melanig J

Sent: Wednesday, June B8, 2011 8:85 AM

To: IO-HR-DL; Nossel, Suzanne F; Martin, Julie B; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Sicade,
Lynn M (DRL); Busby, Scott W; 'Powell, Catherine’

Cc: Donahoe, Elleen C; Genava HRC 17; Griffiths, Douglas M

Subject: draft flotilla reso

The Turks will table a flotilla resolution, and the draft they've shared with others so far
1s attached (apologles that it scanned upside down-gasiest to read 1f you print). As you can
see, there are hardly any changes as compared with the prior 2 resolutions on implementation
of the FFM conclusions. The Turkish delegate told me this morning that they are including OP
4 about the SYG taking the FFM conclusions into consideration because it 1s "logical” to them
that he should consider both the Geneva FFM and Palmer to the extent he is considering a

2
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further response of some kind. They've also chosen the 2@th session for the next follew up so
as to give a substantial breathing period to see if the Israells come towards them on apology
and compensation issues. Turkish colleague said to me “of course we know you will vote no"
and they expect us to be alone in doing so.

Melanie ). Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.5, Mission to the U.N, and
Other International Organizations
+41-22-749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

This email is UNCLASSIFIED
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[RELEASED IN PART Bb)

Law, Rosemary C

From: Schwarlz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:57 PM

To: Gorova, Katherine M

Subfect: RE: Isresli Government decision establiishing Indepandent Public Commitiee

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:55 PM

To: Schwarlz, Jonathan B

Subject: RE; Israell Government decision establishing Independent Public Committee

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:42 PM

To: Harris, Robert K; Gorove, Kathetine M; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Banos, Marfano H; Pomper, Stephen E;
Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Johnson, Clifton M

Subjact: FW: Israeli Government declsion establishing Independent Public Committee

From: McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:38 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G; Donoghue, Joan E

Subject: Fw: Israeli Government decision establishing Independent Public Committee

In case you haven't seen this yet.

e ‘ A eew e e P T L B s e L e T B R

From. Schedfbauer, Amy W

To: Masllko, Barbara J (USUN); Germain, Elten J (USUN); McLeod, Mary (USUN); Wolff, Alex D (USUN); Bass, Warren;
Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Cousens, Elizabeth (USUN); Delaurentls, Jeffrey A (USUN)

Cc: Clark; Linda R (USUN), Chang, Min (USUN)

Sent: Mon Jun 14 15:33:02 2010

Subject: Israeli Government decision establishing Independent Public Committee

Flere's the decision, as received from the lsraeli mission,

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

!fwﬁw AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Revi
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Government Establishes Independent Public Committee
(Communicated by the Prime Minister's Office)
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At the start of the 57th Government Meeting, the Prime Minister said:

"In consultation with Justice Minister Yaakov Neeman and Attorney General Yehuda Weinstein, 1 am,
today, submitting to the Cabinet a draft decision on establishing a special, independent public
commission to inquire into the events of 31.5.10,

Two main principles guided us in proposing the establishrment of the commission. First is maintaining
IDF soldlers' freedom of action-and the credibility of the IDF investigation. According to the proposal,
except for IDF Chiet-of-Staff Lt.-Gen. Gaby Ashkenazl, {DF soldiers wili not testify before the
Commission. The IDF, via the team — chaired by Ma).-Gen. (ret.) Glora Eiland — that Chief-of-Staff
Lt.-Gen. Ashkenazi has established will transfer to the Commission the summaries of its operational
investigations.

The second principle that,guided us is providing a credible and convincing response to the
responsible countries in the international community about the events, especlally in the context of
international iaw. | am convinced that the Commission's. uncovering of the facts will prove that the
goals and actions of the State of Israel and the IDF were appropriate defensive actions in accordance
with the highest international standards.

| estimate that the Cabinet's decision this moming to establish a special, independent public
commission will make It clear to the entire world that the State of Israel acts according to law,
transparently, and with full responsibility.”

P e e

The Minister of Justice and the Attorney-General presented the Government with a reselution
regarding appointing an independent public committes, headed by Emeritus Supreme Court Judge,
Yaakov Terkel, to examine the events at sea of May 31, 2010. After the Government discussed the
resolution, it decided unanimously:

1. To appoint an independent public Commission, headed by former Supreme Court Justice, Jacob
Turkel, to examine the aspects set out herein refating to the actions taken by the State of Israel to
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

Two observers will be appointed to the Commission as detailed in paragraph 3:

3. In light of the exceptiona! circumstances of the incident, it was decided to appoint two foreign
experts who will serve as observers that will take part in the hearings and deliberations of the
Commission, although they will not have the right to vote in relation to the proceedings and
conclusions of the Commission.

Lord David Trimble, Observer
2
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Ken Watkin, Observer

4, The Commission will submit its conclusions on the question of whether the actions set out in
paragraph 1 and their objectives, as well as additional matiers involved therein, were in conformity
with the rules of international law.

For this purpose, the Commission will address the followirig issues:

a) Examination of the security circumstances surrounding the imposition of the naval blockade on
the Gaza Strip and the conformity of the naval blockade with the rules of international law.

b)  The conformity of the actions taken by Israei to enforce the naval blockade in the incident of 31
May 2010 with the rules of international law.

¢}  Examination of the actions taken by the organizers of the flotilla and its participants, as well as
their identity.

5. In addition, the Commigsion will examine the question of whether the mechanism for examining
and investigating complaints and claims raised in relation to violations of the laws of armed conflict,
as conducted in Israel generally, and as implemented with regard to the present incldent, conform
with the obligations of the State of israel under the ruies of international law,

6.

a) The Commission may request any individual or entity, whether Israeli or foreign, to testify before it
or to provide information to it by other means, on matters which the Commission believes to be
relevant to its proceedings.

b) Every relevant governmental body will cooperate fully with the Commission and will make available
to the Commission information and documents required by it for the purposes of performing its
function, including through testimony before the Commission.

¢) Notwithstanding the above in subsections (a) and (b), with regard to its examination of the military
actions set out in paragraph 4(b) of this resolution, in respect of parsonnef of the military and other
security forces the Commission will operate exclusively in the following manner: it will receive for its
review the documents it requires and will also be able to request from the Head of the Military
Investigative Team authorized by the IDF Chief of the General Staff to transfer for its review the
summary findings of the operational investigations carried out following the incident.

If after reviewing the said summary findings of the operationa! investigations the Commission
considers that there exists a need for more in-depth or broader investigations, it will be able to
request from the Head of the Military Investigative Team authorized by the IDF Chief of General Staff
to Issue an order to do so, and to transfer for the review of the Commission the summary findings of
the operational investigations to be gathered in this context.

d) However, notwithstanding the above in subsection (c), the Commission may requast any
information from the Prime Minister, the Minister of Defance, othiar Ministers and the IDF Chief-of.
Staff, including through testimony before the Commission.

7. The Commission will establish its own scheduie and method of work. Commission hearings will be
public or closed, as will be determined by the Commission. However, the Commission will not hold a
public hearing if such a hearing could endanger national security or the State's foreign relations, or if H
in the view of the Commission another legal reason exists to this effect.

3
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8. The Commission Chairperson may determine that certain documents or certain information witl not
be made available to the Observers, if he/she believes that revealing such information to them is
almost cettain to cause substantial harm to national security or to the State's foreign relations.

9. The Commission may authorize qualified persons to gather material needed for the work of the
Commission and to assist the. Commisslon in its duties.

10. Upon completion of its work, the Commission will submit to the Government, by way of the Prime
Minister, a report.

11. The Commission will publish its report soon after its submission to the Government, However,
those sections of the report with regard to which the Commission is convinced, after hearing the
opinion of the authorized bodies, that their publication could cause substantial harm to national
security, foreign relations, or the well-being or privacy of an individual, or to confidential operational
methods of an authorized entity, will not be published.

12. Upon completion of its work, the Commission will deposit all of the minutes of its proceedings, as
well as ail of the matetial brought before it, in the State archive.

13. The Ministry of Finance will provide the Commission with a budget for employing assistance staff,
the scope of which will be determined by the Commission, in accordance with its needs, as .
determined by the Commission. In addition, the Office of the Prime Minister will provide the
Commission with afl the means required by it to carry out its duties.

14, The Government takes note of the statement of the Attorney General that in flight of the vital public
interest in allowing the Commission to seek the truth, law enforcement agencies will not make use of
testimonles given before the GCommission or before those individuals tasked with collecting
information for the Commission, as evidence in a legal proceeding.

TNIWET AN — UNUINI VT 'nn
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[RELEASED IN PART BS§|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Helpemann, Thcmas 8

Sant: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 1:02 PM :
To: Harris, Robart K :
Cc: Gorove, Katherine M, Jacobson, Linde; Tampio, A Jesge; Kimball, Emily J :
Subject: RE: Mesting request - Palestinian statehoed rescluion [SEC=IN-CONFIDENCE] ;
As_a heads up, fp.r;_,t.hgw.‘!,-,,ﬂa_ng_-[ BS

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

————— Original Message-----

From: Harris, Robert K

Sent! Tuesday, September 06, 2011 12:27 PM

To: 'David,.Dutton@dfat.gov.au'

Cc: AlM.Curtis@dfat. gov.ayu; Gorove, Katherine M; Heinemann, Thomas B; Jacobson, Linda;
Tamplo, A Jesse; 8en.Milton@dfat,.gov.au; Terrl.Black@dfat.gov,au; Kimball, Emily J; Santiago,
#irtha P; Hata, Marianne J

Subject: RE: Meeting request - Palestinian statehood resolutlon [SEC=IN-CONFIDENCE]

David,

those times are not convenient, if you would suggest a few times tomorrew, I'm sure we can
work something out. For purposes of thinking through attendance on our side, are you also
Interested in discussing recent press reports regarding Turkey's possible interest in
bringing an ICJ proceeding against Israel related to the May 2010 flotilla incident?

Are you free this afterncon at 2 or 4 to discuss this? If yes, we can meet in room 6421. If l

Best wishes,

Bob

SBuU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED

----- Original Message-----

From: David.Duttonfddfat.gov.au [mallto:David,Dutton@dfat.gov.aul

Sent: Tuesday, September @6, 2011 1@:08 AM

To: Harris, Robert K

Cc: Alli.Curtis@dfat.gov.au; Gorove, Katherine M; Heinemann, Thomas B; Jacobson, Linda;
Tampio, A Jesse; Ben.Milton@dfat.gov.au; Terrl.Blackiddfat.gov.au

Subject: RE: Meeting request - Palestihian statehood resolution [SEC=IN-CONFIDENCE]

Thanks Bob,

I'm back in the office. That’s tremendously helpful. There's a certailn amount of excitement
in Canberra on these issues and it will be great to talk through them with L.

cheers .
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David

"Harris,
Robert
Kll
<Harrisrk
K2@state
. BOV>

e6/09/2@

11 €9:55
AM

Dear Allid,

Thanks for your message.

To
<alli,curtis@dfat.gov,aur, "Gorove, Katherine
M" <GOROVEKM@state.gov>, "Heinemann, Thomas B"
<HeinemannTB@state,gov>, "“lacobson, Linda"
<Jacobsoril@state.gov>

cc
<David,Dutton@dfat.gov,au>, "Tamplo, A Jesse"
<TamploAl@state, gov>
Subject

RE: Meetlng request - Palestinlan statehood
resolution [SEC=IN-CONFIDENCE]

1ssue than I, and we will see when we can find a time to meet.

Bast wishes,

Bob

This emall 1s UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Alli,Curtis@dfat.gov.au [mailto:Alll.Curtis@dfat.gov,au]

Sent: Friday, September 02, 2011 3:51 PM

To: Harrls, Robert K

Cc: Cavid.Dutton@dfat.gov,.au

Subject: Meeting request - Palestinian statehood resolution [SEC=IN-CONFIDENCE]

Importance: High

Dear Mr Harris,

I am writing on behalf of David Dutton, who 1s at conference today.

™ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331033 Date: 07/31/2013

I’m reaching out to a few colleagues 1ih L who are closer to this
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We have been tasked by Canberra to talk to State about US concerns that a resolution on
Palestinlan statehood would have real world consequenges, including possible recourse to the
IC] against Israel,

We were hoping that you might be able to point ws to the appropriate officer in State Legal
to discuss this issue. We were hoplng to meet with scmeone on Tuesday if at all possible,

Many thanks, Mr Harris.
Warm regards

Alll

Alli Curtis

Senior Research Officer (Political)
Embassy of Australia

1601 Massachusetts Avenue NW
Washington, DC 20036-2209

Tel: (202) 7973370
Fax: (202) 797-3027
Cel: (202) 247-5614

alll,.curtis@dfat.gov.au
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[RELEASED INPART B9
Law, Rosemary C

From: Garove, Katherine M

Sent: Friday, September 24, 2010 2:38 PM
To: . Banos, Mariano H

Subject; RE: Reviged flotilla res

----- Original Méssage<----

From: Banos, Marianc H

Sent: Friday, September 24, 2010 1:22 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: FW; Revised flotilla res

Is that true?

----- Original Message-----
From: Bass, Warren

Sent; Friday, September 24, 2010 1:21 PM

To: Doutrich, Jack T; Khanna, Melariie J; Andris, Matthew R; Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M;
Walles, lacob; Lapenn, Jessica; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudnan, Mara
(Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, $ahar; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN};
Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P

Cc: Honigstein, Michael ©; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J;
'Scott_W._Bushby@nss.eop.gov'; ‘prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas
H; Feltman, Jeffrey D; 'Samantha_J._ Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshapiro@nsc,eop.gov'; Donahoe,
Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Le Mon, Christopher 3; P-I0 Duty; Katz, Jonathan D; Sutphin, Paul
R; Tsou, Leslie M; Marchese, Gregory M; Rubinstein, Daniel H

Subject: Revised flotilla res

----- Original Message-----

From: Doutrich, Jack T

Sent: Friday, September 24, 2810 9:47 AM

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Andris, Matthew R; Ngssel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren;
Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jesslcd; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sabar; Rudman, Mara
(Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germailn, Ellen 3 (USUN);
Masllko, Barbara 3 (USUN); Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P

Cc: Honlgstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J;
'Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov'; ‘prem_g._kumar@nss,eop.gov'; Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas
H; Feltman, leffrey D; 'Samantha_J._Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshapiro@nsc.ecp.gov’; Donahoe,
Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Le Mon, -Christopher J; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan D; Sutphin, Paul
R; Tsou, Leslle M; Marchese, Gregory M; Rubinsteln, Daniel H )
Subject: RE: revised flotilla res

+ NEA/IPA Paul Sutphin & Leslie Tsou
+ ConGen Jrslm Daniel Rubinstein & Greg Marchese

This email 1s UNCLASSIFIED

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

----- Original Message-~--- Reviewer B
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From: Khanna, Melanie 1

Sent: Friday, September 24, 2818 9:42 AM

To: Andris, Matthew R; Mossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn,
Jessica; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincanrion, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon,
Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara
J (USUN); Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P’ .

Cc: Honigstein, Michael 0; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J;
*Scott_W,_Busbyfinss.eop.gov'; ‘prem_g._ Kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, Jolin R; Goldberger, Thomas
H; Feltman, Jeffrey D; ‘Samantha_J. Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov';) Donahoe,
£1leen C; Khanna, Melanle 1; Cassayre, Mark J; Le Mon, Christopher 1; P-I0 Duty; Katz,
Jonathan D

Subject: revised flotilla res

Attached is the flotilla resolutlon as distributed to all delegations in Geneva today. It
differs from the one we saw here last night in a number of respects, including in welcoming
{vice noting) the FFM report, endorsing 1ts conclusions, and calling for follow up during the
March (vice June) HRC session. They also dropped the reference to the NY ilnvestigation.

The initlal reaction from the Israelis here is that this is less good, but they are still
relieved that it's not more inflammatory and that it doesn't creaté & new follow up body but
rather calls for OHCHR to follow up., They've asked us to vote no and will approach London
about voting no. They assess that 1f the UK votes no a number of eastern Europeans may
follow,

Melanle J. Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.5, Mission to the U.N. and
Other International Organizations
+41-22-749-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

----- Original Messaga~-----

From: Horn, Urszula

Sent: Friday, September 24, 20210 2:89 PM
To: Khanna, Melanle 3

Subject: FW:

As reguested.
Best regards,
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED

Urszula I. Horn

Ooffice Management Speclalist
Legal Affalrs

U.S. Mission Geneva

Route de Pregny 11

1292 Chambésy

Yel:+41(9)22,749.446Q
Cell: ]

----- original Message-----

From: Horn, Urszula [mailto:HornU@state.gav]
Sent: Friday, September 24, 2010 2:82 PM

To: Horn, Urszula
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Subject:

Please open the attached document. This document was digitally sent to you using an HP
Digital Sending device.

To view this document you need to use the Adobe Acrobat Reader. For more information on the
HP MFP Digital Sending Software or a free copy of the Acrobat reader please visit:

http://www,hp, com/go/HP Digital Sender Module.com
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[RELEASED IN PART Béj

Law, Rosamary C

From: Cook, Akunna E {Baghdad)

Sent; Monday, Qctober 18, 2010 158 PM

To: ' Coopér, Kurtis A; Gorove, Katherine M

Ce: Busby, Scoft W

Subject; RE: Turkish Complaint-at iCC on Gaza Flotilia Guldance
Kate/Scott:

Akunna

From: Cooper, Kurtis A

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 1:53 PM

To: Cook, Akunna €

Subject: RE: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Flotilla Guidance

L o B N

SBU
This emall s UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Cook, Akunna E

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 1:52 PM

To: Cooper, Kurtis A

Subject: RE: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Fictilla Guldance

Looks like comments on the old version, did you send them the new version?

From: Cooper, Kurtis A

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 1:51 PM

To: Cook, Akunna €

Subject: FW: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Flotifla Guidance

See thread below. Thoughts?

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer )
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This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Busby, Scott W. [mallto:Scott W, Busby@nss.eop.qov]
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 1:45 PM

To: Cooper, Kurtis A .

Subject: FW: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Fiotilla Guidance

. [ Thanks, Scott

From: Power, Samantha J,

Sent: Monday, Qctober 18, 2010 1:20 PM

To: Kumar, Prem G.; Egan, Brlan J.; Bushy, Scott W.

€c: #MULTILAT; #LEGAL

Subject: RE: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Fletilla Guidance

Agree,

From: Kumar, Prem G.

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 12:07 PM

To: Egan, Brian J.; Busby, Scott W,

Cct #MULTILAT; #LEGAL

Subject: Re: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Flotilla Guidance

Wid support Brian's view.

.o = e e w - DT e L

From: Egan, Brlan J.

To: Busby, Scott W.; Kumar, Prem G.

Cc; #MULTILAT; #LEGAL

Sent: Mon QOct 18 11:58:17 2010

Subject: RE: Turkish Compiaint at ICC on Gaza Flotilia Guidence

Scott,

the M oemeru e e

From: Busby, Scott W,

Sent: Mohday, October 18, 2010 10:25 AM

To: Kumar, Prem G.; Egan, Brian J.

Ce: #MULTILAT

Subject: FW: Turkish Complaint at ICC on Gaza Flotllla Guidance

Are you both comfortable with this revised guidance per Steinberg?
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From: Cooper, Kurtls A [mallto:CooperkKA@state.gav]
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2010 10:11 AM

To: Bushy, Scott W,

Subject: Turkish Camplaint at ICC on Gaza Flotilla Guidance

Scott,

Kurtls:

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Busby, Scott W. [Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov]
Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 11:50 AM
To: Ostermeier, Amy A; Bass, Waman; Reisser, Waslay J; Banos, Mariano H; Johnston-Gardnar,

Sarah R {DRL}; Gregonis, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Elits, Colin C; Ingber, Rebacca M;
Jacebson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Razzouk, Kelly L,
Nemroff, Courtney R; Sutphin, Paul R:{Erbil); Bally, Jess L; Premi G. Kumar, Nossa!, Suzanne

F
Cc; Sicads, Lynn M (DRL}); Galindo, David R; Lapeann, Jessica
Subject; RE: Urgent; Geneva seekihg guidance on flotille resolution

From: Ostermeler, Amy A [mailto:OstermeferAA@state,gov]

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 11;08 AM

To: Bass, Warren; Relssar, Wesley J: Banos, Mariano H; lohnston-Gardner, Sarah R (ORL); Gregonis, Meghan E;
Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Colin C; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN);
Razzouk, Kelly L; Nemroff, Courtney R (USUNY); Sutphin, Paul R; Baily, Jess L; Busby, Scott W.; Kumar, Prem G.; Nossel,

‘Suzanne F

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica
Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guldance on flotilla resclution

Adding Suzanne, - L

+ NSC, others in NY, NEA, and EUR

AO

g8l
This emali is UNCLASSIFIED.,

From; Bass, Warren

Sant: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:41 AM '

To:! Reisser, Wesley J; Banos, Marlano H; Johnsten-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Eiits,
Colin C; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara 3 (USUN); Razzouk, Kelly L;
Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Sutphin, Paul R; Balily, Jess L; 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Kumar, Prem G.'

Cc: Slcade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jesslca; Ostermeler, Amy A

Subject: RE: Urgent; Geneva seeking guldance on flotilla resolution

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Warren

ssu
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

Fram: Relsser, Wesiey 2

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:25 AM
To: Banos, Marlano H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Gregonls, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Colln C; Bass,
Warren; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Unda; Gorove, Kathering M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Cc: Slcade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica; Qstermeler, Amy A

Subject: RE: Urgent: Genéva seeking guidance on flotlila resolution

sBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From:; Banos, Marfano H

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:20 AM

To! Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Elits, Colin C; Bass, Warren; Relsser,
Wesley J; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guldance on flotlfa resolution

|

sB8U

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05331114 Date: 07/31/2013
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This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:07 AM

To: Gregonis, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Elits, Colin C; Bass, Warren; Reisser, Wesley J; Banos, Mariano H; Ingber,
Rebecca M; Jacohison, Linds; Gorove, Katherine M; Masllko, Barhara J {USUN)
“Cc: Sicade, Lynn. M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subiject: Urgent: Geneva seeking guidance on flotlila resoltitian

Importance; High

Mission Geneva has been invited to the informal today on the flotilla resolution. They are in need of guidance on

[ IPiease send me yourview[ o later than 12pm today.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331114 Date: 07/31/2013
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Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Forelgn Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor [DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293

From: Saced Sarwar [mailto:speedsarwar@gmail.com)

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 8:31 AM

Subject: Informal consultations on "Follow-up to the report of the independent International Fact Finding Mission on the
Incident of the humaniltarian Flotilla"

Dear colleagues

The OIC Group has the pleasure to invite you foday 17 March 2017 at 1700 hours in Room 22 {Palais

des Nations) for informat consultations on the draft resolution on "Follow-up to the report of the
independent international Fact Finding Mission on the incident of the humanliarian Flotillia",

Best Regards

Muhammad Saeed Sarwar

Second Secretary

Permanent Misslon of Pakistan to the UN
56 Rue de Molllebequ, Geneva

Sarah lohnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor {DRL)
Offlce of Multilateral and Global Affairs {(MLGA)
202-647-0293

SBU
© This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

— UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331114 Date: 07/31/2013
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Law, Rosemary C [RELEASED IN PART B5,B6|

From: Razzouk, Kelly L _ _

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 2:09 PM

To: Khanna, Malanie J; Ostermeier, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Relsser, Wesloy J; Banos, Mariano H;

Johnston-Gardner, Sareh R (DRL); Gregorils, Maghan E; Doulrich, Jack T, Eilts, Colin C;
ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gérove, Kathering M; Masilko, Berbara J (USUN);
Sutphin, Paul R (Erbll); Bally, Jess L; '‘Busby, Scott W.", Prein @, Kurnar, Nossel, Suzanne F;
Cassayre, Mark J; Lapenn, Jessica; Galindo, David R; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL)

Subject: RE: Urgent: Ganeva sesking guidanca on flotilla résolution

A quick read out of the meeting:

The meeting was very short - 20 minutes, Pakistan chaired for the OIC. The EU said they were disappointed because
the resolution facked a reference to the UN Panel of inquiry.

| used Sarah/Melania’s points -- commented on our weil-known vlews on the report and the original resolution which
we opposed, said we were not supportive of this resolution calling for further follow up --said we supported the NY
process,

Turkey said the processes in NY and Geneva were distinct. Palestinian said that the NY report was not yet made public
and therefore NY could not be referenced.

Turkey approached me afterwards te say that the EU told her that they will present a concrete proposal for language at
the next informal to insert a reference to the UN Panel of inquiry. Turkey believes this will satisfy the concerns of the EU
and hoped that this will also satisfy our concerns to the point where we would not call a vote/vote no on the resolution—
1 told her that I would discuss with Washington but, while we would view favorably a reference to the NY process, we
stilt have fundaimental concerns with this resolution calling for follow-up to a resolution and report we opposed. She
asked if we will be providing any “concrete language proposals.”

The next informa! negotiation is Tuesday morning.

SBU
This email Is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Khanna, Melanle )

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 4:36 PM
To: Razzouk, Kelly L; Ostermeier, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Relsser, Wesley J; Banos, Mariano H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R
{DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E; Douttich, Jack T; Elits, Colin C; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M;
Masliko, Barbara ) (USUN); Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Sutphin, Paul R; Baily, Jess L; 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Kumar, Prem
G.'; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassayre, Mark )

Ce: Sicade, Lynn M {DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jassica
Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guidance on flotilla resolution

REVIEW RUTHORITY: Shaion ARmad, Senior Reviews?
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Melanie J, Khanna
Lagal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and

Other International Organizations
+41-22.749-4318
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Razzouk, Kelly L

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 4:16 PM

To: Ostermeler, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Reisser, Wesley J; Banos, Marlano H; Johnston-Gardrier, Sarah R (DRL); Gregonis,
Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Colin G; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilks, Barbara J
{USUN); Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Sutphin; Paul R; Bally, Jess L; 'Bushy, Scott W.'; *Kumat, Prem G.'; Nossel,
Suzanne F; Khanna, Melanie 3; Cassayre, Mark J

Cc: Sitade Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica

Subjact: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guldance on flotilla resofution

+Melanle and Mark

ssu
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Ostermeier, Amy A

Sant: Thursday, March 17, 2011 4:08 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Relsser, Wesley J; Banhos, Marlano H; Johnston-Gardner Sarah R (DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E;
Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Golin C; Ingbet, Rebecea M; Jacohson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN),'
Razzouk, Ketly L; Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Sutphin, Paul R; Baily, Jess L; ‘Busby, Scott W.'; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Nossei,
Suzanne F

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guldanice on flotilia resolution

Adding Suzcnne“.l - o o W LV _]

AO

sBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Bass, Warren

Sant: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:41 AM

To: Reisser, Wesley J; Banos, Marlano H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Gregonls, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Elits,
Colin C; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masitko, Barbara J (USUN); Razzouk, Kelly L;
Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Sutphin, Paul R; Bally, Jess L; 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Kumar, Prem G.'

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M {DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica; Ostermeler, Amy A

Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guidance on flotifla resolution

2
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+ NSC, others in NY, NEA, and EUR

Warren

seu
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Relsser, Wesley J

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:25 AM
To: Banas, Martano H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Gregonls, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Ellts, Colin C; Bass,
Warren; Ingber, Rebetca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Masitko, Barbara J (USUN)

Ce: Sicade, Lynn M {DRL); Galindo, David R; Lapenn, Jessica; Ostarmeier, Amy A
Subject: RE: Urgent; Geneva seeking guidance on flotilia resolution

sy
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Banos, Marfano H

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 10:20 AM

To: Johnston-Gardnér, Sarati R {DRL); Gregonls, Meghan E; Doutrich, Jack T; Eilts, Colin C; Bass, Warmen; Relsser,
Wesley J; Ingber, Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorova, Katherine M; Masilko, Barbara J {USUN)

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subject: RE: Urgent: Geneva seeking guidance on flotilla reselution

UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331129 Date; 07/31/2013

StateDept004854
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S8U
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Thurstay, March 17, 2011 10:07 AM

To: Gregonls, Meghan E; Douttich, Jack T; Ellts, Colin C; Bass, Warren; Reisser, Wesley J; Banos, Mariano H; Ingber,
Rebecca M; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherina M; Masilke, Barbara J (USUN)

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R

Subfect: Urgent: Geneva seeking guidance on fiotiila resolution

Importanca: High

Mission Geneva has been invited ta the informal today on the flotilla resolution. They are In need of guidance on__

|

L Triease send me your view| - |no later than 12pm today.

4
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Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affeirs Qfficer

8ureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL}
Qffice of Muititateral and Global Affairs {MLGA)
202-647-0293

From: Saced Sarwar [mallto:sacedsarwar@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2011 8:31 AM

Subject: Informal consultations on "Folfow-up to the report-of the Independent international Fact Finding Misslon on the

Incident of the humanitarian Flotilla"
Dear colleagues

The OIC Group has the pleasure to Invite you today 17 Mare 1700 hours

22 {Palais

des Nations) for informal consultations on the draft resolution on "Fol!ow—up to the report of the
independsnt international Fact Finding Mission on the incident of the humanitarign Flotilla”.

Best Regards

Muhammad Saeed Sarwar

Second Secretary

Permanent Mission of Pakistan to the UN
56 Rue de Molllebeau, Geneva

Sarah johnston-Gardner

Forelgn Affairs Offfcer

Bureau of Demdcracy, Human Rights and Labor {ORL)
Office of Multlfateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293

s UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, C05331128 Date: 07/31/2013
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[RELEASED IN PART B#|

Law, Rosemary C

, From: Zurcher, Kennath M
Sent: Thursday, Septembar 01, 2011 5:50 PM
Toj Gorove, Ketharine M

‘ Subject: RE: URGENT: QOB Sherman Flotlita

They told us this morning that it would be published tomorrow — the times seooped thern, and published it this

affernoon.
The NYT story
{hitp:/iwway nvtimes com/2011/09/02/world/middleeast/02flgtifq.html?_r=1 &padewaqnted=prini]

The report [hitp://draphics8.nyiimes.com/packageas/pdi/world/Paimer-Committee-Final-report. pdf)

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:48 PM
To: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Subject: RE: URGENT: 008 Sherman Flatlila

Has something come out today/iomorrow on this?

This email Is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:46 PM

Tot Doutrich, Jack T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Bass, Warren; Rled, Curtis R (USUN); Horak, Galt R (USUN); Finerty,
Tressa R {USUN); Jacobson, Linda; Gerave, Katherine M; Swiney, Gabriel; Harrell, Peter E; P-1O Duty; Carl Yoder,
Samantha A; Neville, Colleen C; Relsser, Wesley J; 'Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.eop.gav'; Kumar, Prem G.; Aguitre, Serglo L,
Cc: Zurcher, Kennath M

Subject: URGENT: 008 Sherman Flotilla

Good afternoon,

Attache?_ please find a draft Q&A for Amb Sherman on the flotilla/Palmer panel for your
review, |

would appreciate your comments/clearance as soon as possible.

Thanks [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

e UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331132 Date: 07/31/2013
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Ken

Thls emall Is UNCLASSIFIED.
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[RELEASED IN PART Bb|
Law, Rosemary C

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent; Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:56 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: RE: URGENT: QOB Sherman Flotilla

1 tried logic and reason to delay it, even before it was released, but was mocked and shamed.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:55 PM
To! Zurcher, Kenneth M

Subject: RE: URGENT: COB Sherman Flotilla

what can you do, if due tomorrow!

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:55 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: RE: URGENT: 008 Sherman Flotilla

I'll be honest 1 just read the few page summary ... I'd hoped for pictures, but no huck.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Gorove, Katherine'M

- Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:54 PM
To: Zurcher, Kenneth M; Jacobson, Linde; Doutrich, Jack T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Bass, Warren; Ried, Curtis R
(USUNY; Horak, Gall R (USUNY); Finerty, Tressa R (USUN); Swiney, Gabrlel; Harrell, Peter E; P-10 Duty; Carl Yoder,
Samantha A; Neville, Collegn C; Reisser, Wesley J; “Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.cop.gov'; ‘Kumar, Prem G.'; 'Agulrre, Sergio
L.'; Heinemann, Thomas B
Subject: RE: URGENT: OOB Sherman Flotilla

Given that the Report is 105 poges and na one has read it yet, that seams unrealistic.

This emall Is UNCLASSIFIED, [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reyiewer]
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From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:51 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Doutrich, Jack T; Mekhtarzada, Homeyra N; -Bass, Wairen; Ried, Curtls R (USUN); Horak, Gail R
(USUN); Finerty, Tressa R (USUN); Gorove, Kathierine M; Swiney, Gabriel; Harréll, Peter E; P-10 Duty; Carl Yoder,
Samantha A; Nevillg, Colleen C; Relsser, Wesley J; "Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.eop.gov’; 'Kumar, Prém G.'; 'Aguirre, Sergio
L."; Helnemann, Thomas B

Subject: RE: URGENT; QOB Sherman Flotilla

The drafl was posted on NYTimes tpday~ 7 o _ ‘ S ‘ i

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:4% PM

To: Zurcher, Kenneth M; Doutrich, Jack T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Bass, Warren; Ried, Curtls R (USUN); Horak, Gail R
{USUN); Finerty, Tressa.R (USUN); Gorove, Kathering M; Swiney, Gabriel; Harrell, Peter E; P-IQ Duty; Cari Yoder,
Samantha A; Neville, Colleen C; Reisser, Wesfey J; 'Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.eop.gov'; "Kumar, Prem G.'; "Aguirre, Sergio
L.} Heinemann, Thamas B

Subject: RE: URGENT: QOB Sherman Flotilla

+ Tom Helnemann who handles flotilla issues for L/AN.l —|

""" _ - ]

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 5:46 PM

To: Doutrlch, Jack T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Bass, Warren; Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Horak, Gail R (USUN); Finerty,
Tressa R (USUN); Jacobson, Linda; Gorove; Katherine M; Swiney, Gabrlel; Harrell, Peter E; P-IO Duty; Carl Yoder,
Samantha A; Neville, Colleen C; Relsser, Wasley J; Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.eop.gov'; Kumar, Prem G.; Agulrre, Serglo L.
Ce: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Subject; URGENT: QOB Sherman Flotllla

Good afternoon,

Attached please find a draft Q&A for Amb Sherman on the flotilla/Palmer panel foryour
review.»[ F o ]

I

would appreciate your comments/clearance as soon as possible.

Thanks
Ken

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,
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[RELEASED IN PART B8

Law, Rosemary C

From; Townlsy, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 5:49 AM

To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Dolan, JoAnn; Gorove, Katherine M; Pomper, Stephen E

Ce: Banos, Marlanc H

Subject: RE: xlation of the Arab League Resolution

Attachments: Israel Investigation Optlons Paper v3.dog; Questions from the moming meeting regarding the
blockade .

Latest on investigations and blockade. Thanks, Stephen

From: Aswad, Evelyn M _

Sent: Thursday, June 03; 2010 9;33 AM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Gorove, Katherine M; Townlay, Stephen G; Pamper, Stephan E
Cc: Banos, Marlano H

Subject: RE: xlation of the Arab League Resolution

Does anyone have the latest revised investigations paper and blockade paper? Could you forward? Thanks, EA

From: Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 9:26 AM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Daley, John D; Gorove, Katherine M; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Marlano H
Cc: Harrls, Robert K; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacebson, Linda

Subject: FW: Wation of the Arab League Resolution

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent; Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:27 AM

To: Dotan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Glauque, Jeffrey G; Holmstrom, Todd C
Subject: FW: xlation of the Arab League Resolution

{__ T 'Winhanks. ) BS
Tom

Fram: Holimstrom, Todd C

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:20 AM

To! Glauque, Jeffrey G

Cc: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: FW: xiation of the Arab League Resoiution

leff, will you do this please?

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

From: Connelly, Maura

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 7:21 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C
Cc! Lentz, Andrew N; Glauque, Jeffrey G

Subject: Fw: xlation of the Arab League Resolution

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05331137 Date: 07/31/2013

Good morg_ing_.|
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Thanks.

From: Blome, Donald A

To: Scobey; Margaret; Tueller, Matthew H; Hale, David M; Shampaine, Nicole B; Rubinsteln, Danlel H; Connelly, Maura
Cc: Sievers, Marc J; Waters, John R

Sent: Thu Jun-03 04:17:40 2010

Subject: FW: xlatlon of the Arab Leagui Resolution

Final text with Embassy translation

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

Fram: Najeeb, Usama M

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 10:59 AM

To: Rosenstock, Matthew §; Watkins, Todd J; Blome, Donald A; Perry, Laura M
Subjact: xlation of the Arab League Resolution

Enclosed is the Arabic original and unofficial English transtation of the Arab League resolutions issued yasterday at the
foreign ministers’ meeting.

Thank You
Usama Najeeb

2
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Law, Rosemary C JRELEASED IN PART B8
From: Mangiuce, Adrian {DRL)

Sent: Friday, April 22, 2011 3:26 FM

To: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: Turkel Commission Mamo

Attachments: Turkel Mamo.doex

: Dear Katherine,

t wrote this memo for Sarah's consideration yesterday, and she's told me to forward it to you for a review. | left most of

the formatting Intentionally incomplete.
; Let me know how to proceed.
Best,

ADRIAN MANGIUCA
U,S. Department of State
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor
Office of Multilateral and Global Affaies
P 202:647-2264 (Office)
Personal)

This ematil is UNCLASSIFIED.
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Law, Rosemary C

From:
Sant:
To:

Cc:
Subjact:

From: Koh, Harold Hongju

Daley, John D T TR T
Friday, October 15, 2010 3:55 PM [EE;%ASED IN PAR?‘
1

Perina, Alexandra H .
Gorove, Katherine M; Martin, Julis B, Buchwald, Todd F

URGENT--SEE BELOW

Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 3:42 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Buchwald, Todd F

Cc: Daley, John 0; Townley, Stephen G; Zelinsky, Aaron
Subject: Turkey Flotila ICC guldance

Jim Steinberg calied re guidance, o ]

B85

Harold Hongju Koh
The Legal Adviser

2201 C St. N.W, Suite 6421
Washington, D.C. 20520
202-647-9598 phone

202-647- 7096 fax

United States Department of State

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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[RELEASED IN FULL

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnson, Clifon M
Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2011 10:29 AM
' To! Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Pomper, Stephen E; McDonough, Patricta E; Baumnert, Kevin A; Landsidle, Jennifer R
Subject: Turkel Commission on Flotdla Incident

Jon/Linda,

I met with Ady Schonmann yesterday on the various UJ cases pending against israel
in Spain and slsewhere. in the course of the meeting she gave me a bound copy of
the Turkel Commission's 300 page report on the flofilla incident. It includes a detailed
discussion of the IDF's use of force to enforce the naval blockade analysis. | don't think
thave.a need for it - would any of you like 112 CIiff

Clifon M. Johnson
Assistant Legal Adviger
Law Enforcement and Iritelligence

(202) 647-5654 (Direct)
{202) B47-7324 (Office)
(202) 647-2304 (STE)
(202) 547-4802 (Fax)

38U
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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[RELEASED IN FULL

Law, Rosemary C

From: Woadward, Shirley G
Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 5:01 PM
To: Gorove, Katherine M
Subject: news update - intarnational role?

Did you see this? Opening line refers to an "international body” while the Crowley statement just says "Intemnational
participation”

¢ Published 21:16 08.06,10
+ Latest update 21:16 08.06.10

U.S.: International probe into Gaza
flotilla raid is 'essential’

Netanyahu demands to testify before an
investigation panel, comprised of Israeli jurists, over
deaths of Turkish activists last week.

By Natasha Mozgovaya and Barak Ravid Tags: Gaza flotllla Benjamin Netanyahu

Echoing countless cails on Israel to subject itself to an International investigation of the events that led up
to the deaths of nine Turkish activists aboard a Gaza-bound ald ship last week, the U.S. on Tuesday
demanded that some international body be involved In the probe of the events.

This, after a senlor officlal said earlier Tuesday that Prime Minister Benjamin Netanyahu has nearly
completed a draft of guidelines for the establishment of a commission of inquiry comprised of Israeli
jurists.

The future commission would investigate the clash between Israell navy commandos who were rappelled
onto a Turkish ship, participating in a fictilla attempting to break Israel's three-year blockade on the Gaza
Strip and dellver aid, and Turkish activists aboard the ship.

The incldent sparked harsh criticism against Israel and International calis for an independent investigation,
Israel has so far rejected any external investigation, insisting that any investigation by an external body
would be biased against Israel.

"International participation in investigating these matters will be important to the credibility that
everybody wants to see,” said U.S. State Departmient spokesman Philip Crowley on Tuesday, "We arg
discussing with Israel and others the prospective nature of international participation in the Investigation,
And we're sharing different ideas on how to best accomplish that.”

"We want to see an Impartial, credible, prompt, thorough investigation. We recognlze that internationa!
participation, which fends itself to countries and entities being able to vouch for the resuits of the
Investigation - will ba an essential elemient to putting this tragedy behind us," he went on to say.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe
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Meanwhile Tuesday, Netanyahu demanded that, he and his forum of seven senlor ministers be allowed to
testify before the investigation committee that will be established, comprised of Israell jurists, and said
that he and his top ministers would supply any future committee with all the required information,

In drafting the guidelines for the future investigation, Netanyahu insisted that Israel Defense Forces
soldiers wiil not be personally interrogated, and asked that the Investigation committee use instead the
findings of Internal military investigations already conducted. Netanyahu added that IDF Chief of Staff
would testify.

According to the senlor official, the guldelines for the pane! of Investigation have been almost finalized by
the forum of seven during a meeting they held Monday morning, However, the forum is expected to
convene an additional meeting on the topic on Wednesday. The draft of the guidelines has been approved
unanimously by the forum ministers, who supported Netanyahu's demands.

The Prime Minister's Bureau has nelther made the draft public nor the names of the indlviduals who wi)l
serve on the committee. The reason, according to the officlal, is the fact that the cabinet has yet to
complete coordinating the investigation with the U.S. administration and other Western countries in order
to ensure their support, The aim, he sald, Is that these countries will send observers to oversee the
investigation, In addition, the offlcial added, conflicts of interest must be examined in regard to the
possible members of the investigation panel,

The Prime Minister's Bureau approached several top litigators to inquire whether they would be interested
in taking part In the work of the committee, Several of the candidates are former Israell ambassador to
the U.S. Meir Rosen, former legal adviser to Israel's Forelgn Ministry Alan Baker, and Bar-Ilan University
professor Yaffa lebershat.»: who Is also a candidate to become Israel’s next ambassador to the United
Nations,

2
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Law, Rosemary C [RELEASED IN FULL)

From; Bass, Warren

Sont: Tuesday, May 17, 2011 4:03 PM

To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sindle, James M; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Maghan E; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Reisser,
Wesley J; Jacobson, Linta; Gorove, Katherine M; Swiney, Gabriel; Germain, Ellen J

Subject: RE: Clearance: COB Wed: DeLaurenfis Fiotilla

Here's a few changes on top of Barbara’s, mostly drawn from last.month's UNSC open debate remarks. Completely
agree with Barbara’s approach hera.
Warren

From; Masliko, Barbara J (USUN)

Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2011 3:19 PM

To: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Cc: Sindle, James M; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Meghan E; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Bass, Warren; Refsser, Wesley J;
Jecobson, Linda; Gorove, Kathetine M; Swiney, Gabriel; Germain, Ellen J (USUN)

Subject: FW: Clearance; COB Wad: Delaurentis Flotilla

My points draw from the previous UN and USG public statemerts on this issue - as | assume this is for public Hill
testimony prep - we should probably not go beyond.

Barbara Masilko

Political Adviser

1.5, Mission to the United Nations
QOffice 212-415-4190

sSBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From; Swiney, Gabriel

Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2011 2:38 PM

To! Zurcher, Kenneth M; Sindle, James M; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonls, Meghan E; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Bass, Warren;
Masitko, Barbara J (USUN); Relsser, Wesley J; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: RE: Clearance: COB Wed; Delaurentis Flotilla

+ Kate.

58U
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: Zurcher, Kenneth M
Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2011 11:22 AM
To: Sindle, James M; Doutrich, Jack T; Gregonis, Meghan €; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Bass, Warren; Masilko, Barbara )
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(USUNY}; Reisser, Wesley J; Jacobson, Linda; Swiney, Gabriel
Subject: Clearance: COB Wed: Delaurentis Flotiila

Good moming,

Attached please find a DeLaurentis Q&A on the Gaza Flotilla, which draws from previously cleared material,
for your review. Please provide comments/clearances by COR Wednesday.

Thank you,
Ken

Ken Zurcher

Office of UN Political Affairs

Bureau of Internationa] Organization Affairs
Ph. 202-647-0044

Fax 202-647-0039

sBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No, F-2010-041683 Doc No. C05330715 Date: 07/31/2013

StateDept004870



; UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05330626 Date: 07/31/2013 — "1

[RELEASED IN PART B

Law, Rossmar! C

From: Johnsgton-Gardnier, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Friday, January 21, 2011 9:58 AWM

To: Bass, Warren; Kolb, Natalie; Gorove, Katherine M; Banos, Marlano H; Perina, Alexandra H

Ce: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL.) h
Subject: FW: Turket Commission to Issue First Part of its Report on Sunday,23.1.11

FY! - Turkel report expected on Sunday

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Forelgn Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor {ORL)
OFfice of Multilateral and Global Affairs {MLGA)}
202-647-2286

From: Lapann, Jessica

Sentt Thursday, January 20, 2011 7:00 PM

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Donahoe, Elleen C

Cc: Relsser, Wesley J; Nossel, Suzanna F; Honlgsteln, Michael D; Ostermeler, Amy A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Subject: FW: Turkel Commission to Issue First Part of Its Report on Sunday,23,1.11

SBU
This emait is UNCLASSIFIED.

Fromxlrﬁ o |
Sent: ThUrsgay, Jenuary 20, 2011 4:03 PM
Subject: Turkel Commission to Issue First Part of Its Report on Sunday,23.1.11

Dear Friends & Colleagues,

As you may have heard, the Turkel commission is scheduled to present Its findings to the Prime Minister, on Sunday
{including photo-op and reading of main points from the report}). Soon thereafter it will become pubiic.

{Links and Spokesman’s statement below)

1. FYi-

The Public Commission, headed by retired Supreme Court Justice Turke! and with full participation of two foreign
observers, was established by the GO, following the flotilla incident, In order to examine the event in an independent

manner, as so performed in israel from time to time, as part of the Israell democracy.

The report is scheduled to address the flotilla event entirely, but there is however, another report scheduled in a few

months time, RE Military investigations {raised as an additlonat question to the Commission, by GOI). As for the fiotilla
ltself, we do not expect another report, but the Turkel Commission will continue its work on the last question.

On the day of publication, GOI wili present the report to the SG's Pane! {headed by former PM of New Zealand, Jeffry !
Palmer). We expect this Panel, participated by tsrael, will continue its work in the coming months.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior| !
Revigwer
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2, links -

hilp:/fww'.haaretz.oom/news/dip_lomacy-dcfcnse/turkcl-ganef—lo-say-idf-gcted-fn-ge!f-det‘ense-during—gaza-

flotilia-raid-1,338216

http:/fwww. yneinews.com/articles/0,7340.1.-4016792.00.htmi
h

J[Iwww.jpost.com/Defense/Article.aspx?id=204441

3. Turkel Commission Spokesman -

Turkel Commission _to Issue First Part of its Report on Sunday, 23.1.11
{Communicated by Turkel Commission Spokesman)

The Twkel Commission will on Sunday, 23.1.11, submit the first part of its report to Prime Minister Benjamin
Netanyahu. Afterwards, the Commission will convene at 14:00, at the Yitzhek Rabin Guest House (Reut Hall),
at 1 Nahman Avigad St., in Jerusalem, and publicly present the first part of its report.

It will be possible to broadcast retired Supremc Court Justice Jacob Turkel's reading of the report live,
Journalists who have registered may enter between 13:00-13:45, Interested journalists and crews ate requested

to email their details ASAP to Commission Spokesman Qfer Leflor.

The Commission will present its report in two parts. The first will deal with Article 4 of the 14.6.10 Cabinet
decision:

"a) Examination of the s¢curity circumstances surrounding the imposition of the naval blockade on the Gaza
Strip and the conformity of the naval blockade with the rules of international law.

b) The conformity of the actions taken by Israel to enforce the naval blockade in the incident of 3} May 2010
with the rules of internationa} law,

¢) Examination of the actions taken by the organizers of the flotilla and its participants, as well as their
identity.”

The first part of the report will be posted on the Commission's website, in Hebrew and English, upon the
conclusion of Justice Turkels's reading,

The second part of the Commission's report will deal with Article 5 of the aforesaid Cabinet decision:

“In addition, the Commission will cxamine the question of whether the mechanism for examining and
investigating complaints and claims raised in relation to violations of the: laws of armed conflict, as conducted
in Israel generally, and as implemented with regard to the presont incident, conform with the obligations of the
State of Israel under the rules of international law."

Details regarding the presentation of the second part of the Commission's report will be issued separately; no
date has yet been determined,

Best,

]

B6
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[RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rogemary C

From: Gorove, Katharine M

Sent: Waednesday, September 22, 2010 4:12 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Subject: FY! only: Flotilla FFM Report Readout

From: Banos, Marlano H

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 4:08 PM

To: Andris, Matthew R; Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jessica; Sutphin, Pauf R;
Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincaninon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T;
Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara ] (USUN); Cassidy, Joseph P; Perina, Alexandra
H; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M

Cc: Honigsteln, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner; Satah R (DRL); Bame, David J; 'Scott_ W, _Busby@nss.eop.gov';
‘prem_g._Kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey D;

‘Semantha_J, _Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshaplro@nsc.eop.gov'; Donahoe, Elleen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le
Mon, Christopher J; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan D

Subject: RE; FFM Report Readout

+ others at L following this

From: Andris, Matthew R

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 3:57 PM

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Wailes, Jacob; Lapenn, Jessica; Sutphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mera;
Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusatem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D
(USUN); Germalin, Ellen J (USUN); Masflko, Barbara J (USUN); Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P

Cc: Honligstein, Michae! D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J; 'Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov';
‘prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey D;
‘Samantha_)._Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov'; Donahoe, Eileen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le
Mon, Christopher J; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan D

Subject: FFM Report Readout

All:

[ —
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Gorove, Kathering M

Sent; Thursday, September 23, 2010 7:27 AM
To: Schwaitz, Jonathan B

Subject: FYI: Turks on Geneva issues {SBU)

[RELEASED IN PART B5,B6)

From: Khanna, Melanie J

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 6:59 AM

Yo: Goldberger, Thomas H; Nossel, Suzanne F; Bass, Warren; Banos, Marlano H; Andris, Matthew R; Hale, David M;

Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jesslca; Sutphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);
Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN}; Masilko, Barbara J
(USUN); Cassidy, Joseph P; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Cunningham, James B; Levin,

Jan; Silverman, Robert J

Cc: Honigstein, Michaet D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J; 'Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov';
‘prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, John R; Feltman, Jeffrey D; ‘Samantha_J._Power@nsc.eop.gov’
"dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov'; Donshoe, Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Le Mon, Chtistopher J; Katz, Jonathan D; Griffiths, Douglas B6

]
Subject: Re: Turks on Geneva Issues (SBU)

Wemetwith]  here. it was worse than what they're saying in NY. He advises that they willsaek___
imptementation of all of the flotila reports conclusions and follow up at the HRC unitil fui_lijptemanted‘l____ B5

i

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Bass, Wairen; Banos, Marlano H; Andris, Matthew R; Hale, David M; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn,
Jessica; Sutphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannan,
Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Cassidy,
Joseph P; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Silverman,
Robert J

Cc: Honlgstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J; 'Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov'
<5Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov>; 'prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov' <prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov>; Waters, John R;
Feltman, Jeffrey D; ‘Samantha_J)._Power@nsc.eop.gov’ <Samantha_J._Power@nsc.eop.gov>; 'dshaplro@nsc.eop.qov"
<dshaplro@nsc.eop.gov>; Donahoe, Elleen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le Mon, Christopher J; Katz,
Jonathan D

Sent: Thu Sep 23 06:28:10 2010

Subject: RE: Israeli embassy on Geneva issues (SBU)

Adding others in Te! Aviv.

News of the report is in the israeli press today, YNet has a long story, with AP,and & link to an "advance unedited
version” of the report on the OHCHR website: hitn.//www.ynetnews.com/articles/0,7340,L-3958812.00.htm!

The MFA has also put out the following press statement:

Israel responds to report by the HRC Committee of Independent Experts

22 Sep 2010

lsrael 15 & democtatic and law abiding country that carefully observes interstional law and, when need be, knows how to inVCstigatc
itself. That is how lsrael has always acted, and that is the way in which Investigations were conducted following Operation Cast

1
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'

ead, launched (o protect the inhabltants of southem israel from rockets and terror attacks carried out by Hamas from

Az

Y

=

|

Tha Israell Investigation system, which conforms to all international standards, is boing examined by the Turkel Committee, an
Indspendent pane! with International observers, This committea Is still carrying out its work,

In view of all this, as well as of the biased, politicized and exiremist approach.of the same Human Rights Councii that had initiated the
skewed (oldstone Report, Israst sees no reason to cooperats with this commission.

Israel wil nonetheless raad and study the report.

http://www.mfa.gov.il/MFA/About+the+Ministry/M FA+3pokesman/2010/Israe!_responds_report_HRC_Committee_ind
ependent_Experts_22-5ep-2010.htm

From: Nossel, Suzanne F

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 11:36 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Banos, Mariano H; Andris, Matthew R; Hale, David M; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jesslca; Sutphin, Paul R;
Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T;
Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J-(USUN}; Cassidly, Juseph P; Perina, Alexandra
H; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M _

Cc: Honlgstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David 2; 'Scott_W._Bushy@nss.eop.gov';
‘prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov'; Waters, Jehn R; Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey D;
'Samantha_J._Power@nsc.eop.gov'; 'dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov'; Donahoe, Eileen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le
Mon, Christopher J; Katz, Jonathan D>

Subject: Re: Israell embassy on Geneva issues (SBU)

- A/S Brimmer, EUR Jess Baily and | met today with Turkey in New York, More will follow via cable but key refativaly new

elements were: 1) HRG resolution will send report to GA, in addition to referring it to the NY panel. Wi not attempt to take
to UNSC; 2} they referenced such a resolution being drafted by "groupings” though we noted all sources In Geneva point
to Turkey as guiding the content and direction: 3) they expect feeding frenzy in Turkish and International press due to
report content. While promising to keep in touch and assuring that they do not wish to demonize Israel they were clear
that the upcoming session will be tough, We made all our points,

Best,
Suzanne

From: Bass, Watren

To: Banos, Mariano H; Andris, Matthew R; Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jessica; Sutphin,
Paul R; Rudman, Mara; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack
T; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUNY); Masllko, Barbara J (USUN); Cassidy, Joseph P; Perina,
Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Kathetine M

Cc: Honigsteln, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Barne, David J; 'Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov'
<Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov>; ‘prem_g._kumar@nss.eop.gov' <premi_g, kumar@nss,.eop,gov>; Waters, John R;
Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman;, Jeffrey D; 'Samantha_J,_Power@nsc.eop.gov* <Samantha_J._Power@nsc.sop.gov>;
‘dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov>; Donahoe, Elleen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark 3; Le Mon,
Christopher J; P-10 Duty; Katz, Jonathan D

Sent: Wed Sep 22 17:25:00 2010

Subject: Israefi embassy on Geneva issues (SBU)

ssu

Just got a call from| from the Israeli embassy, who's spoken to several others here too, | suspect.

Tormuschat:
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¢ lsraalIs telling the PA at various levels that they’re hoping the inevitable resolution draft will be as lukewarm a
draft as possible, given the sensitive timing,
» The Israelis are, of course, hoping for a no vote on whatever the draft Is.

Flotilla:

s Like Yaar, he says it's “even worse than we thought—66- pages bashing us left, right, and center.”

* Israells are preparing a press release, which they'll send out depending on how much nolse the repart actually
makes when it-comes out. They'll probably limit themselves to just that refease; no comments currently planned
for senior officials, and since the festival of Sukkot is about to-start; it's hard for them to come out with anything
until Thursday night.1sraél time.

e lsraelis expect the Turks to be very active in Geneva—not least because they know they don't stand a chance in
NY. They hope POTUS will tell Gui to keep a low profile when they-see éach other tonight.
tsrael wants to keep the focus on the SYG panel,

Amb, Oren plans to speak to Mike Posner, Esther Brimmer; sounds like he's playing phone tag with Dennis Ross.
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Law, Rosemary C (RELEASED IN PART B5

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Friday, April 22, 2011 1:11 PM

To: Zalinsky, Aaron

Cc; Banos, Marano H; Gorove, Katherine M; Gutheris, Pater A
Subject: LEGAL-#290826-v1-Flotlila_investigation_reports,DOC
Attachments: LEGAL-#200928-v1-Flatilla_investigation_reports.doc

Aaron, tor HHK here dre Mariano's points on fiotilla investigation issuas, Including my comments and
_Kate's clearance. This does not address the issue of the upcoming flofilia exercise. Also | am

I

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Law, Rosemary C

RELEASED IN PART B8)

From:
Sent:
To:

Ce:
Subject:
Attachments;

Good evening,

Zurcher, Kenneth M

Thursday, September 01, 2041 11:42 PM ) A
"Joseph Cassidy (Joseph_P_Cassidy@nss.eopgov){  ~ " INeville, Colleen
C; Harrell, Peter E; Helnemann, Thomes B; Gorove, Kathering M; Kimbail, Emily J; Ried,
Curlis R; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Barte, Peter R

Chue, Jason

OOB Sherman-Flotilla

110802 Sherman Flotilla.docx

Attached please find the latest draft, with all input received this evening. The only question unresolved Is from L, on if
we need an “if pressed point” on the conclusions. As this is for a Q&A for a murder board next week rather than press
points - I defer to P, but recommend that we not focus on that level of speculative detall, as the final version will need

updating by then any,

At present, we stili lack EUR, NSC, D{B), 5/P, L, I0/FO and USUN clearances.

P staff,

Plense advise as to how you'd Jike me to proceed given that you'l] turn this over in the morning. As with
above, might [ recomimend that we provide this draft with the understanding that it will be finalized through the
course of tomorrow, as significant details and responses might change during the day? (It also remains likely
that it will need revisiling next week).

Thanks,

Ken

sauy

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,
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Law, Rosemary C ~ [RELEASEDIN PART B6NR|

From: Banos, Mariang H

Sent; Tuesday, November 30, 2010 4;21 PM

To: Sullivan, David B; Jacobson, Linda; Dotan, JoAnn

Cc: Gorove, Katherine M '

Subject: RE: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in

China, Kazakhstan, Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Qatar

From Sullivan, David B

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 4;16 PM

To: Barios, Marlano H; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Gorove, Kathering M

Subject: FW; Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabla and Qatar

Kate, thanks. Mariano or L/AN, do you have thoughts on the flotilla para pasted below?
(for use in meetings Decermber 8-11) Thank you. David

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 3:50 PM

To: Sullivan, David B

Subject: Re: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL. for meetings/events In China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudl Arabia and Qatar

This may be out of date or about o be out of date. Is Mariano around? Or Linda? [ T

From: Sullivan, David B

To: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Tue Nov 30 15:33;08 2010

Subject: RE: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCi. for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Qatar

OK, many thanks. See the para below. Context is BCL for our Special Envoy Hussain trip
toTurkey.| -

et | David S

IF RAISED: [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

Flotilla Investigation Resolution:

BS
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From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 3:25 PM

To: Sulltvan, David B

Subject; Re: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussaln BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Qatar

No. Not on clearances. If you dump into email clean coopy, I fook.

S dhd bty -l = mim = s e R R e m g e

Frum Sutlivan, Davld B

To: Gorove, Kathering M

Sent: Tue Nov 30 15:22:57 2010

Subject: FW: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussaln BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saud! Arabla and Qatar

true? thx. DBS

From: Johnson, Darin E

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 3:22 PM

To: Sullivan, David B; Brancato, Glida M; Aswad, Evelyn M

Subject: RE: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday Noverriber 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabla and Qatar

I think Kate's checking her B8,

From: Suliivan, David B

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 12:32 PM

To: Brancato, Gilda M; Aswad, Evelyn M; Johnson, Darin E

Subject: RE: Clearance 11;00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Qatar

I followed up to IO on one point - who should look at the Flotilla section of this in Kate’s
absence? Thanks. David

From; Sullivan, David B

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 12:29 PM

To: Brancato, Gilda M; Aswad, Evelyn M; Johnson, Darin E; Botet, Violanda; Moore, Holly

Subject: FW: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in Ching, Kazakhsban,
Turkey, Saudi Arabla and Qatar

Fyi. Thanks for your (& others™) help on this. David
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From: Sullivan, David B

Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2010 12:28 FM

To; Hesprich, Benjamin D

Subject; FW; Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudi Arabia and Qatar .

Again, sorry for the tardiness of this response. Some parts of these memos are labeled as
incomplete, and we will need to review after those have been drafted. [

JAlso I would Tike to run this past
the relevant L regzonal offices once regional sections are complete, but did not feel this was
yet fully-baked enough to warrant their review. So this is not & full L clearance. But on the
sections that were drafted, [ have the following comments:

If Pressed:

NR
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Contact me with any questions, Thanks.

David

From: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 11:19 AM

To: Hesprich, Benjamin D

Ce: Sullivan, David B; Brancato, Glida M

Subject: FW: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussain BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan,
Turkey, Saudl Arabla and Qatar

David/Gllda — would one of you be able to review while I'm away? Thanks, EA

From: Hesprich, Benjamin D

Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 9:17 AM

To: Morrison, Andrew L; Germano, Marfa L..; Badat, Nasreen I (DRL); Morales, Joannella X (DRL); Aswad, Evelyn M;
McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Daley, Rebecca S; Stanton, Mary Ellen (GH/HIDN/MCH); 'Fitzsimmons, John
(CDC/OID/NCIRD)'; McLinn, Erin J; SRAP-InternationalPartnershipTeam-DL; Reed, Julla G; Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA);
McCants, Willlam F; Rand, Dafna H; Lalka, Robert T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; O'Mara, Martin J; Patch, Seth L (HST ); Vi,
Eugene X (Beljing}; Llederbach, Ertk; Ahn, Michael; Flashberg, Andrew L {Jeddah); Hibrawi, Yasmeen {Jeddah)

Subject: Clearance 11:00am Tuesday November 30 SE Hussaln BCL for meetings/events in China, Kazakhstan, Turkey,
Saudi Arabla and Qatar

Dear colleagues,

Attached is a shell BCL for SE Hussain’s meetings/e\r"ent‘s In China, Kazakhstan, Turkey, Saudi Arabla, and Qatar, Some
points will require ofly minimat tweaks, in other cases, | am asking for|

o | Pve done my best to draft points where passibie]
L but defer to the experts to help us address any sensitivities.

Please clear by 11:00am Tuesday, November 30.

4
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Thank you!
Ben

Benjamin D, Hesprich

International Relations Officer

Bureau of International Organlzations (10}

Office of Policy, Regional and Functional Organizations [PRF)
Room 4524, Main State

P: 202.736.4829

F: 202,647.0598

SBU
This emall s UNCLASSIFIED.
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[RELEASED IN PART B§)

Law, Rosemary C

Sea my edit - coutd we iy to get at leqst this. [

From: Buchwald, Todd F

Sent: Thursday, Febryary 24, 2011 6:05 PM

To: Gorova, Katherine M, Swiney, Gebrlel; Jacobson, Linda; Banos, Mariano H; Kimball, Emity J
Subject: RE: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flolilla.docx

Attachments: 110224 QA35 Goldstona Flotila.docx

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Gorove, Katherine M
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 2:19 PM

Tot Buchwald, Todd F; Swiney, Gabriel; Jacebson, Linda; Banos, Mariano H
Subject: FW: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotifla.docx

Importance: High

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Swinsy, Gabriel

Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 1:57 PM

To: Buchwald, Tedd F

Ce: Gorove, Kathetine M

Subject; FW: Clearance: QA3S Goldstone Flotilla,docx
Importance; High

Todd,  haven’t followed Goldstone etc. at all. in Kate's absence, do you want to clear on this?

SBUY
This smail Is UNCLASSIFIED.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 1:54 PM
To: Reisser, Wesley J; Bass, Warren; Rled, Curtls R (USUNY; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Doutrich, Jack T; Reed, Julia G;

Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Jacobson, Linda; Swiney, Gabriel

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. 05330718 Date: 07/31/2013
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Subject: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.doex
Importance: High

Good afternoon,

Attached please find the HFACO Q&A on Goldstone and the Flotilla. As these papers draw 100% from
previously cleared material ~ I appreciate any ability to provide your comments/clearance by COB today.

Thank you,
Ken

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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Law, Rosemq_ry C

From: Ingber, Rebecca:M

Saent; Thursday, March 10, 2011 415 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Banos, Mariano H

Ce: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: RE: Clearance request - U.8. Staternents at the HRC - ltam 7

Sarah - I'm sorry, I've been crashing on something all day. Per MB’s email, | think you can just put me down for info.
Thanks much,

This emall Is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL)

‘Sent: Thursday, March 10, 2011 4:14 PM

To: Banos, Marfano H

Cei Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M

Subject: RE: Clearance request - 1.5, Statements at the HRC « Item 7

Thanks. Will do. Kafe or Rebecca, do you have any comments?

Best
Sargh

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DAL}
Ofiice of Multilateral and Global Affairs {MLGA)
202-647-0293

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sant: Thursday, March 10, 2011 11:54 AM

To! Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Cc: Gorove, Katherine M; Ingber, Rebecca M

Subject: RE: Clearance request - U.S. Statements at the HRC - Item 7

Thanks Sarah. These look fine. If there are significant substantive changes from other bureaus, can you send us a
consolidated redline? | defer to them, but | am not sure you need further clearance far these from L/PM or L/UNA, as
they are old points and mostly HRC directed. ‘

Best,

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewen

Mariano

sBuY
This email Is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2011'8:22 PM

Tot Ingber, Rebecca M; Banos, Mariano H; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Hickey, Matthew B; Gorove, Katherine M;
Richardson, Eric N; Rand, Dafiia H; 'Busby, Scott W.'; Kumar, Prem G.; Elits; Colin C; Bass, Warren; Khoury-Kincannon,
Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T .

Cc: Relsser, Wesley J; Galindo, David R

Subject! Clearance request - U.S. Statements at the HRC - Item 7

Hello,

Attached please find the U.S. statements on Item 7 Issues:at the HRC 16™ session, Please provide yourclearance by COB
tomorrow; Thursday March 10. These statéments cover flotilla, Gold$tone/Tomuschat/McGowan-Davls, item 7, and the
three Palestinian resolutions on settlements, self-determination and HRs in the OTs. These statements have been
cleared by NEA, SEMEP, IO/HR, EUR, and USUN W so far. There Is an additlonat staternent on SR Falk's report which we
just learned will also be considered this session, it has been cleared with [0 and DRL/NEA so far. All of the statements
are based on previously cleared and public USG statements.

Debate on item 7 will take place on Monday, March 21, Final guidance Is due In Geneva next week. We will call for a
vote and deliver EQVs on flotiila, the 3 Palestinian resoiutions, Goidstone follow-up, but no EOV on the Syrian Golan.

Below are short summarles of the reports we have so far. We do not have the Committee of Legal Experts raport
{previously known as the Tomuschat Committee/Goldstone follow-up) but | will send around as soon as we have it.

UN High Commissioner Piilay on flotiila HRC res. 15/1: A/HRC/16/28

http://www2 ohchr.org/english/bodies/hreouncil/docs/ 16session/A-HRC-16-73 pdf

UN High Commissioner Pillay Tomuschat/Goldstene follow-up HRC res 15/6: AfHRC/16/73

http://www2 chehr org/erglish/bodies/hrcouncil/dacs/ 16session/A-HRC- 16-28.paF

SR Falk: A/HRC/16/72
= Covers flotiila, Israel/UN, settlements, humanitarian situation, peace talks, West Bank roads, Gaza, Israeli
treatment of Palestinian children {klilings/arrests/detention/recent Silwan stone throwing situation)

B5

NR
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NR]

http://www2.ohchr.org/english/bodies/hrcouncil/docs/16session/A-HRC-16-72.pdf

UNSYG report on HR in the occupled Syrian Golan; A/HRC/16/25 —

http://www2.ohchr.ore/english/badies/hreouncil/docs/ 16sassion] A-HRC-15-25.p4F

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Forelgn Affairs Officer

Bureau of Demacracy, Human Rights and Labor {DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293
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[RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Daley, John D

Sent: Thursday, Octobar 14, 2010 3:51 PM

To: Gorove, Kathering M

Subject: RE: Clearance Request: IQ Prass Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla
Yes.

From: Gorove, Kathérine M

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 3:48 PM

To: Daley, John D

Subject: FW: Clearance Request: 10 Press Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla

] | B5

From: Busby, Scott W, [mailto:Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov]

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 1:17 PM

To! Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bass, Warren; Cooper, Kurtls A; 10-HR-DL; Coughlin, Shaun (5/WCT); Banos,
Mariano H; Sayles, Ambrose G; Vasquez, Etigar J; Ventrel, Patrick H (USUN); Kornblau, Mark (USUN); Cook, Akunna E; p-
IO Duty; Burke-White, William; Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov; EUR-Press; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Kumar, Prem G.;
Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Kolb, Natalle; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E; Gorove, Katherine M; Martin,
Julie B; Perina, Alexandra H; Doutrich, Jack T Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Andris, Matthew R; Honigsteln, Michael D

Ce: Levin, Jan; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL)

Subject: RE: Ciearance Request; 10 Press Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL) [matito:JohnstonGardnerSR@state.gov]

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 12:57 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Cooper, Kurtls A; I0-HR-DL; Coughlin, Shaun (S/WCI); Banos, Mariano H; Sayles, Ambrose G;
Vasquez, Edgar J; Ventrell, Patrick H (USUN); Kornblay, Mark (USLIN); Cook, Akunna E; P-1Q Duty; Burke-White, Willlam;
Scott_W._Busby@nss.eop.gov; EUR-Press; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Kumar, Prem G.; Masllko, Barbara J {USUN); Kolb,
Natalle; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Gregonis, Meghan E; Gorove, Katherine M; Martin, Julle B; Perina, Alexandra H;
Doutrich, Jack T; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Andris, Matthew R; Honigstein, Michael D

Cc: Levin, Jan; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Cassldy, Joseph P; McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL)

Subject: RE: Clearance Request: IQ Prass Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla

Adding Turkey desk, S/WCIl and more from L,

Iclear for DRL/MLGA with attached edits.[ o o - ]

Best,

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Sarah

. Sarah lohnston-Gardner
Forgign Affairs Offlcer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor {DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

From: Bass, Warren

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 11:52 AM

To; Cooper, Kurtis A; I0-HR-DL; Coughlin, Shaun (S/WCI); Banos, Marlano H; Sayles, Ambrose G; Vasquez, Edgar J;
Johnsten-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bass, Warren; Ventrell, Patrick H (USUN); Kornblau, Mark (USUN); Cook, Akunna E; P-
10 Duty; Burke-White, William; 'Scotl;_W.,_.Bustry@nss.eop.'gov’; EUR-Press; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Kumar, Prem G.;
Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Subject: FW: Clearance Request: 10 Press Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla

Importance: High

Looping Barbara, SEMEP and NSC/NENA,

From: Cooper, Kurtis A

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 11:41 AM

To: IO-HR-DL; Coughlin, Shaun {S/WCI); Banos, Mariano H; Sayles, Ambrose G; Vasquez, Edgar J; Johnston-Gardner,
Sarah R (DRL); Bass, Warren; Ventrell, Patrick H (USUN); Kornblau, Mark (USUN); Cook, Akunna E; P-JO Duty; Burke-
White, William; "Scott_W,_Busby@nss.eop.gov'; EUR-Press

Subject: Clearance Request: IO Press Guidance on Turkish Complaint to ICC on Gaza Flotilla

Importance; High

Colleagues:

Kurtls

Turks accuse Israel of war crimes at int'l court

AP Assoctzia Press
By ARTHUR MAX, Associated Press Writer Arthur Moax, Associated Press Writer

AMSTERDAM ~ Turkish lawyers representing pro-Palestinian activists filed a complaint Thursday with the
International Criminal Court accusing Israel of committing war crimes in May when its troops raided a boat
trying to break Israel's blockade of Gaza,

2
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It was unclear whether the prosecutor would agree to pursue the case or whether the court has jurisdiction. But
the filing reignited an issue that has severcly strained [srael's relations with Turkey, previously its strongest ally
in the Muslim world, and keeps Israel on the defensive over its much-criticized Gaza blockade.

A delegation representing some 300 activists and a Turkish nongovernment organization submitted the
complaint to the prosecutor's office in The Hague seeking an investigation into the May 31 raid,

Nine Turkish citizens, including 19-year-old Furkan Dogan who had dual U.S.-Turkish nationality, were killed
during the melee after Israeli troops rappelled from helicopters onto the deck of the ship Mavi Marmara before
dawn.

" have confidence the international court and the prosecutor will take this case," said Ahmet Dogan, Furkan's
father.

Israel has said its troops fired live ammunition only after they were attacked by activists with clubs and metal
bars and they felt their lives were in danger.

Attorney Ugur Sevgili said the victims want Israel investigated for torture, inhwinen treatment, the taking of
hostages and other violations of the Geneva war crimes convention.

"We demanded from the prosecutor to Initiate an investigation and prosecute the perpetrators of this erime,"
Sevgili said. "We didn't mention any Israeli soldiers or any Istaeli politicians. We just told them that we believe
war crimes and crimes against humanity were committed,"

The court, which began work in 2002 as the world's first permanent war crimes tribunal, reccives hundreds of
complaints every year, but so far has filed indictments against 17 war crimes suspects — all of them involved in
African conflicts.

Dogan, speaking outside the court's headquarters, said he thought politics might get in the way of justice.

"I believe that people who killed my son will be prosecuted. However, this case also has intemational and
political dimensions," he said.

A U.N.-appointcd panel of human rights experts, chaired by a former judge of the international court, found tast
month that Israel violated human rights law during its interception of the flotilla carrying humanitarian supplies
to Gaza, which has been under an Israeli blockade for three years.

Israel rejected the panel's findings, which it said were biased and one-sided, and said the U.N. Human Rights )
Council that appointed the panel is heavily weighted in the Palestinians' favor. ;

The court normally intercedes only if the country involved is among the 114 nations that have endorsed the
court's founding treaty. Israeli is not a signatory, but the ship was flying the flag-of the Comoros Istand, which
is a member of the court. '

Sevgili said he expected the Comoros to support the victims' application to the court or file its own complaint.

The prosecutor also nay initiate an investigation even if the accused country does not belong to the court — but
only if he determines that the country is unable to launch its own credible investigation of human rights abuses.

3
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Among the complaints submitted and presumably pending in the prosecutor's office is an application by the
, Palestinian Authority 18 months ago asking for a war crimes investigation into Israel's brief yet deadly 2008
‘ war in Gaza.

. SBU
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" Law, Rosemary C (RELEASED IN PART Bé)
From: Schwarlz, Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 4:00 PM
To: Gorove, Kathering M
Subject: RE: EU Council statement on Gaza Flotilla

Sounds ke we drafted. . .

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:56 PM

Yo: Schwartz, Jonathan B '

Subject: FW: EU Council statement on Gaza Flotilla

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Monday, June 14, 2010 3:51 PM _

To: Jacobson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: Fiw: EU Counci] statement on Gaza Flotilla

FYl.

R . T LI N R R o — B e rm— e

F-rom: Caséayre, Mark]

N

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Enav, Cari R;
Donahoe, Elleen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Griffiths, Douglas M; Ostermeler, Amy A; Banos, Marlano H; Aswad, Evelyn M;

Brancato, Gilda M; Foley, Tara E
Sent: Mon Jun 14 14:18;56 2010
Subject: EU Council statement on Gaza Flotilla

FYL
THE EUROPEAN UNION

Council conclusions on Gaza
3023rd FOREIGN AFFAIRS Council meeting
Luxembourg, 14 June 2010

The Councii adopted the following conclusions:

1. "The EU deeply regrets the loss of life during the Israeli military operation in intemational
waters against the Flotilla sailing to Geza and condemns the use of violence. The Couneil
believes that an immediate, full and impartial inquiry into these events and the
circumstances surrounding them is essential. To command the confidence of the
international community this should include credible international participation.

2, The situation in Gaza remains unsustainable. The continued policy of closure is
unacceptable and politically counterproductive. The EU calls for an urgent and fundamental

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewan
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change of policy leading to a durable solution to the situation it Gaza. In line with UNSC
Resolution 1860, the EU reiterates its call for an immediate, sustained.and unconditional
opening of crossings for the flow of humanitarian aid, commereial goods and persons to and
from Gaza including goods from the West Bank. The Council calls for a solution that
addresses Israel's legitimate security concerns including a complete stop to all violence and
arms smuggling into Gaza.

3. The Council deplores the continuing acts of rocket fire. All those responsible must take
immediate and concrete steps to cease and prevent such violence, The Council calls on
those holding the abducted Israeli soldier Gilad Shalit to release him without delay, Hamas
must also unconditionaily allow ICRC access and end its interference with the operations of
NGOs and UN agencies in Gaza,

4. The EU stands ready to contribute to the implementation of a mechanism based on the 2005
Agreement on Movement and Access that would permit the reconstruction of Gaza and the
revival of its economy. To this end, full and regular access via land crossings, and possibly

by sea, on the basis of a list of prohibited goods, should be the prime aim, while at the same
time providing strict control over the destination of imported merchandise, To achieve
progress on the ground, the High Representative will continue to engage with the
Government of Israel, the Palestinian Authority, Quartet members and other appropriate
parties as a matter of urgency and present EU options with a view to the next Foreign

Affairs Council,

3. The Council recalls its conclusions of December 2009. The EU siresses the paramount
importance that the proximity talks continue with a view to the resumption of direct
negotiations which should lead to a settiement negotiated between the parties within 24
months. All efforts to achieve Palestinian reconciliation behind President Mahmoud Abbas
must be accelerated. The Council acknowledges Egyptian efforts in this respect.”

Mark Cassayre

Counselor

Political and Specialized Agencies

U.S. Mission to the United Nations and Specialized Agencies
Geneva, Switzerland

Divect te; +41 22 749-4214

Mobile:

Fax: +41L3Z739.4717"

cassayremj@stace.gov

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doe No. C05330732 Date: 07/31/2013

StateDept004896

B6




UNCLAGSIEIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Dot No, 05330857 Date: 06/25/2013

[RECEASED IN FULT)

The Public Commission
to Examine the Maritime
incident of 31 May 2010

The Turlke] Comnitssion

[Pp—

| Pairt one

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reéviewer]

-
il i )
. - T et Sy T e e T “ PR
R A R TR ALy ¥ -,’....;...,J R o ,
T i
i

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departmenit of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330857 Date: 06/25/2013

StateDept004897



UNCLASSIFIED U.S, Depariment of Stafe Case No. F-2010-04163 Dot No, C05330857 Date: 06/25/2013

The Public Commission
to Examine the Maritime

Incident of 31 May 2010

The Turkel Commission
January 2010

Report | Part one

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330857 Date: 06/25/2013

StateDept004898




r

UNCTASSIFIED 1.8, Depariment of State Gase No, F-2010-04163 Dot No. C05330867 Date: 06/25/2013

UNCLASSIFIED U.S, Department of State- Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330857 Date: 08/25/2013

StateDept004899




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Gase No. F-2070-04163 Doc No. 05330857 Date: 08/25/2013

The Public Comm'ission to Bxainine the Macitirme
Incident of 31 May.2010

M. Benjamin Netanyahu
The Prithe Miriister
The honorable Prime Minisfer,

Re: Repostof th _ Xan
Incident of May 31, 2010 - Part One

Pursuant to paragraph 10 of Government resolution no. 1796 of
Jimne 14, 2010, we vespectfully submit to'the Government a report on the
followirig matters: -

a. The security circumstances in which the naval blockade on the Gaza
Strip was imposed and whether the blockade complieg with the rules
ofinternational law (paragraph 4aof the Govemment resolution}.

b. Whether fhe actions carried out by Israel to enforce the naval blockade
on May 31, 2010, complied with ihe rules of international law
{paragraphi 4b of the Government resolution).

c. The actions carried oif by the organizers and participants of the flotilla
and their identities (paragraph 4c of the Government resolution).

Tn the next stage, the conuvidssion will submit part two of the report,
which will address. the question whether the inechanisin for exaimining
and investigating complainis and daims of violations of the Jaws of war,
as carried out by Tsrsel in general, and as implemriénted with regard to
the events of May 31, 2010, in particular, complies- with the obligations of
the State of Israel pursuant o fhe rules of international law, Part two of
the report will also address other questions that arose from the material
before the commission, ‘

e Commigsi

&:( ; Leod /2‘(\

Justice Emeritus Jacob Tiirkel Ambassador Reuven Merhav
Chairrian of the commission Member of the commission
Major-General {res.). Amos Horev Prof, Miguel Deuich
Member of the-commdssion Membert of the comenission
Whwid Tinde Jato
Lord David Trimble Brigadier-General (ret.} Kenneth Watkin
Observer Observer
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‘Commission Members

Jiistice (Ret.} Jacob Turket, Chairman

Ambassador Professor Shabtai Rosenne; (Deceased 21.9.10)
General (Ret,) Amos Horev

Ambassador Renven Marhav

Professor Miguel Deutch

Foreign Observers.

Lord David Trimble (United Kingdom)

‘Brigadier General (Ret.) Kenneth Watkin, Q.C. (Canada)
Commission Codrdinator

Advocate Hoshea Gottlieb

Special Consultants

Prof. Dr. Wolff Helntschel von Heinegg, (Germany)
Prof. Michiael Schimitt (United Kingdom\ U.S.A.)

Legal Staff

Advocate Christine Bjork
Advocate Haim Wismonsky
Advocate Moran Yahav

Reasearch Assistants
Ms. Hagit Gluska
Mrs: Yael Levy

Mr, Ariel Naftaly

Mr. Matanya Cahlon

Commission Spokesman
M. Ofer Lefler

Administrative Staff
Mt. Avi Atas

Mr. Kfir Halfon

Mrs: Tali Mehaber
Mrs. Toni Foigelrnan
Mr. Aviad Feigin
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The Rt. Hon. (William) David Trimble, Lord Trimble
Brigadier-General (Ret.) Kenneth Watkin, Q.C.

1t i5 an honour forus ta serve as Observers to the Public Commission

‘appointed to inquire into the maritime incident of 31 May 2010. We

understood and accepted the sensitivities that led to our appolntment as
observers to the Comunission afid not, stiictly speaking, meinbers of it.
Nonetheless we are satisfied that we had access to 2ll the material before
the Commission and we were fully involved by the Commission in all its

‘work,

All testimonies; both in open arid private session and. all forrmal

‘meetirigs -of the Commission were, of course, conducted in Hebrew,
However they were simultaneously translated for us-into English. In the-

early days:there were some difficulties with the transiation of documents

into English; these were quickly overcome as our work proceeded.

We are glad that the Commission made repeated efforts to hear
both sides; extending to making arrangement for evidence to be given by

- video conferencing and offering to take evidence in a neutral location. We

regret that these offers were not talcen up. But we would like to express
our dppreciation of the Israeli Arabs, who were on the Mavi Marmara and
who gave evidence to us: We would also like to thank the representatives
of the Tsraeli Human Rights Non-Governmental Organizations who
testified and provided significant material to the Comumission,

The Commission made enormousefforts, toget asmmich information
as possible. This involved going back to the IDF for additional informaltion,

obtaining fuxther staff to examine all the video material (hundreds of

hours) including the CCTV downloaded from the Mavi Marmara and to
collate the-material so that it has been able to examine each use of force
by the IDF. We have also been impressed with the efforts of the small but
very dedicated team of lawyers supporting the work of the Commission.

We have ho doubt that the Comunission is independent. This part of
the report is evidence of its rigour.

On a personal note we want to thark all the members of the
Commission who each have gone out of their way to welcorne and assist
us.- It is a pleasure to work with them, Spedial mention must be made of
the chairman, Judge Turkel, for his consideration of us personally and the
clarity with which he directed the work of the commission,

Turke! Cormnmission Report 11
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We wguld also like to extend our sincere appréciation to the treless
efforts of Commission Coordinator, Hoshea Gottlieb, ‘who has been
instrumental in ensuring our successful participation in this Commission.

We would alsolike to place on récord ouit énotmousregard for those
whic have agsisted us$ as Observers [rom outside of Israel including the stafl
who provided. the simultatieous translations of all the oral proceedings,
punctuated only by reminders to us to- speak into' the: microphones; the
translators whoensured voluminous texts were available to us in English;
and the ever helpful and diligent administrative staff who have looked
after our every logistical need.

Finally. we regret that our acquamtance with Shabtai Rosenne was
cut short by his'death. He impressed us with his knowledge, experience,
insight anid, above all, with his'character and courtesy. He was a true-

gentleman,
Wud Tirbe St
Lord David Trimble Kenneth Watkin

Brigadier-General (Ret.)

12 | Turkel Cormmission Repaort
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Preface to the Report

When the commisston was established, we took upon ourselves,
jointly and as individuals, the difficultand agonizing task of ascértaining
the truth regarding the isstes that we were asked to address. The
commission wag given complete independence, and each of its members
has. a record of many ‘years of independent and objective service in
various capacities: a Supréme Court;uShce, one-of the most senior judges
in'Israel; a5 chairiman ‘of the comrmission; a professot scholar, diplomat
and researcher of international reputafion in the feld of internatonal law;
who sadly p'assed away during the Commission's work on September 21,
2010; a former- presrdent of the Technion - Israel Institizte of Techniology,
2 major-getieral in the IDF and the chaitman of the board of directors of
‘Rafael, with rich'expetience; ineliding on public.commissions of inquiry;
an expert in Middle-East studies, a senior member of theintelligence and
security establishment, a diplomat experienced in international relations,
an ambassador and formey-diseéctor-general of the Ministry. of Foreign
.Affdirs; a professor, teacher, scholar, researcher and author of repute
‘in the field of civil law. Two. obsetverd sat with us, as- members of the
comunission in évery tespect: Lotd David Trimble from Ireland, a Nobel
peace prize winner and formerly the First Minister of the Northern Jretand
Assembly, and Brigadier-General (res.) Kenneth Watkin from Canada,
fortnerly the Judge Advocate-General of the Canadian Forces.

Initially we thought that the invéstigation of the circumstarices in
‘which the naval blockade was imposed on the Gaza Strip and enforced
and the legality of these actions would not require the consideration of
difficult factual and legal questions. But it goon became clear to us that
the investigation would be lengthy and complex, and require a detailed
stiudy both of fact and law. We therefore asked the Govermment to extend
the powers of the comunission and: to-inerease the number of its members
(from three, at the time of the oziginal appointment, to five); in order to .
enable if to- carry out jts duties. in an optirnal manner. The. Government
agreed to this request.

Ag anl example of the need that arose for wider and muore
comptehensive investigations, it should be said here that:at quite an early
stage'we realized that we'could not examine the naval blackade without
also examining the land crossings policy for the transfer of humanitarian
supplies to the Gaza Strip and even the humanitarfan sitnation in the Gaza
‘Strip in general. Admittedly, the question.of the land crossings policy and
the humanitarian sitwation in the Gaza Strip would appear, prima facie,

¢ to go beyond the scope of the naval blockade - whoge purpose was to
: prevent the passage of weapons to the. Gaza Strip by sea, a route that

Turket Cormmission Report | 13
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has never been used to convey humanitarian supplies - but the mistaken
impression formied in certain circles with regard to the purposes of the
blockade compelled. 1is to cotisider this jssue as well, and to widen our
investigation far' more than we had originally thought.

Another exarriple of a guestion that required far more extensive
and thorough consideration was the question of the circumstances and
legality of the takeover of the.Mavi Mirmiars and the other flotilla vessels
by TOF forces. In this regard we felt ourselves diity-bound to exarnine the
‘precise details of all the acts and-operations carried outby each individual-
membier of the armed forces and the security personnel that boarded
the - Mavi Marmars and the other flotilla-vessels, minute by minute, and
‘we examined the legality of the acts with great care from every proper
perspective,

In investigating these and other issues in all their aspects, ve have
been as precise as possible and done. everything that flesh and blood can
do'when called upon {0 pass judgmentin such a matter. We have devoted
otrselves to our work and aspired to arrive at the exact trath, éven if it
is hard and painful. Along this route, we have hoped that we should not
stumble or eit either in a matter of fact or of law. We hope that we have
succeeded in achieving this,

Here we would like to express our gratitude and deep appreciation
to the observers who sat with us, Lord Trimble and Brigadier-General
Watkin, for their substanilal and important contribution to the
commission’s Wwork and. for the considerable. trouble that they took; to
the external consultants of international reputation, Prof. Dr. Wolff
Heintschel von Heinegg and Prof. Michael Schmitt, who agreed with
the legal conclusions of the report; reviewed and ¢ommented on the
Commission’s legal analysis; and agreed with the legal conclusions,
for their very valuable help; to Prof: Ruth Lapidoth, recipient of the
Israel Prize for international law, for her advice' and very important
guidance, Special thanks are given to the excellent team of jurists and the
administrative staff who assisted us tirelessly, and especially to Advocate
Hoshea Gottlieb, the Cornmission Coordinator. Without his considerable
and importarit legal arid administiative assistance, this report could not
have been published.

14 | Turkel Commissian Report
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Introduction .

The backgroundto the establishment of the
Commission and the Government decisions

1. Since the beginning of 2001, thousands of mortais. and Tockets of
various kinds:have been fired in ever growing numbers from the Gaza
Stedp at towns-in te South of Israel near the Gaza Strip, various IDF
military bases, the border crossings between Israel and the Gaza Strip
(and before the disengagement from the Gaza Strip, also at Israeli towns
in the Gaza Strip).! After the Hamas terrorist organization seized control
of the Gaza Strip in June 2007, the Government adopted variotis measures.
Later, oni January 3, 2009; a naval blockade was algo smposed on-the Gaza
Strip2

2 Following information regarding the organization of flotillas
whose stated destination was the Gaza Strip (and which therefore sought
to breach the naval blockade), the State-of Israel took various diplomatic
and other measures, both openly and covertly, to-prevent the departure
of these flotillas by peaceful means. Several ships that tried to reach the
Gaza Strip did indeed-turn back; others were intercepted by the Israeli

- mavy without the use of force and brought to a port in Israel, and the
humanitariar supphes on board were transported to the Gaza Strip via
the land crossings.

3 In the days preceding May 31, 2010, a flotilla of six- vessels?
advanced towards the coastline of Israel, with approximately 700 persons
on board.* The largest of the ships.in the flotilla, the Muwi Marmara, with

1 Se The Public Comumission te Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2040° (position
paper by e TDE Militaty Advocate General,]uly 2010), miarked by the Cormmission: as
exhibit 10 [hereinafier MAG position paper); "threat of rockets from Gaza Shrip 2000-2
{report by Thi" Entelhgente and Tetrorisi Information Ceister, The Intelligence Legacy
Centér (IICC) chaired by Reaven Elirlich; December 2007); terrorism-info: org.il/malam_
multiegedia/Hebrew/heb_n/pdt/rocket_threat,  pi.

Seo declaration by Minister of Deferise "Resclution of Naval Blockade (Jah. 3, 2009,

This report yses the definitions of the Ministey of Transportahcm (Shlpping atid Ports
Authiority), which defines a 'boal’ us & vessel which is not & ship 'and its full length is

-above ? meters; and 4 shhp ag & vessel whose capacity {gross) Is above 100 ons, its length
is above 24 melers and is licehised to iansport meiré than 12 passengers oul of the lsraeli
coasts. Ini this flofilla, there were bwa boats (Buat SFENDONH 8000, CHALLENGER) and
fouur ships (Mavt Marmars, GAZZE, SOFIA, DEFNE Y). Sea the definitions chapter of the
Seamanship (Sailors} regu.lahons, 5762-2000,

4 Sec Ministry of the Interfor data s submitted to the Conunission o Jatv. 9,2011, found in

foldet masked by the Commjssion as exhibit.147, Acqordmg to the Lmimigration Authority
690 foreign citizens pirticlpated in the cruise, alang with five Iirachi citizens and two

[ X}
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approximately 29 créw members and 561 passengers constituted. the
scene of the incident that is described. below. The State of Israel also
adopted various measures with regard to this flofilla before it departed,
but:these efforts were unsuccessfiil. Offérs to allow the supplies for the
Gaza Stiip to enter via Ashdod port or El-Arish port and thereafter via the
latid croggings- were riot'accepted.

On May 31, 2010, ia the- -early hours of the: morning, IDF forces
boarded: the Mavi Marniam and took control of the vessel. During the
boarding and taking control of the ship, the IDF forces encotntered
violent resistanice. When the conflict ended; it was foimd that niné of the
ship's passengers had been shot dead, and fifty-five passengers and nine.
IDE goldiers were wounded.

4 On June 14, 2010, the Government of Israel decided to establish an
independent public Commission to exainine various aspects of the actions
taken by the State of Israel to preverit the ships froin reaching the Gaza
Strip coaston May 31, 2010 (hereafter: the Government resolution of June
14, 2010).* Supremne Court Justice Emeritug Jacob Tiirkel was appointed
to chair the Commission, and the late Professor Shabtai Rosenne and
General (res:) Amos Horev were appointed as members. Two foreign
experts were also appointed to act:as obiservers (hereafter: the observers):
Lotd David Trimble and Brigadier-General (ret.) Kenneth Watkin,

The Commission was asked to'examine the following issues:

Palestinians.

5 It should be noted that the data transferred to- the Commission on Hils matter is nat
unambiguous, This ddta wiilch will serve ug Iater on, is baged on the radio recording of
the Marmata caplain’s answez to the navy's question regarding the mumber of passengers
on the.ship; aiidio file:ge; 12 156:550 30 05_2010.22. 23.28_19_ 1 WAW" {minute §2:00
and onwards) From foltder 633, in the Navy-folder on a data hard disc, marked by ihe
Comupission as - exhibit 133, transferred to- the' Compitsstons on 16.09.2010 Thereafter:
Nawy dabr disc). This data corresponds with a list by. AMAN. At the sative time, various
saurces atIDF and Istaell Police have trangferied differént data to the Cormimission o this
matiet. Thus for example, vatious ID sources estimated that there were a larger number
of passengers on the Marmara's dick. The ship’s fog, ansferred to the Comumission by
Isracli Police, stipulates a diffétent rimber - 601 ~ including 44 créw members and 557
passengers. The listis detailed and alsd includes the nationalities of the passengers: At the
safne time, it cannot be kiown whethier this Bt wis achially updated or whetheritisa list
eontainiing the names of the passengers wha mgned up for the crulge. The Mindskry of the
Interigestated thit-at the end of the day438 passengeis disembarked from the Marmara
at Ashdod's port {sinca some of the passengers wounded in the course of events were
evatuated by airand the nine killed werd evactiated by sed).

6  Resolution 1796 -of the 3Znd Government “ippointment of a independent public
Comumisstoi; chairéd by the supreme cotitt fudge (rat), Jacob Turkel, to- examine the
marifimae incident of May 31; 2010" {Jun. 14; 2010) (hereinafter Government Resolution of
14.6,2010},

16 | Turkel Comnmission Report
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a. An exarnination of the security circumstances for imposing
anaval blockade on the Gaza Strip.and whether the naval
blockade corplies with the rules of internatiorial law.

b. Whether the acts cartied out by Israel to enforce the naval
blotkade on May 31, 2010, complied with the rules of
international lav.

¢.  Anexamination of the acls carried out by the organizers and
participants of the flotilla, and their idertities.”

The Comriission was also asked to examine. ‘the queéstion whether
the examination:and investigation process-for complairits and allegations
raised’ with regard to violations of the law of conibat; as generally
practiced. i Israel and as imiplemented with regard to the incident-under
consideration; is consistentt with the obligations of the State of Israel
pursuant fo the rules of international law.’®

The resolution also provided that the observers would participate
in the deliberations and cofsultations of the Commission, but “would
not have a right to vote with regard to the Commission’s' proceedings
and conclusions.” At the outset, it should be noted that the two fordipn
observers were full patticipants in the Commission’s work, as if they were
actual members, including: the hedring of the- testimonies, the infernal
consultations and the preparation of this report. The observers gave of
their time and: efforts in order to ensure the work was of the highest

| standard, while critically examining the procedures that were followed
' and seeking to arrive'at the truth, and they thereby made a very significant
confribution to the Commission’s work, '

Advocate Hoshea Gottlieb was appointed as the Commission's
Coordinator,

! 5 On July 4, 2010, the govemment decided to extend the
Commission’s powets and to give jt certain powers pursuant-to the
. Commisgions of Inquiry Law, 5729-1968;
: ‘The Minister of Justice shall determine that the Comrnisston will
be given powers pursuant to sections 9:to 11 and 27(b) of the
Comuriissions of Inquiry Law, 5729-1968; subject to the restrictions
stated in paragraph 6(c) of the aforesaid (Government resolution
no. 1796 [the Government-resolution of June 14, 2010],°

7 Governmidnt Resoliction of 14.6.2010; supra note 6, st art. 4.
8 - Governmenl Resolition of 14.6,2010, supranote §, at ait. 5.
9 Groerpien! Resolnkion of 14.6.2010, sapra note 6, at orf, 3.
i Resolution1895.of the 32nd Govémment “granting authority b the public Commission

for the examination of the marilime incident of May 31, 2010" (Jul. 4; 2010) ihe_reinaﬂer
Governntent Resoliition of 4.7.2010]. )
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On July 5, 2010, the Minister of Justice decided accordingly.

On July 25, 2010, the Govetnment decided to expand the
Corunission’s panel by adding two more members; Arabassador Reuven
Merhav and Profesgor Miguiel Deutch.®

On September 21, 2010, the late Professor Shabtai Rosenne passed
away. The governmient subsequently resclved on October 11, 2010, not
to-appoint a replacement, The chairman of the Commission - was given a
"casting vote inany case of a tied:vote by the members of the Commmission,
6 At the time of writing this report, two consultarits that are
prominent expetts In ‘the field of international law advised the
Commission; Professor Dr. Wolff Heintschel von Heinegg and Professor
Michael Schmitt,” who agreed with the legal conclusions of the report.
Professor Ruth Lapidot, who received the Israel Prize for intemational
law, alsocontributed sigriificantly to the preparation of the report, and
the Commission extends its thanks to her.

7 The team that assisted in the Commission’s work included
Churistine Bjork, Adv. Haim Wismontsky, Adv. and Moran Yahav, Adyv,

For the sake of completeness, it-should be mentioned that after the
Comumission was established, a pefition was filed in fhie Supreme Court

11 -Bee Justice Minister's Resolution "determination regerding the granting of authority to the
public Commission for the éxamination of the matitime incicént 6f May 31, 2010° Jul. 5,
2010} (heréingfter fustics Minfster Resolitfon of 5.7.20101. i

12 ‘Resolution 2134 by the 32nd Government "sppoiiting additional meribers to participate
ify the public Comnizsion clisired by thee supreme court judge (ret), Jacob Turkel, to
examing the maritime incident of May 31, 2610" (Jul. 25, 2010} [heretnafter Governnrint
Resotidion of 25.7.2010}. )

13 Resolution 2297 by the 32nd Government “the public Conirission to examine the maritime
incident of My 31,2010 chaitéd by judge (ret.), Jacob Turkel - following the death of Prof.
Shabtai Rosenne” (Oxts 4, 2010) (hereinaftez Governnrent-Resolution of 4.10.2010],

M Prof. Dr. Wollf Helnlschel vor Helriegy I8 the Vice-President of the Buropa-Universitit
Viddelne in Frankfurt (Oder), Germany, where he is Professor of Public Intermational Law,
European Law and Comparative Constitutional Law. He previously servéd as dean of
the taw facilly of the Burgpa-Universitat and was-the Chailes H; Stockion Frofessor of
Interpiational Law af the U5 Naval War College in Newport, R.L, USA. He is 2 member
of the Council of the International Instivte of Humanitarian Law in San Remo, Italy and
was s meniber of the group.of International lawyezs and naval experts whe produced the
SanRermo-Manual, o

15 Prof. Michael Schimdtt; BA, MA, MA, LLM; JD is Chait of Publi¢ International Law at
Biirkam Law Schaol, United Kingdam, Flewas previously Dean of the George € Marshall
Buropean Center for Secutity Studies in Garinisch-Partenkirchen, Germany, and Chatles
H. Stockton Professof of Initernational Law at the {1.5. Naval War College in Newport, R,
USA, Heserved for 20 years in tha United States Air Force, specializing in vperational and
international law. Proféssor Schmitt is the General Edltor of the Yearbook of Intemnational
Humanitarian Law. )
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‘against the establishment of a public Commission of examination by
the government instead of a public Commission of inquiry.' Another
petition was filed on account of the absence of womien members on the
Commission."” The former pelition wag amended after the Government
resolution of Iuly 4, 2010, regarding the extension of the Cormission's
‘powers, and it is pending before the Suprenie Court, with-the consent
of the parties and pursuant to ‘the court’s recommendation, until the
Comunission’s conclusions are submitted, in view: of the possxblhty that
the issue raised ini the petition may become moot: The latter pétition was
granted by the court, which ordered that a woman should be appointed
as a member of the Commlssmn, but itwent on fo hold that insofar as the
appointment-would be offéered by a-gpecified date to five women who
had not been offered the position in‘the past and all of thein refused it,
the Governament would have discharged it duty pursuant to the Women's
Equal nghts Law, 5711-1951.. Pussuant to- the court'’s decision;, efforts
were made to find women who would agree to serve as membexs of the
Comuhission. On August 18, 2010, the Minister of Juslice notified the
Prime Minister that an offer was made to five women who had not been
offered the position ini the past, and all of them refused it." A notice to this
effect was submitted to'the Supremé Cotrt.”

Deliberations of the Commission

8 It is not superfluous to emphasize from the outset that the scope
of the Commission’s work involves questions of both fact and law, and
it follows ‘that the examination of the facts was an essential and main
element of its work. The Commission took steps to collect the information
in various ways, and also heard oral and written évidence. Ateach stage of
ita work, the Commission sought to arrive independently and impartially
at the truth; by means of a careful and ob;echve consideration of the
evidence that was bronght before it, and with maximum tratisparency of
its progeedings.

9 Hearing testimonies. In view of the importance that the Commission
attached to making as much information as possible available to. the
public, the sessions at which testimonies were heard were opén to the

i6  See HCJ 4641/ 10 Liri Avneri o Prinié Minister (aubmltted on Jun. 15,2010).

17 HCJ5660/10-fiach - Woneri Lawyjers for Secial Justice v. Prine Minigter (still unpublished,
Aug. 22,2010} [hercinafter HC 5660/10].

1B On'this matter see letter from Mindster of Jusice Yaskov Neeman to the Prime Minister of
Israel titled "Supreme Court order in its function as high court of justice on HCJ 5660/16"
(dated Aug. 22,2010).

19 See state's nokica regarding HCJ 5660710 (submitted Aug. 22,2010},
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public; even though parts of the testimonies were heard in camera for
reasons of State security and Israel’s foreign relations, pursuant to
what was sfated in the Government’s resolution of furie 14, 20102 The
‘Commission informed the witnesses that after hearing the testimonies in
camera; it nrught decide to distlose parts of them, If shoiild also be noted
that the transcripts of all of the testimonies that were heard publicly were
uploaded to the Commission’s Internet site shortly after fhe kestimonies
‘werehieard.” All of the testinionies were translated into English by means
of simultaneous translation and. the transcripts in English were also
uploaded to the Commission’s Internet site.

In total the Commission heard twenty-six testimonies during fifteen
days of hearings, and eleven testimordes in camera. The liat of the witnesses
that appeared before the Commission and, the dates and classified status
of their festimonies are set out in annex "A™.

It shiould be rioted that the Goverrunent resolution of June 14, 2010,
determined (which was also confirmed in the Government decision of
July 4,2010) that with regard to-the examination of the mxhtary operations
that were carried out by Israel to enforce the naval blockade on May
31, 2010, the Commission ‘would be able to inspect the documents that
it requires and would also be able to ask the head of the investigation
team appointed by the Chief of Staff to show it the conclusions of the
operational investigations that were carried out following the incident’
(ie., the final report of the military investigations that were carded out
by a committee: chaired by Major-General (rés.) Giora Eiland; hereafter:
the Eiland Committee report). Howéver, it was determined that insofar
as after reviewing, these conclusions of the investigation the Commission
would be of the opinion that ‘there is a-neéd for more thorough and
extensive investigations, it could ask the head of the expert investigation
team appointed by the Chief of Staff to'order this to be done and to present
to the Commission the conclusions of the investigations that would be
carried out within thils context.’

In orxder to ascertain: the whole truth and in order to obtdin
closer access to the actual sources of the information, the Commission
exercised the power given to it in the aforesaid Government resalution to
request more thorough and extengive investigations: (hereafter: Further
Debriefings of Sepiember 20, 2010). Pursuant to the Commission’s
request, it was therefore resolved that a representation of the Comimission

20 See Government Resoluiion of 14.6.2010, supra note 6; at art, 7.
21 See The Public Coniinission tu Exatiing the Maritive Incident of May 31, 2020, atiilnble ot
www.turkel-committee. gov.1i.

20 [ Turkel Commission Report
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and -were not involved in the incident, who would carry out further.

mquues for the Cominission, in accordance with detalled: instructions
of the' Commiission’s’ representation and with its assistance. Within the
scope ‘of these inquiries, documented testimonies were taken from 38

combat personnel and other IDF personnel who were directly involved

in the events, and extensive additional material dorumenting the various
aspects of the Incident was received (the written staterments that were
provided to the: Cornimission within this context will be referred to in

this report as “testimanies”). Following this, additional supplementary
inquires were cartied out; in which tweniy addmonal eombat personnel

and 23 combat and éther TDF personnel provided additional written
testimony {hereaﬁer IDF Supplementary Response¢ to the Commission's
Questions of November 7, 2010; IDF Supplementary Response to the

‘Commission's Questions of November 15, 2010; IDF Supplementary

Response to the Commission's Questions of November 29, 2010; 1DF
Supplementary Response to the Commission's Quiestions of December
7, 2010; ¥DE Supplementary Resporise ta the Commission's Questions
of December$, 2010; IDF Supplemenlary Response to the Commission’s
Questions of December 30; 2010). This material enabled the Commission
to make a precise examination of the whole process of taking control of the
ship and the military preparations that preceded it In order to complete
the pictute of the inivestigation, even the Chief of Staff was summoned to
testify once again on October 24, 2010 (in addition to his initial testimony
on August 11, 2010).

In this regard it should be nioted that the Commission hag decided
to prohibit the publication of the names of IDF pergorinel that testified
in the furtheér debriefings and in the supplementary responses that were
conducted. by the Cofnmission (as mentioned above), including the
publication of any. identifying details with regards to them, in accordance
with article 11 in the government's decision of June, 14, 2010.2

The Conumission also sought to hear testimonies from non-officials
and fromnon-Israelis in order toyeceive as complete a picture as possible.
On September 12, 2010, the Conymission. sent an invitation to testify,
through the Turkish Embessy in Israel, to the captain of the Mavi Marmara,

Tural Mahmut? Furthermore, an- September 28, 2010, an invitation to

testify was sent to the leader of the IHH, Biilent Yildirim, whmh stated

Q2 See Governnient Resolution of 14.6.2010, supra note 6, at act, 11.

23 Letter fromn Hoshien Gottlieh, Commilssion Coordlnator, o the Turkish Brobassy i Iszael,
titled “The Piblic Commission o Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 20107, no.
2010-96 (dated Sep. 12, 2010).
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that the Commission would be prepared to consider vatious procedural
solutions in order to facilitate the testimonies.® No response was received
to these invitations.”® On October 14, 2010, the Commission contacted the
Turkish Embassy in Israel and requested its help in compiling a list of
witnesses whohad information anid / or relevant documents and who wete
prepared to testify befote the: Commission. Once again, the Contmission
stated that it would be prepared to assist in finding appropriate solutions'
regarding the manner of hearing the testimonies and in order to. facilitate
therm. To-the Commission’s distnay, this request also did not receive a
response,

On October 21, 2010, an invitation was issued to the public, in which
any person who had in his possession relevant information or documents
on the matters within the Commission’s jurisdiction was requested to
submit it to the Commission. Moteover, on October 22, 2010, following a
request.of the British Embassy in Israel to the Israeli Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, British-niationals who took part in the flotilla and expressed their
desire to subnit evidence to the Commission were invited {through their
‘counsel) to submit to the Commission a synopsis of the matters that they
wished to bring before it 50 that a decision could be made with regard to
the need for their testimony. The Commission also proposed, after making
arrangements with the British authorities, to hear these testimonies via
, Videg-conference. The Commission’s proposal rernained unanswered.
1 On Ogctober 22; 2010, the representatives of three Israeli human rights
organizations® and two Istacli nationals who participated In the flotilla
‘were invited to testify, and did so, before the Commission.”

In these circumstances, the Comimission was therefore compelled

to rely mainly on ‘testimonies and reports of Isracli parties (although

- it also had before it statements that were made by some of the flotilla
participants: during the time they were in Israel, and Commission
additional written and video/photographic material that it was able to
obtain), The Commiission examined all of tie testimondes, sources, and
references.critically and analytically, while cross-checking then against

24 Letter from Hoshéa Gotilieh, Commission Coordinator, to the Turkish Embassy In farael,
litled “The Public Commuission fo Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2010°, no,

 2010-111 (dated Sep, 28, 2010). '

25 [t should be noted that in spite of the fact that the two addresses were not gent directly to
the addressces but transferrad through the Turkish Embassy in Isreel, it may be cautiously
assizmed that they reached the addressees, or at the very least the sddressess were made
aware of thelr exjsterice, in light of the broad publicity granted to them by the Turkish

' media,
26 See rotocgl of Meeting 12 of the Copumission {Oct. 13, 2010),
' 27 See Protocol of Meeting 14 of the Commission {Oct. 25, 2010).
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each other and against additional sources of information, insofar as they
were direct and authentic sources as stated in paragraph 10 below.

10 Assembling information. In addition to the testimonies that it heard,
the Commission received asa foresaid many documents for its inspeéction,
which ‘were included in miore than 150 files of exhibits. A list of all
dogurnents that-were submitted to the Commission can be found on the
Conimission's website
‘The Commission also received various s apses on issues relating
to its work (somie of which were prepared at &’:2 Commission’s request);
transcripts -of Government ‘meetings, Cabinet' meetings and inner
Cabiet meetings; summaries of work meetings of various parties in
the Israeli Government, the YDF and other relevant authorities; internal
investigations that were carried outin the IDF (incliding the investigations
carried out by the Navy, thehead of Israel Military ntelligence and the
head of the Operations Division, and a sumunary of the investigation of
the head of the Operations Branch) and additional bodies. Apart from
all of these, the Commission received, inter alia, documentary material
that directly documented the events that occurred on the Aotlla vessels,
and the piannet in which the flotilla participants were treated after IDF
‘servicemen ook conirol-of the vessels, which have a very high level of
ctedibility. Thus, for example; the Commission received thousands of
video and audio clips containing hundreds of hours of audio and video
recordings, which were assembled from various sources, IDF authorities
submitted to the Coramission material from avariety of sources, including
+ video recordings from the security cameras on the Mavi Marniara, the
tesults of recordings made by varlous video devices, video recordings
that were made by ‘cameras. installed in the helmiets of the IDF combat
gers_onne_l who operated on the Mavi Marntara, recordings of radio reports
during the incident and photographs.and video recordings. that were
made by participanis in the flotilla when they were on board the Mavi
Marmara, by personnel from the IDF spokespersoni’s tnit, ete: The Istaeli
Police stibinitted 46 CDs of interrogatlons that it conducted following the
incident, and the Commission also received documentation from media
sources in Israel and abroad; Moreover, the Commission received objecks
and. dociurients that were séized on the Mavi Marmara; material that
was. seized fromi compuiters oni the Mavi Marmara; medical documents
and medical certificates (inchiding documents that were received from
Magen David Adom, doc‘umentslglat'were received from the Abu Kabir
Forensic Instititte, documents that were receivaed from hospitals where
the injured were hospitalized and treated), etc. All of these were reviewed
and examined thoroughly by the Commission and were before it when
preparing this report,

28 The Public Carmnission lo Examine the Maritite Incident of May 31, 2010, avallable &t werw.
turkel-commilitee.gov. il
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The structure of the report
11 The Commission. decitded to divide its report into two parts. The
first part, which is being submitied now, addresses three issues:

a. The firgt-issue concerns the legality of the naval blockade that
was imposed.on the Gaza Strip, piirstiant to the rules of international law
(paragraph 4(a) of the Governunent resolution of Jurie 14, 2010), Within
the franework of this examinition, the Commission examined, the factual
basis for imposing the blockade, including the conditions for maintaining
it, the ‘testrictions on the land crossings into the Gaza Strip and the,
relationship between them and the naval blockade, the hiumanitariati
situation in the Gaza Strip and the guestion 'whethier the blackade s
affecting this situation. Alongside all of these issues, it examined the rules

-ofinternational law that apply in such situations and the mannetin which
they are implemented, in general and in the incident under discussion.

b. The second issue concerns the actions carried ‘out by the IDF in
order to enforce the naval blockade {paragraph 4(b) of the Government
resolution of June 14, 2010). Here; the main focus is a specific and precise
exaniination of all the actions that were taken in order to stop the flotilla
and identifying the fules of international law that apply o activity of this
kind, and the application thereof i the casé before us.

¢. The third issue, which is'related to-the second issue, concems
the actions of the organizers and participarits of the flotilla and their
identities (paragraph 4{c) of the Government resolution of June 14, 2010).?

12 In the gecond part of the report, which will be submitted at a
later point in time, we shall address the question that was presented
in paragraph.5-of the Government resolution of June 14, 2010, namely
whether the méchanisin for examining and investigation complaints and
claims raised in relation to violations of the laws of armed conflict that is
practiced in Israel in general, and as applied with regard t¢ the ¢urrent
incident, is: consistent with the dutiesof the State 6f Israel pursuant to
the rules of intemational Jaw. Moreovet, in the second part of the report
we shall consider additiondl questions thaf arose in the course of the
Commission’s wotk; including questions that have importance from a
domiestic Istaeli perspective,

23 By nature, these three issues aré intertwined and it s cerlafnly possible that throughout
this report, sperific issues will come-up in more than one place. The Commission has
preferred, for the sake of coniverdénce, and in spite of the repetitiveness of this, to seturn
and discuss these issues whera they are relevant..
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Chapter A:
The naval blockade of the Gaza Strip

13 In this chaptei-we shall survey the security situation: that led o
the imposition of the naval blockade on the Gaza Strip, and we shall also
gxantine whether the naval blockade that was imposed on the Gaza Strip
is consistent with the rules of international law. The legal analysis in this

- chapter shall be divided ffto'several patts. In the fixst part of this chapter
we shall present, in brief, the complex factual background concetning
the legal status of the Gaza Strip, the status of Gaza's territorial waters
throughout the period since the caphire of the Gaza Strip in 1967, and the
circumstancés in which the naval blockade of the Gaza Strip was imposed
on January:3, 2009.

The second part of this chapter addresses the question of what
a ‘naval blockade’ is from a conceptual and légal viewpoint, and the
source of the legal rules regulating this method of warfare, including the
niles of customary international humanitarian law and the international
consetisus regarding the ruiles that govern a naval blockade:

The third part addresses the classification of the conflict in the
Gaza Strip: is the armed. conflict between Jorael and the Gaza Strip an
international or non-international one, and is the Gaza Strip a territory
that is occupied by Israel? The fourth and fifth parts examine how and
why the naval blockade was imposed on the Gaza Strip, the alternatives
to imposing the naval blockade that were considered by Israel, the
relationship between the naval blockade and the restrictions imposed by
Israel on September 19, 2007, with regard to the transfer of goods by land,
and whether the measures adopted by Israel are consistent with the rules
of international humanitarian law that govern the imposition of a naval
blockade.

The next three parts address the humanitarian aspects of the naval
blockade on the Gaza Strip. Here we shall examine several confroversial
issues with regard to.the question of imposing the naval blockade and
Israel’s land crossings policy. We will also asses the applicability of
human rights law to the cage athand and the claimn that the naval blockade
imposed on the Gaza Strip by Israel ig a form of collective punishument -

, directed by Israel at the population of the Gaza.

In the final part of this chapter, we shall consider the measures that
individuals or groups are permitted to utilize when they object to the
legality of a hiaval blockade:
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‘General background to the imposition of the
naval blockade on the Gaza Sttip

The status of the Gaza Strip in the years 1967-2010

14 InJune 1967, during the hostilities in the Six Day War, the Gaza
Strip was captired by IDE forces (inaddition to other areas, including East
Jerusalem, the West Bank, the Golan Heights, the Sinai Peninsula). Shortly
thereafter, a military administration was established in the: ‘tetritory’ {i.e.,
the West Bank #nd the Gaza Strip), which operated pursuarit to the laws
of belligerent occupation in intemational Jaw.® This legal perspective
regarding the laws applicable in the territory was adopted by theSupreme
Court singe that time.* It shotld also be mentioned that, following the Six
Day War; Israeli setilement also began in the Gaza Strip.#

15 During the 1990s, political negotiations were held between
the Palestinian Liberation Qrgenization (hereafter: the PLO), as the
representative of the Palestinian people, and the State of Israel, in which
context a declaration of ptinciples was signed between. the parties in
Septembier: 1993 with regard to interim arrangernents for Palestinian self-
government.® On May 4, 1994, the Agreement on the Gaza Strip and
Jericho Area (the Cairo Agreement) was signed ™ Following this, the IDF

30 In fack, two separate military. governments - were established: one in the West Bank and
the second in the Gaza Stip. See HGT 1661705 Hof Azia Regional Municipaiity o, Tsmel
Kresal, 49{2) 481, at para: 3 (2005) [héreinafter matter of Hof Azzal: It should be raentioned
that as patt of these rules, Israel also applied the folrth Géreva Convertion Relative to
the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War from 1949 and the relevant guidellnes
from the regulatioris apperided.to-the fousth Hague Convention, Respecting the Rules
and Custorns of War' on Lind, of 1907 (to which Jsradl js nota party, but whichi already at
the time of the Gaza Strip’s otcupation was considered to teflect elistoinary Intemational
law, see HCY 606/78 Aivuv v, Defeise Minister, 33(2), 113, 120 (1979}, MAG position paper,
supranote T, at 3). In'this context it should be mentfoned that srael has rejected the formal
application of the fgurthGereva Convention fegarding the West Bank aivd the Gaza Stefp.
Asdo the Gaza Strip, this position wag based on vatious claims, chief among them that the
strip was riot part of BEypY's sovéreign territory prior to fts ockupation by Israel (see MAG
pasition paper, sipre note 1, at 3; Melr Shamgar, Legal Corcepls and Problemns of the Lraeli
Military Grverinient + The Initil Stige, fit MILITARY GOVERNMENY (N THE TERRITORIES
ADMINISTERED ¢Y (SRAEL 1967-1980: Tre Lecar. Aseects 13, 15-16 (M, Shamgar ed.,
1982): watter of Hof Azsa, Id., at para. 4.

31 Hof Azzg case, Id. T

32 In 2003, the nuinber of settlers in the Gaza Strip was estimated at 8,000 people; See Hof
Azzi case, Id,, at para. 12 and references there.

33 Declaration of prifciples régarding intetim agreements of self governance with PLO
{signed I '1994) [kérelnafter Osto A Accords], aoniluble at www knesset.gov.dl/process/
docs/oslohtm

M Agreement regarding. Gaza Shrp and Jericho region (signed in 1994) [hereinafter Criro
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forces withdrew from most of the territory of the Gaza Stzip, except for
the Istaeli settlements, the main access routes to these settlements and

the drea of the military installations alang the southernt border of the L
Gaza Strip. Moreover, inost of the administrative responsibility was
transferred ‘to the. altonomois Palestirian entity that was established,
the Palestinian Authority (hereafter: the Palestinian Authority). The

Cairo Agreement also incorporated the Paris Protocol that was sigried a h
short time-earlier {on April29, 1994), which regulated economic telations
between lsrael.and the autoniortous Paléstinian entity.® On September
28, 1995, the parties signed an interir agreement, which incorporated the
previous agreéments sigred between the parties (hereafter: the Interim
Agreement).®

16 In Octaber 2000, violent incidents broke out in the West Bank
and the Gaza Stiip, which were given the.name ‘the Second Intifada’
by the Tsraeli public.(the Palestinians call these ncidents “the Al-Agsa
Intifada’; the official title given to these inicidents by-the Istaeli security
establishment was the ‘Ebb and Tidé Everits'). In these; sidcide attacks
were restarted in cities ifi Israeli territory, and from the beginning of 2001
-and thereafter on an ever increasing scale, mortar and rocket attacks of
various kinds were used to-attack Israel, the Israeli settlements in the
Gaza Strlp, IDP bases in-the Gaza Strip and the botder crossings. Israel
was no:longer able to employ the measures that it had used in the past
(such as admirnistrative: detentions) because of the transfer of control of
significant parts of the: West Bank and the Gaza Strip, and it responded
in various ways, including prolonged large-scale military operations.
Against. this. background, Israel declared that an armied conflict was
taking place betweer it and the Palestinian terrorist organizations, and
that the normative framework to bé applied to the activity of the IDF was

Agreesient], available at www knessct.gov.il fprocess/does/ caira_agréement him

35 Parls protacol signed in April 1934 and included as appendix to Cairo Agreement, supre
note 3, ut 31.

36 Isfacli-Falestinian Intedm Agreement regarding the: West Bank and. the Gaza Strip
(signed in-1993). [hereinatter The futerine Agreement), doailable 4l www.knesset.gov.il/
process/does/heskemblLhtm the legal status of the interim agreernents; patticulady in
all that relates fo the Gaza Sirip, constitutes & complex judicial issue. Aza rule, even in
the current tinie and in spite of Israel’s withdrawal from Gaza (which mude many clauses
of the interim agreement redundant) and the Harias's rise to poveer:(that is, the rise to
pawex of 4 patky. which daes nof recognize the interim agresments); fsrael continues to
apply the instructions of the agreaments to the extenit possible; For a feview of the existing
agreemeitts and the quigstions that arises regarding their status see: Ruth Lapidot, fsrae!
arrd the Palestieans: Soine Lega! Tssues {The Jerusalem Institute for {seael Studies, 2003).
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the principles and rules of the laws of war. This position was adopted by
the Supreme Court in several judgments.”

17 In December 2003, the Prime. Minister at that time, Mr. Ariel
Sharon, announced a plan for the disengagement of the State of [stael
from the Gaza Strip and from the ared of Northi Samaria.® On Septeniber
12,2005, the fast of the IDF forces left the terxitory of the Gaza Strip, and
the IDF Commander in the Gaza Strip signed a declaration terminating
the military. administration that had operated in the territory.® On
Septembet 20, 2005, the Minister of Interior designated five crossings and
Jand tetniinals bétween Israel and the:Gaza Strip-as ‘border stations;” in
accordance with the power given to him pursuant te section 7 of the Entry
into Israel Law, 5712-1952.9 In Noyember 2005, Israel and the Palestinian
Authority signed.a Movement and Access Agreenient, in which Israel
took uponitsell various commitments with regard to the export of goods
from the Gaza Strip ahd the movement of persons, and which arranged
for the operation. of the Rafah and Kefem Shalom border Crossings,
through which the movement: of persons and goods was supposed to

© be fagilitated at the Egyptian border under the supetvision of a third
party.#! In December 2005, the Ministérial National Security Committee
authorized the Minister of Defenseé to decide upon the opening or closing
of the border terminalg#

A map of the Gaza Strip and the Jaid crossings between it and Israel
is attached to this report as annex "B".
18.  Inthe general elections for the Palestinian Legislative Coincil that
took place in January 2006, the Hamas® organization won a majority. The
Hamas organization calls for the establishment of an Islamic law state in

37 See, for example HCJ 9252/00 El Ska w State of Isreel (unpublished, May 23, 2001); HCJ
9263701 Britchn v. Defense Minister, 56(2) 309 (2002); HIC] 3114/02 Bricha v. Defense Minister,
56(3) 11 {2002): HCY 8451702 Almadini 0. Defense Minister, 56(3).30 {2002);"HCJ 4219/(2
Gossin v. Camibtaider of IDF Forces i Gapa Stip; 56(8) 608 (2002); HCJ 7015702 Afuri v.
Commander.of IDF-Farces-iin. West Bk, 56(6) 352 (2002); HICJ 8990/02 Physicians for Husinmn
Rights v, Southern Comowind Geperal, 57(4) 193.(2003); FIC] 4764/04 Physicians for Human
Rights. v.- Connmander of IDF Eorces in Gaza Strip, 58(5) 385 (2004); HCJ 769/02 Public
Cemmtittee Against Torture v, Govermmnent of lerdel, (uripiblishied, Dec. 14; 2006} [hexeinalter
Targeted Killing case].

38 Following the declaration the plari was brought to the Kriessel's approvel; See law
impleménting Disengagement Plan, 5765-2005, LB 1982

35 Manifest Regarding Termination of Military Rule (manifest na, 5) (Gaza Region) 57652005,

40 See'Order Regarding Exitrance to Israel (Horder cross! ngs) (amendiment), 5765-2005.

41 Agreement zegarding movement-and-access (signéd in 2005) [hereinafter Movewient and
Addess Agreeenenit].

42 Resolubon'B/43 of the ministers’ Commission on matters of national security (2005).

43 Initlals of Harakat al-Muqgswamat al-Tslimiyyah, that is, Istamic Resistance Movement.
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the whole of the territory of Mandatory Palestine, docs not recagnize the
existence of the State of Israel and rejects reaching final agreements with
it. Thercfore, Israel called upon Hamas ko accept the three basic conditions
deteriitied by Israel in the Government resolution of February 19, 2006,4
which were approved-in the resolution of the Quartet on the Middle Fast
(an international body comprised of the United States, Russia, the United
Nations and thé Européan Union, which wag established in 2002 at
Madrid in order to oversee the resolution of the Israeli-Palestinian dispute;
hereafter: ‘the Quartet’): (1) recognition of the State of Israel and repeal
of Hamas’s charter; (2) abandoning terforism and dismantling terrorist
infrastructure; (3) fecognition of the agreements and uniderstandings that
Israel reached with the Palestinjans.® Hams refused to do so. In March
2006, a Palestinian government (whose territorial authority includes
both the. Wesk Bank and the Gaza Strip) headed by Hamas was sworn
in* The Israeli Government’s resolittion of April 11, 2006, determined
the general policy of Israel towards the Palestinian Authority following
the establishiment of the. Hamas Governmient. In this context, regarding
the-Gaza.Strip, it was resolved that ‘subject to security considerations,
the crossings from Israel into the Gaza Strip will remialn open i order to
allow the entry of humanitarian afd into the Gaza Strip."”

On Juie 25, 2006, two IDF soldiers were killed, four were injured and
Corporal Gilad Shalit was taken captive after a cell that had penetrated
into Israel by -means of a-finne] that was dug under the border with the
Gaza Strip carried out an attack against an IDF tank. Corporal Shalit is
currently still being held in captivity by the Hamas.*

~ During this period, the firing of fockets and mortars from the Gaza
1 Strip at the towns. of Southem Israel continued, as did attacks on the

44- See Resolution 4705 of 30th Govermnment "The Palestinian System Following Eleclions
in Palestinian-Authorily - lsrael’s Policy-in view of the Swearing in of the Palestinlan
Legislative Council” (Feb. 19, 2006) [hereinafter Governmienf Resolition of 19.2.2006].

45  Joinf Siiitement by Quartet. Engaged In Facilitation of Mideast:Pence Process (ful, 16; 2002),

46 Bed Resolution 4780 of 30th Governmient “[irael’s Policy. towards the Palestinian
Authority upon Establishment of Hainas Governiment® (Apk. 11, 2006) {hereinafter
Government Resolution. of 11.4,2006); The regelution sHpalatad, among other things, that
the Palestinian Authorlty is a terrorist entity hostile to Tsrael and that the State of lsrael
will riok have tes with it. See also governrient rasolutior: of Feb: 19; 2006, This.resolution
determined; among other things, that "in light of the Increasing security thieat, the securlty
examinations at border crossings will inereasé, patticularly at Karni arid Erez, in regards
to people:and workers as well as merchandise: Likewise there will be a continuation of
the gpetation to upgrade the crossing in. the Gaza Strip; in ordér 1o make more efficient
sécurity supervision possible.”

47 I

48 For 2 dewiled analysis, see MAG Position paper, supra nole 1, at 8,
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land crossings into the Gaza Strip. The IDF responded fo these attacks
by using artillery and aerial attacks, and also with operations, some of
whichwere extensive, in the tetritory of the GazaStrip. Consequently, the
activity at the crossings was restricted (sometimes to the point of closing
them entirely) and the {sraeli security authorities were' thexefore required-
to determine priorities for goods entering the Gaza Strip, while givirig
preference to:food products and basic products: In general, the entry of
raw materials for building, industry and agriculttire was also permitted,
but the amount of goods exported from the Gaza Strip was restricted.
This policy was approved by the Supreme Court.®

After.a long period: of tension between the Hamas and the Fatah,
which led, nter alia, to violent incidénts between the operatives of the two
movements and the establishment of a unity government headed by Ismail

‘Haniyeh in March 2007, the Hamas violently seized control of the Gaza
Strip in June 2007.% After the Hamas seized control of Gaza, the rocket
and mortar attacks on Israeli towns increased dramatically. On September
19, 2007, the Ministerial National Security Committee declared Gaza a
‘hostile territory’ and instructed the Security establishment to impose
‘additional restrictions’ in.the civilian-sphere, including with regard to
the passage of goods, the supply of oil and electricity and the movement
of persons to and from the Gaza Strip 3 Following this resolution, which
expressly states that it willbe implemented only after a legal examination
and with the intention of preventing the creation of a humanitarian crisis
in the Gaza Stxip, trade with the Gaza Strip was prohibited, restrictions
were imposed-on the passage of goods between Israel and the Gaza Strip
and the supply of fuels to Gaza was reduced.® It should be noted that
throughout the whole period; efforts were made to continue coordination

49 HCJ 5B41/06 The Assaciation for Civil Rights v, Defense Ministér (unpublished, Mar. 13,
2007). ;

50 Inresponse to this takeover, the Chairman of the Palestinfan Authority, Mahaioud Abbas
{Abu Mazen), annouriced the disassembly of the Palestinian Enity Government on Jun.
15,2007, thé firihg of the Hamax pppointed Prime Minister Istnail Flaniyeh, sied 4 geneeal
state of emergency. In dddition, Abbas appointed Snlam Fayyad, the Finance mindster
in the Unity Governpents as-the Frime Minister of the Pajestinian Government, and
outlawed Hamas! military wing:- '

51 Resclution B/34 of the mifiisters’ commission on-matters of national security “Isract's
policy. regarding Gaza (Military and Civilian)" (Sep. 19,.2007) [hereinafier Ministers’

- Comutission on Nattonal Seeurify Resolution of 199,207},

52 See"Civilian Policy régurding Gaza Strip - Pait A" {sumurdtion by Government Activity
Coordinator in the Territories (COGAT), Aug. 31, 2010) markeqd by the Commission as
exhibit 51 [hereinafier Clvilidn Policy Regarding Grza Sivip - Part Aj}; For a detailed revisw
of Israél’s border crossing policy following the resolution of the ministers’ commission on
maiters of national securily of Sep. 19, 2007, see paras. 67, 68, 73.

30 | Turkel Commission Report

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Stafe Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05330857 Date: 068/25/9013

StateDept004927




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of Stale Casa No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05330857 Date: 06/25/2013

bétween the State of Israel and the Palestinian Authority (as distinct from
the Hamas Governiment), even with regard to the Gaza Strip.%

19 With the assistance of Egyptan mediation, a ceasefire was reached
I Juiste 2008 for a period of six months. This was called a ‘lull’ {Arabic:
tahdis). This Jull collapsed. in Decerriber 2008, when the rocket and mortar
attacks against Israel recommenced. On December 27, 2008, Ysrael began &
laxge-scale:military operation in the Gaza Strip, the ‘Cast Lead” operation,
which lasted twenty-two days and at the end of which Israél withdrew its
forces.from the Gaza Strip and-unilaterally declared a ceasefire

After the operation Cast Lead, on Febrary 18, 2009, the Ministerial
National Security Comniittee’ decided that, infer alia, Israel should
continue the humanitarian effort, in coordihation with the Palestinian
Authority and the relevant Intemational organizations, in order to
provide the immediate and basic needs of the Palestiniatr population,
and to this.end it should allow the activity of the crossings; on a partial
basis, from its territory into the Gaza Sttip.»* Norietheless, in an affidavit
sigried by-the Cabinet sécretary that-was submitted on March 31, 2009,
in the State’s reply to HCJ 2650/09-Mitrael Ltd, v. Minister of Agriculiure
(unpublished, April 1, 2009), it said that this decision was not intended to
change Israel’s fundamental policy towards the Gaza Strip axid to remove
the civilian restrictions imposed. on it in the resolution of September 19,
2007, but mrierely to ‘increase the list of food products whose entry into
the Gaza Strip would be permitted and to give an appropriate response
to the needs of the Palestinian population not involved In: terrorisin.
Following this decision, the variety of products permitted to enter the
Gaza Strip was indeed increased ¥

~ On June 29, 2010, the. Goverrunent announced a change of this
policy and significantly reduced the restrictions on the passage of goods.™

53, Seeexpansion ii paras, 66, 73.

58 ‘Resolution B/84 of ministers” Commlssion on matters of national security “Declaration on
ceass fire concerning Operatién-"Cast Lead"™ {fan. 17, 2009},

35 Resolukion B/90.of ministess” Commission on martiers of national security “Contact with
Epypt Followiing Operation *Cast Lead’; Policy Regarding Responise ko Cortinued Terrorlst
Actlivity from Gaza; Abducted Soldier Gilad Shalit” {Feb. 18, 2009).

56 See the State response.to HC] 2650/09 Mitrael LTD. v. Minister of Agricuiture (still
unpublished, Aug. 22, 2010). _ _ _

57 See "Civilian Follcy Regarding, Gaza Sirip - Part B* (sumimation by Government Activity
Coordinator In the Terrifoties (COGAT), Aug, 31, 2010), at 56, marked by the Comimdssion
as exhibit 51 [hereinalter. Civilian Pollcy Regarding Guza Striy'- Part BY. _

56 SeeResolution' B/44 of ministers’ Commiission on ritatters of sational security "appileation
of border crossing policy inrelation to Gaza Sirip™(lun. 20, 2010; in the resolution the Prime
Minister, Defense Minister, and Forelgn Ministet were authorized to make resolutions - in
accordance with the opinion of the ministers’ Commission on matters of nakional securily
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It was also decided that several alleviating measures would be carried
out without delay, including publishing a list of items that would not be
allowed into the GazaStrip, which would include only weapons, military
equipment and problematic dual-putpose items.™ Any item that did not
-appear on’the aforesaid list would be-allowed into. Gaza. On December
'8; 2010, the Ministerial National Secunty Committee further annouriced
that subject to certain restrictions, a gradual plan for allowing goods to
leave the Gaza Strip for places outside of Israel and thie West Bank would
be approved &

The territorial waters of the Gaza Strip in the years
1967-2010

20 Prior to' the implementation of the disengagement plan and as
long as the State of Israel exercised effective control over the Gaza Strip,
the IDF operated with regard to the territorial waters off the Gaza Strip
with all of the powers, given to.the party in control of a certain territory
with respect to the territorial waters adjoining that tertitory, including
control of the passage of naval transportation for security reasons. In 1968,
the IDF Commander in the Gaza Strip determined that the Gaza Strip
was a closed area, and permission was requn'ed to enter it and depart
from it in any way, including by sea.** It should be noted that duting the
wholeof the aforesaid petiod, Gaza did not have a port that could service
international maritime transport, but only an anchorage for fishing boats:

21 The politlcal agreements with the Palestinians, as discussed,
retained this’ authority with the IDF. These agreements provided, inter
alia, that the State of Israel would have full control and sole security
authority in the territorial waters adjoining the Gaza Strip® and that ships
of the Israel Navy would be permitted to sail in this area, asneeded and

< regarding steps-and specific sétions to enforced a border crossing palicy in refation to the
CGaza Strip; On Jun. 20, 201G the Prime Mirdster's office announced undestaking a series of
stéps in order Lo “prevent- the entrance of wesponry and combal-supporiive materials into
Gaza, and at the sainé time expind the fnanner of dvilian merchandise’s entrance into the
Strip." See statement by. Prline Mirister’s office regarding Ysract's pollcy towards the Gaza
Strip following the seciwity cabinet meeting (Jun. 20, 2010).

59- 4, atpara. 1.

60 Re;o]uuon B/64 of the ministers’ Commission on wattéts of national security (Dec. 8,
2010).

61  Anorder regarding the closing of the region {Gaza Sirip arid North Sinai) {no. 144), 5728-
1968, s arnended in ‘order na. 191 and order no: 847,

62 The secunry arrangements régarding the Gaza Stip's naval space wera. initially
determined in the Cdirg Agreaiteitt, supra note 34; Afterwards they were absorbed inta the
Inferin Agreement, suprq siole 36, in article XIV of appendix 1.
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without restriction, and take all of the necessary steps against shipping
vessels suspected of terrorist activity or illegal activity, including against
ships suspected of smuggling weapons, drugs, etc. ¥ The agreernens also
provided that the issne of international maritime uansport to-anid from the
Gaza Strip wilt be'settled in final arrangement riegotiations between the
parties (negotiations that have not ended). The agreément also provided
that until 4 suitable port is established in the Gaza Strip, foreign ships will
niok be allowed. into an area extending to-a distance of 12 nautical miles
from: the coast, and tha the. etitry of passengers and goods Via the sea
would be possible only through Israelt: ports, pursuant to the rules and
regulations applying to this matter in Israel™ It should be noted that after
the' Interith Agreement was signed, negotiations were begun between
Israel and the Palestinian Authority with regard to the construction of a
portin Gaza:and several steps were even taken towards this goal, but the
project was stopped when the Secorid Intifada broke out in the year.2000.%
Aj stated above, the question of the status and application of the Interim
Agreement today is complex and controversial. Moreover, the Military
Advocate-General's Office pointed out to the Commission the a difficulty
in relying on the Interim Agreement to prevent the entry of ships sailing
~under a foreign ﬂag into the territorial waters of the Giza Strip, since they
are not a party to or bound by the agreement.®

22 OQver the years, several shipping vessels have tijed to reach the
Gaza Strip. by sea. In the last décade; these attempts have become more
frequent, and wéapons have been found on board some of the sl-ups that
were sgized on their way to. the Gaza Strip. Thus, for example, in May
2001 the Santorini left Lebanon for the Gaza Strip. This ship was seized
by the:Israeli navy and brought to Israel. Many weapons were found
on the ship, including anti-tank RPGs {Rocket Propelled Grénades),
Kalashnikov rifes, etc, In May 2003, the Abu Hassan Was seized on its
way from Lebanon to the Gaza Strip. A Katyusha fuse and weapons werg
found on the ship; as well as-a Hezbollah operative. On January 3, 2002,
the Karie A, which set'sail from Iran, was seized with approximately fifty
tons of weapons on board, including rockets, mortars; anti-tank rnissiles,
‘mines, assault rifles, etc., which were intended for the Gaza Strip.

23 When the disengagement plan was implemented and the military
administration’in the Gaza Strip ended, the IDF was of the opinion that,
in consequence, it no longer had the powers that it received pursuant

.

M.

See MAG positign paper, sijprit note 1.
Id.

2HRE
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to the laws of occupation under international law and Istaeli security
legislation. In view of the armed conflict with the Hamas Govermment
in the Gaza Strip, the Military Advocate-General examined the actions of
the IDF in the territorial waters of the Gaza Strip pursuant to the laws of
naval warfare. "

24 In July 2008, various flotillas whose stated destination was the
Gaza Stxip were organized. In view of the fact that the ships concerned
were neutral, the IDF had relatively limited options, which mainly
included the power of visit:and search, a power that can be used, inter aliz,
on-condition that there are reasonable grounds for suspecting that a ship
is'subject to capture.® The IDF expressed the concemn that because of the
need. for this condition to be satisfied, the measures available to the IDE
were insiifficient to prevent attempts to smuggle weapons into the Gaza
Slﬁpfﬂ

25 On August 13, 2008, the Shipping Authority at the Ministry of
Transport published a Notice to Mariners (hereafter: NOTMAR),” cailing
upon shipping to refrain from enteririg the territorial waters off the Gaza
Coast and stating that it would be possible to transport humanitarian
supplies to.Gaza by means of the land crossing, by arrangement with the
Israeli authorlities:

‘The Israel Navy is operating in the maritime zone off the coast

of the Gaza Sirip. In light of the security situation, -all foreign |

vessels are-advised to remain clear of area A in the attached map

Delivery of humanitazian supplies to the civilian population in
the Gaza Strlp is permitted through the land crossings between
Israel and the Gaza Strip, subject to prior coordination with the
Israeli Authorities.”*

67 Id,at3s. _

68  Forexpansion on this:malter see para. 54 below,

69 See MAG position paper, sijpro note 1, at 39, o »

70 Advisory Notice (Maritime Zone off The Coast of Gaza Strip), no. 6/2008 (Aug. 11, 2008),
dvnilable at ‘ermot.gov.it/index phploptianzcom_conténtéeviewsarticleddd=74:1062008
&catid=17:noticetomaringrsiiemid=12; Sae slso protorol of meeting 3 of the Commission
"Defense Minister's opeivdoor testimony” 17 (Aug. 10, 2010) heretnafier Deéfense Mirdsler’s
Open Door Testinony); protacol of meeling 4 of the Commiission "Chief of Saff's open door
testimony™ 13 (Aug. 11, 2010) thereinatter Chief of Staff's Opent Dao? Testimony of 11.8.2010)
These testifhonies.are acceséible to the piblic at the Commission’s website, aunilible ni
hitp:/ fwwwiturkel-committee.gov.il.

71 The'vhap aftached to e notice to mariners, aa well-as a Nsk of exact. coordinates, are
attached as appendix C of this report, In para; 3 of the natice to mariners it is mentioned
that the entry of forelpn vesséls inta the maritime zore adjacent to the Gaza Strip is also
prohibited according to the agreemants between Isragl and the Palestinian Authority,
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The Military Advocate-General expressed his opinion before the
Commission that this constituted a declaration that the maritime zone-
niear the coast of the Gaza Strip was a ‘combat zone” or an ‘exclusion
zorie,’ but hé'said, that there wasa dispute on the quesﬂon of what are the
powers given to a State that declares such'a maritime zone.”

Despite the aforesaid NOTMAR, on August 20, 2008, two yachts set
sail frot Latriaca in Cyprus in the direction of the Gaza Strip, with: forty
passengers onboard (the yachts Liberty and Free Gaza). Priot fo this flotilla,
which the ID¥ gavethename of ‘Winds of Heaven 1, the Navy determined
anoperational planand defined operational possibilities, whichincluding
ransmitting diplomatic messages, and also considered the possibility of
stopping ships before; they sei sail or stopping them without the use of
force during the voyage. Moreover, it considered the possibility of taking
control.of ships or, altermatively, of allowing ships to reach the Gaza Strip,
Pursuant to a decision of the political échiclon (the Prire Minister and the
Minister of Defense),” the yachts were permitted to énter the Gaza Strip.
Fout additional yachts that left Latnaca port on separate occastons during
the months of August-December 2008 were also permitted to enter Gaza.
Iy their festimonies before the Cornmissiort, various parties said ftiat the
reason for allowirig the yachts to pass included, #fer alia, the difficulty
incarrying out searches on these boats, the thought that allowing them to
pass would prévent repeated occurrences of the phenomenon and taking
into account that these were relatively small yachts that according to
intelligence did not present a real danger of carrying weapons.™ Arnother
ship (the. Al Marwa), catrying a Libyan flag, which tried to reach the Gaza
Strip ot Noveinber 29, 2008, turried back after messages were transmitted
to it that it was on course for an area where security activity of the Israeli
Navy wastaking place.”* OnDecember 29, 2008; another yacht (the Dignity)
left Larniaca port with 25 passengers on board ('Winds of Heaven 2), The
Navy ordered the ship to tucn back and not to enter the area adjoining
the Gaza Strip because of the military operatioris in the atea, During the
incident, the yacht hit the bow of a Nayy vessel and was.damaged, but it
made its way without assistance to the port of Beirut in Lebanon.™ The
IDF once again expressed the coricern that in view of the dispute on the
question of the legal ramifications of declaring an area a ‘corbat zone’ or

72 See MAG position pper, supra note 1, at 38-39,

73 See Defense Minister's Open Door Testimony, supra note 70, at 20-21.

74 I, at19-21; Chifef of Staff's Operi Door Testinoriy of 11.6.2010, supra note 70, at 11,
75 Citiefof Staff's Qpent Doar. Testimony of 11.8,2010, supra note 70, at 11

76 I, at 12; Deferigé Minister's Opient Duor Testimony, supra nole 70, st 1227,
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an ‘exclusion zone,’ the NOTMAR did not prowde a complete solution to
the difficulties that arose when the IDF dealt with the various flotillag”

26 In these circumstances, on January 3, 2009, during the operation
Cast Lead, the Minister of Defense ordered a naval blockade off the
coastline of the Gaza Strip up toa: distance of 20 nautical miles from the
coast. The significance of impositig 4 naval blockade accordirig to the
rules ofinternational law s that it allows 4 party ‘to an:armed conflict
to prevent entry into the prohibited area of any vessel that attempts to
breach the blockade (even without it being astablished that the vessel is
assisting texrorist activity). Consequently, a NOTMAR was published in
the followmg terms:

"All mariners are advised that as of 03 ]anuary 2009, 1700 UTC,

Gaza-maritime area is.¢losed fo all maritime traffic and is under

blockade imposed by Israeli Navy until further.notice.

Maritinie Gaza area is enclosed by the following coordinates

f...].7

The notice was published on the IDF web site, on the web site of the
Shipping Authority and the Ministry of Transport, and onseveralstandard
international channiels, suchas NAVTEX; an intermational satellite network
that collects and distribittes notices to vessels worldwide ” Moreover, this
notice was broadcast twice & d'a'y on the emergency channel for maritime
communications to ships that sailed at a distance of up to 300 km from the
Israeli coast.® The Minister of Defense testified before the Commission
that in any case of an-attempt to transport humanitarian supplies by
seq, the vessels would be directed to Ashdod port and the humanitarian
upplies on hoard would, after inspection, be sent to the Gaza Strip via
the land crossings.®

77" ‘SedMAG position pnper, supra riote 1, at 39; See also letter from Brigadier General Avichal
Mandelblit, lhe Military Advacate Genegal, ty Major Genetal Eli Marom, Camunander of
the Navy {Dec. 29; 2008); létter fram Brigadier General Avichai Mandelblit, the Military
Advocate Geperal; to’ Lieutenant General Gabi Ashkenazi, IDF Chief of Staff (Dec, 30,
2009); "Th¢ Pablic Comimission fo Examine. the Maritime. Incident of May 31, 2010"
{position paper by the IDF Military Advocate General - - Appendix, July 2010}, marked
by the Commission as exhibit no, 13 [Hereinafier MAG position paper ~ Appéndix], In these
letters, the Military. Advocate General- underlined the need to declare a naval blockade
that would provide: the navy Wwith the proper tools and authoritfes to deal with the
phenomenor of civilian vesséls wishing to reach the Gaza Strip.

78 Advisary -Notice (Blockade of Gaza Strip), no: 1/2009 (Jar. 3, 2009), available at

. 169203 58.11/EN/index, phpfoption=com_content&viewwarticleguid=124mo120098cati
d=17:noticetomatinersédiémid=12.

7% See HOF Aiswer to Cominission’s Completion Request of 15.11.2010, marked as exhibit 145 of
the Commission’s exhibits.

80 See quznsc Minister's: Open Door Testiwony, supra note 70, at 23.

81 I, at24.
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A map of the territorial waters of the Gaza Strip, including the
blockaded area is attached to this report as ariviex ‘D",

In January 2009, during operation Cast Lead, two ships; the general

cargo.ship Iran Shahed and the Spirit of Humanity, decided not to breach
the. naval blackade as they had intended after nival forces sent them
wamings not to eritét the area ("'Winds of Fleaven 3 and ‘Winds of Heaven
4," respectively).
27 Aftet operation Cast Lead ended, the resolution regarding the
imposition.of a naval blockade remained in force. In his testimony before
the Commission; the Prime Minister Mr. Berjamin Netanyahu confirmed
that theresolution toimpose the naval blockade was not réexamined after
the operation ended

In February 2009, the general cargo ship Tsli, which left the port of
Tripoli in Lebanon, tried fo reachythe Gaza Strip (‘Winds of Heaven 5') with
weapons on board, In June 2009, the vessel Arfon tried to reach the Gaza
Strip with 30 passengers on board {'Winds of Heaven 67). Tt also carried
homanitarian equipment (medications, infant formula, a few toys, some
olive tree saplings, etc.).and bags of cement. The two ships were seized
by the Navy, without the nse of force, aftet they failed to heed warnings
sent to them. The ships were bronght to Ashdod port, proceedings wete
begun to expel the passéngers from Israel and the humanitarian supplies
on board were sent to the Gaza Strip through the United Nations after a
security inspection ® .

82 Sewphotodo] of fneeting 2 of the Conimisslon "Prime Mitister's open door testimony™ 17-
18 {Aug, 9, 20000} thereinalter Prime Minister's Open Door Testimariy).

83 It should also be rioted that i the' period fiom Februacy 2009 to: Janusry 2010 & number
of land convoys allempted to'enter Gaza through its border with Egypt. A land convoy
headed by a British Merber 'of. Farliament which ineluded 3000 parbicipants was
permitted to enter the Stiip tirough-the Rafah crossing: An-additional convoy inéluding
225 participants wag allowed to enter the strip in July 2009 in'a reduced eapacity including
55 activists and 50 vehicles, In Decermber 2009 anather convoy depairted from g niumber of
cotuibries in Burope, Thee Turkishorganizition named the IHH, whase participation n the
Rotilta we will discuss latez, assisted in the transportatfon of pariicipaiits from Turkey fo
ElArish. Aftet the Egypians placed variouslimitations on the conivoy onty about half the
provisions were permitied to enier the Gaza Sttip through the-Rafah'border crosging. In
addition; there were ripting by the participants in the El Arish region aivd confrontations
with the Egyptan security. forces. Disring the conflontations, about 50 participanis of the
eonvoy-were injured, including five'in a critical manner. The leadér of the 1I1H Biilent
Yildirim laler admitted that during the confrontation seven EgypHian soldlérs were taken
Fostage; Seealso: HCC report (Jusi 20, 2016) (al] of the reports received from the 1ICC were
marked by the Cotivndssion and are found In an ‘exhibit marked by the Commisslon as
fotder no, 150; heresfter, all of the exhibits in this binder will be called “IICC repart* and
will be distirignistied by Heir date ofissuance); f1CC report (Jul. 19, 2010).
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The Questions before the Commission

28.  In this part of the reporl, the Commisgion will address the
following questions:
-a. What is.a naval blockade, and what are the legal rules that govern
the imposition and:the actual enfoicement of such a blockade?
b. Did Israel act in accordance with these riles?
¢. What légal obligations does Istael have vis-3-vis the Gaza Strip?
Does the naval blockade have an u:npacf on the humanitarian
sitwation in the.Gaza Sirip that renders it contrary to international
law?
d. Do individuals or groups have a right under international law to
disregard-an established blockade?

The Conformity of the Naval Blockade with
International Law

The legal framework

29.  The termh "blockade” is frequently used to cover diverse and often
complex military. operations.® While the tétm blockade is sometimes
used to refer to land operations, the most cotrumon context in which the
term appears is in naval operations. Historically, the concept differed
only slightly from the concept of a smge’“ hut it should be emiphasized
that a naval blockade is not identical to a siege. Whereas'a siege means the
eitcircling of the enemy’s military foxces; a strategic fortress; or any other
location defended by theenemy, and cutting itoff from supportand supply
Yine$, a naval blockade describes a wider variety of operations.® Thus, for

84 THE CHARTER Or 'THE UNITED NATions: A GoMumkarany; Vol f 755 (Bruna Simma et al,
- etds, Ind ed; 2002)
85 “The.concept of blockade does not assume a technical law-of-war sérise, but rather points
fo mhtary action with a vieiw to sealing off parlicilar coasts or land areas”,
The term "Blockade” is defined in the online Oxford Dictionary (2010)as:

“anact of means of sealing off a place fo prevent goods vt people from entering or leaving:
they voled fa 1ift the blockade of major railway junctions. Origin: late 17th century: from
block +-ade, probably mﬂuencm;l by ambuscad”,

Wolff Heintschel von Heinegg. Naval Blockade, 75 INT'L L. STUD. SER; U.S. NAVAL WaR
GoL. 203,205 (2000).

86 YoRaMm D)N&TEIN THE CONDUCT OF HDETH..IT!ES UNDER THE LAW OF INTERNATIONAL
ARMED GoWFLICT 133 {(2004):
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example, in a current collection of articles published as Naval Blockades
and Seapower Strategies and. Counter—Stmteg:es, 1805-2005 (hereafter Naval
Blockades and Seapovser), it hasbeen rioted that:

‘.. while legal deﬂml-mns of naval blogkades attempt to be
precise, the range of activities that have lustorically fit under this
rubric are vast indeed.”®

Nasal Blockades and Seapower, provides eighteendxamples of maritime
blockade operations including those that were conducted during the two
World Wars, in the conflict between the People’s Republic of China and
the Republic-of China (Taiwari) (in 1949-1958), in. the Korean War (1950-
1953}, diing the, Cuban Missile Crisig (1962), in the Vietnam War, during
the sanctions against. Iraq (1990-2003), etcétera.® Naval blockades were
also’ unposed inter alig; in the Bangladesh Liberation War in 1971; by
Egypt against the city of Eilat and the Gulf of Agaba in 1967, and. on the
Bab él-Mandeb Strait in 1973 during the Tran-Iraq War of 1980-1988,%
and by Israel on the coasts of Lebanon during the Second Lebarion War
(March 2006).% The variety. of examplés and contexts in which naval
blockades were imposed shows:the range of military actions that have
historically been included in'the term ‘naval blockade,” While a strict legal
assessment might challenge whether some of these operations meet the
technical legal requirernents of a ‘blockade’, itis clear that preventing the
enemy from having access to the maritime. area on which the blockade
has been impiosed, and preventing it from being able to receive supplies
and agsistance via that area, was and remaing an integral part of this

87  “Siege warfare is conducted by encircling an-enemy military concentralion, a strateglc
Fortregg-or- any. other Iocation defended by the enemy, cutting it off from channeéls of
suppork and supply”.

L. QOPFENHEIM, INTERMATIONAL LAW: A TREATISE; VoL Il: DiSRUTES, WAH AND
NEUTHALITY 768 (7th ed., H, Lawterpacht ed., 1952):

"Blockade must not ba cdnhis'ed_wi!h'siege, although it may take.place concurrently with
slege

NAEAL BLGCHADES AND BEAPOWER: BTRATEGIES AND COUNTER-ETAATEGIES [BOG-
2005 4(BruceA Elleman &5.CM. Palne eds;, 2006).

88 [dysee also ixexi {details of different subjects in tabik'of contents).

89  Heintschel von Heiiregg, Int'l L Stud, supra note 85, at 211-212.

90 M

91 ANTHONY H. CORDEEMAN, GEORSE SULLIVAN & WiLLiaM D. BULLIVAN, LESSONG
OF THE 2008 ISRAELI-HEZDOLLAH WAR 131-135 (Significant lssues Series- 29(4),
2007 Wolx’E Heintschel von Heinegg,. Blgckade, Max PLanck ENCYCLOPEDIA OF
PuaLic INTERNATIONAL LAw (Ridiger Wolfrim, ed., 2010), ooailible af. wwin,
mpepil.com/subscritier_ article?script=yes&id= /epllIenhiesllaw-9730199231690
€252&r¢enged&mithor=Heintschel -von_Heélnegg: Wolff heroinaftér ~ Heitfschel von
Heiregg, EPIL].  nd & naval blockade was imposed: by Israel on the coasts of Lebanon
during the Second Lebanon War {March 2006).ie dispute sized
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method of warfare® Indeed, impos"mg naval blockades i& ‘a bazic and
fundamental activity of navies.’®

30.  The imposition of a naval biockade may have various purposes.
One ‘purpose is the strategic military one of frustrating giving possitile
aid to the enemy’s military operations or preventing the transport of
‘Weapons or supplies to a military force operating in the country whose
coast is subject to the blockade.* However, a unique aspect of blockade
as:a method of warfare is:that “in view of its impact bnthe comimercial
relations between the hlockaded belligerent and neutrals, a blockade is
regularly considered a method of economic watfare, " As the eminent
Israeli internationial schiolar and foither member of this Commission, the
late' Ambassador Shabtai Rosenne noted, one of ‘the greatest advantages
of a naval blockade is the ability to effectively cripple an enemy’s extérnal
trade;, which 15 a legitimate object in armed conflict.%

The legal sonrces

31 Thelaw of the sea, which is the legal framework that niormally
applies in._tiries of peace, constitutes one of e oldest fields in
international law. Much of the law of the sea is codified by the United
Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea of Décerriber 10, 1982 (hereafter:
UNCLOS).” The State of Jsrael is not a party to this convention, but it
is bound by those provisions that are regarded as having customary
status:” For our purposes, two basic principles in the law of the sea are
of particular importance: (1) sovereignty of the flag State, which méans
that ships on the high seas (L.e. in infernational waters) are subject to the

52 See, for example, U. 5. Navy, THE GOMMANDER'S HANDROOK ON THE Law. GF NAVAL
oreraTions 4-9 (2007); See also Heinfschel van Heitegg, Inf'l L. $lied, supra note 85, ab211.

93 NAVAL BLOGKADES AND SEAFOWER, supra note 87, at xvlil.

94 Bee COMSTANTINE JOHN COLOMBOS, THE INTERNATIONAL LAW OF THE SEA 716717
(1967); orprentEm, stipre note 86, at.769-770,

(who both use the term “straiegic” whien referring to a blockade that forms part of other
military.operations and "commetcial” when the object of the blockade {s to cut off all trade

) from the bloekaded area),

95 Heinlschel van. Heinegg, EPIL, supra.note 91, at para, 1; see also HERSCH LAUTERPACHT,
INTERNATIONAL LAW! COLLECTED PAPERS] VOLUME 5: DISFUTES, WAR AND NEUTRALITY,
rarTs -ary 681 (Elihu Lauterpacht ed., 2004); CoL.oMpos, THE INTERHATIONAL LAW OF
THE S&h, 1.

96  Shabtai Rosenne, Modern Blockade: Some Legnl Aspects, 23 BrivtsH YEAn BooK oF INT'L
Law 345, 347-353 (1948), :

97 United -Mations-Convention on the Law of the Sea, Dec. 10, 1982, 1833 UN.TS. 397
{hereinafler UNCLOSL

98  Transcript of session no. 4 "Testimony of the Military Advocate-General” (August 26,
2010), at 32 [héreinatier Military Advocate-General's testinony],
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jurisdiction of the State whose flag they bear;¥ (2) freedom of the high
seas, which is a fundamental principle in modern law of the sea, meaning,
infer alia,. thatran'shipsnre: entitled to complete freedom of movement in
the high seas. Impeding the freedom of navigation of a ship on the high
seas Is likely to be regarded as a violation of the:sovereignty of the flag
State, -uriless: consent of the flag State has been obtained or if permitted
on-another ground.in international law. This principle applies not only
in tinies of peace, butalso to neutral shippirig in times of armed conflict.

Admittedly; there have been proposals to prohibit use of the sea
for military ‘purposes altogether, but these efforts have encountered
opposition: The laws of the sea do not operate in isolation from pther
tulesand principles of international law,"™ {a particular; the admissibility
and légality of military uses: of the sea derive from the laws of naval
warlare, rules of neutrality, and principles of customary international
law.' Accordingly, in times of armed conflict, the law’ of naval warfare,
as lex'specialis; prevails over the law of the sea,'® In other words, the rules
of international law permit 4 belligerenit Party to restrict the operation of
neutral vessels, with the result that:some of the rights of neutral nations
are set-aside in favor of a State engaged in the armed conflict,'”

32.  The rules that regulate the imposition of a naval blockade are part

of the laws of naval warfare and most of the have the status of customary
| international law. Customary internstional law is an integral part of
! Israeli law.'™ Indeed, attemipts were made in the Paris Declaration of
' 1856 and the London Declaration of 1909 to codify the rules, but the Paris
Declaration was signed by only seven States and the London Declaration
wag nevergiven binditg force; however, it is accepted that the customary

93 A thivd principle of impoitance is the prineiple of territorial vaters, according td which,
unlike the arrangement which appXes to intemational waters, in 'a country’s territoral
waters. vessels are riot nllowed freedom of movement. Thigse waters are under the
jurisdicdlon of the coastal ¢country andit is authorized to prevent vessels from entering it,
excluding places whiere this is réquited within the framéworks of “innocent passage;” that
Is; a passage necessary for quick and efficlent nrrival at the vessel's destination {including
the port of said cousitry) or digtated by, force miajeure or thie vessel’s disfrass, arid which
does not distupt the:peace, order, of seourity of the coastal cotintry. See Military Advocate-
General's testintony, supranote 98, at 33, MAG pesttion piper, siipriryiote 1, 3t33.

100 See theintroduction to.UNCLOS, supra note 97 *matters not regulated by this Convention
centife to be governed by the rules and jprinciples of general internationat law™.

101 Por additional analysisof the law 5e¢ GRORGE P. POLITAKIS, MOBERN ASPECTS OF THE
LAWS OF NAVAL WARFARE AND MARITIME NEUTRALITY (1998); WoL FF HEINTSGHEL YoN
HEWEGS, SEERAIESSRECHT UND NEUTRALITKT 1M SEEKRIEG. (Derlin, 1995).

102 Intérationsi Law. Associafion, Commiites on Maritime Neutality, Firtal Repor? to the
Sixty-Eiglth Conferéine 496-521, at 498 (London 1998).

103 orpENHEIM, supri note B6, at 769-770.

104 Targefed Killing case, supra note 37, at para. 19.
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intermnationai humanitarian law govemmg blockades is largely based on
the London Declaration of 1909.%

The development. of these customary rules over the twentieth
Century saw a number of :disagreements, such as what constituted
“gffectiveness” (a reqm:ementfornavalblockades discugsed below) with
‘regard to the imposition:of'a naval blockade, and whether it is permitted
to operate vessels at a distance from the coast of a party to the conflict,
uitimately being resolved.'™ In the two World Wars, states did not act in
accorédance with the risles appearing in the London Declaration of 1909,
which gave rise to the question whether this method of warfare had
fundamentally changed.'® However, despite the chailenges presented
by such Jarge-scale conflicts, since 1945, States have, in gerieral, taken
care to operat¢ within the limitations of the traditional rules governing
blockades.'”

33.  Atthe end of the twentieth century, it became clear that it was
necessary to update the understanding of the rules governing blockades
because of the dated natuie of the law; the introduction of new technology
and modern methods and means of warfare; the devélopment of the law
governing armed conflict after the Second World War, including the First
Additional Protocol to the Geneva Conventions; and developments in
other ficlds of international law, such.ags the law of the sea, the United
Nations Charter, enviroriimental protecton law, and laws of aerial

105 See Heinlschel voyt Heinegg, Int'f L Stud; stipra note 85, at 205213 for a brief history of the
development of naval blockade Jaws, particularly his statements on page 214

106 “In general States are willing to accept Ihe custoniary character of the principles fatd down
ifi the 1909 London Declaration™
See also, Collections of Decusents an the Law of Armed Conflict, Hagne Cenventions, Geneva
Conventipiis' & Additional Prolacols, Charter of fha United Natfons, UINCLOS, Othier Treatied
and Related Canndinn: Statules (Concerning. geneml land; sen; alr; ne!rrmhfy, humanstarian
law, disqrtanient and: aitti-persininiel Ioid riiies (Ditectorate of Law Training, ed., 2005)
avdileble at. rww.lorees.ge.caljag/publications/ Training-formalion/call_docs_LOAC-
DDCA, 2005_erig pdf,

. Heinischel o Heitegg, Int't L. S!:m‘ stipra note 85, at 205-213.

107 See: Hehitschel von- Heitiegg, EPIL, supra note 1, at 205.209, which explains that the
blockade system rade usé of terms like.“continuous Voyage"” when the ships sailing to a
neutral port could be captured if their final destination was a port under blockade and
long distarice blackades were made possible by technological advaricerrient suchias long
tinge am!lery, submarines; and-tdlitary alrerafts, who have made 2 blackade close to the
enemy's shore irmpossible to supervise, See also, Geoffrey Tul, Naun! Blockads and Ecoimic
Warfare i Hhie Extropean War, 1339:45, in NAvAL BLOCKADES ANO SEAPOWER, Supre note
87, at 123 (regarding the- Navicert cerifiéation systern which was émployed by British
clerks abroad during the second World Wer, which approved cargoes and even whole
ships), Rosenne; Modern Blockade, supra rioke 96, at 347-349,

108 Heintschel von Heiriegg, ikt L, Stiud, supranote 85, at 211212,

109 ., at 211; see also LL5. Niyy, The Commander’s Handbook, supia note 92, at para. 7.7.5.
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warfare."In the years 1988-1994, a group of experts engaged in an attempt
to combine the rules governing the law ofnaval warfare with innovations
and new trends in this field. The result was-the 1994 Sant Remo Manual
_ onInternational Law Applicable to-Armed Conflicts af Sea (hereafter: San
Remd Manual), which offers a detailed current statement of the customary.
intemational law. of naval warfare, including naval blockades. This
manual will serve as the prifiary basig for the legal analysis of the issues
before' the Commission. However, since some of the provisions in the
$an Remo Manual aré regarded as reflecting a progressive development
of the law rather than merely a restatement thereof, the analysis below
is also based ‘on’ other accepted texts and maniials in order to identify
areas whete there may not be complete intérnational consensus on the
San Remo tules.!* However, it should also be noted that the areas of
divergence are limited.
34.  Due to the influential role that the United States Navy plays in
rizval matters, reference will also be made to the 2007 Cominander's
Handbook On The Law-Of Naval Operatioris NWP 1-14M (hereafter: the 11.S.
Navy Commander’s Handbook).'" Manuals of pther states regarding the
law of armed conflict '** and academic texts™ will serve as additional
sources: The 2009 Harvard: Manual on International Lawi Applicable to Air
and Missile Warfare (hereafter: the Harvard Air and Missile Warfare
Manual)™ although it concerns aerial rather than naval blockades

110 See San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea {Louise
Doswvaid-Beck ed.; 1995) [hetelnafter-San Reno Maniia! whett referting to the provisions,
and Sait Remo Explanation wharireferring to the accompanying explanatory text],

111 San Remo:Baplanation {praface).. i i

112 Seealso LS. Napy, The Commander's Handbook, sigrn note 92.

113 For example, The: Munval of The Latw of Anned Conflick: UK Minfstry. of Defence (2004),

' apaifable ot wwwimod.ik/Defencelnternat/ AboutDeferice/ CorpotatePublications/

LegatPublications/LawOfArmedConflict/ fhierelnafter The UK Mumad]; the Cangdian
Law of Armed Couflict af the Operdtional anid Tactival Leiel (20013, evailable at wwiw forces,
geca/jag/publications/Trainng-formation/ LOAC-DDCA 2004-engpdf  [hercinafter
Fhe Canrdian Manual]; THE HanDBOOK OF INTERRATIONAL BUMAsTamian. Law (Dieter
Fletk, ed., 15t ed., 1995 and  Ind ed,, 2008) (the key statemnents in the Handbook of
Interna orall Humanitation Law were pramiulgated for e German Bundeswenr as Joint
Services Regulations (ZDv) 1572 to guide the condhuict of miliiary sperations) [hereinafter
N The German’ Manyal; when referving to its key atatoments; or Infernativital Humnnitarian

Lati Haiilboak, when referring to {ts conumentaries], -

114 CiNsrein, THE CONDUCT-OF HOSTILITIES UNOER THE LAW OF INTERNATIONAL ARMED
CONFLICT, SHpm note BS; LESLIE €. GREEN, THE GONTEMPOMARY. LAW OF ARMED
SoirLicr (2nd ed., 2000); Infernational Humuaitarian Law Handbook, supra note 113, 14,

115 Hamanitariais Policy’ and Conflick Research at Harvard University (HPCR), ‘The
Commentary on the Humanilatian Policy and Confli¢t Research. {HPCR) Manual on
International Law Applicable to -Air and Missile Warfare', (Mar, 2010, availnble at
http:/ /ihlrésearch.org/amw/Commentary%20on%20the% 20HFCR%20Manual. pdf.
{hereinafter- The Air and Missite Warfaze Manuali.
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(even. when enforced by military planes, as in the gperations to enforce
the naval bleckade on: May 31, 2010), also. provides a usefiil benchmark
against which to assess the degree to which a consensus in the applicable
law has developed: over: timie.1é

35 A widely accepted definition of the term ‘blockade’ cani be found
in the U.S. Navy Commarider’s Handbook:
‘Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent véssels and/or
aitcraft-of. all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from entering
or-exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to,
occupied by, or under the control of an enemy nation. ™"

36.  Provisions 93-104 of the San Remo Manual covér. the imposition
and enforcement of a naval blockade. These rules provide that a blockade
should be declared.and notified;"™ such a declaration should specify
the' commencement, ‘duration, location. and extent of the blockade;V?
the blockade must be ‘effective’;*® the force maintaining, the blockade
‘may be stationed. at a*distance from the coast determiried by military
requirernerits;'® the blockade may be. enforced by a combination of
legitimate methods and means of warfare;2 access to the ports and coasts
of nentral States may not be blocked;® the blockade should be applied
impartially to the vessels of all States;* and any cessation, teiriporary
‘lifting, re-establishinent, extension or other alteration of a blockade must
be declared and notified."

The Sann Remo Manual also specifically addresses the humanitarian
aspects of i xmposmg and enforcmg of a-naval blockade, and prohibits the
imposition of a naval blockade if its sole purpose ig 10 starve the civilian

116 M.; The Alr and Missile Warfare Manual represents the "most up to date re-statemeny
of gxisting internationial law applicable to alr’and, missile watfare, 26 elaborated by an
international Group of Expests” of blockade law at least where the ‘use of aircraft is
congemed.:

117 Seealsp LLS: Nirvy, 'The Commander's Handbook, supra note 92, at para. 7.7.1; Heintschel von
Heinegg, EPIL, sipra note 91, at para, 1{which ddopts the same definition).

118 See San Reno Mnnial; supravote 110, at 26, rule 93.

1% Séeld, atrule94.

120 Seéé Id, at fule 95.

121 Seedd,, at rule 96.

122 Seefd., 27, atrule 98,

123 Seeld, atrule99.

124 See i, atrule 10D,

125 Seeld., atrufe101.
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population, or prevent objects essential for its survival. Further, the
imiposition of a naval blockade ia also prohibited if the damage to the
civiltan population is, or may be expected ia be, excessive in relation to
‘the concreteand directmilitary advantage anticipated from theblockade,'?
‘This is the prificiple of ‘proportionality.” Moreover, subject to certain
«conditions, the blockdding party must provide free passage of foodstuffs
and other essential objects if the civilian population is: inadequately
provided with these supplies ™ Similarly, subject to the right of the
blockading party to-prescribe the technical artangements, the passage
‘of medical supplies to the civilian population or the wounded and sick
members of enemy forces must be permitted.”

As:nofed, the rules thaf concern the imposition and enforcement of
anaval blockade apply during armed conflict; Therefore, the analysis will
now hurn to examine the question of the nature of the conflict in the Gaza
Strip, because this détermination impacts the assessment of the naval
blockade imposed by Israel.

The conflict in the Gaza Strip

37.  International law distinguishes between two types of armed
conflict: intemational armed conflictand non-international armed conflict.
In the traditional-formal sense, international humanitarian law cIassxhed
“international armed conflict as war between States.’® According to
this; approach, a conflict between a State and a non-state actor would
be regarded 4s a non-intérnational armed ‘condlict. Flowever, in reality,
the complexities of mode warfare pose a significant challenge when
clagsifying an armed conflict, since not all armed conflicts can be easily
classified within the framework of the traditional definition.

38..  Theimportance of classifying the armed conflictbetween Israeland
the Hamas is a consequence of the fact that the international community
is more wﬂlmg to accept the xmposmon of a naval blockade within the

126 Seeld., atvule 102(a).

127 Seeld. at rule 102(b),

128 See Id., at rule 103,

129 Sedld., atrule104.

130 Se¢ GREEN, THE CANTEMPORARY LAW OF ARMED GONFLICT, supra note 114, at 54, where,

i meritlois that the ¢lassic approach is.that international law deals only with relations

i between countries. As o result of this, the conflict berivesn countries is what this’ laiw
regula’tes.
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framework of an international axred conflict.. This is likely the result of
two intérrelated factors. First, the rules govérning naval blockades were
developed within the framework. of international confhcts, whereas,
traditionally, States have demonstrated a reluctance to apply internaticnal
hymanitarian faw to interrial disputes. Second, thé imposition of a naval
blockade iisually causes a disruption of trade with patties that ate neutral
t0 the conflict; an activity usually carried out by States or with their
approval, “Therefore; States have a particular interest in the issue of when
and how naval blockades are instituted and enforced.

39.  Naval blockades have, nevertheless, been 1mposed in non-
international armed conflicts (which is not surprising in view of the large
numiber of internal armed conflicts relative to the number of international
armed coniflicts. throughout hlstory) In certain situatiofis, States have
mposed a military o¢ economic blockade against an énemy that is not a
de jure government.® Historically, in order for the tules of international
humanitarian law that govern intemational armed conflicts to apply to
norrinternational. enes,: recogmfxon of a ‘belligerency” was required of
other States. Such recogaition was Hinited to circimstances in which the
level of the conflicthas reached ‘a certain thréshold of intensity manifésting
asituation similar to that of a war between states.” However, it should be
noted that this has become less important and today is almost irrelevant.®

40.  -TheMilitary Advocate-General, Major-General AvichaiMandeiblit,
: testified before the Commission'on the difficulty of classifying the conflict
between Tsrael.and the Hamas terrorist organization. In his testimony,

131 Seealsa Prosecutor v. Tadle, Appeals Judgient, No, [T-04-1-A, para. 84 (July 15, 1999):
{1]t is indispiitable that anarmed conflict is internatfonal §f it takes place between bwa ar

iore States’,
See' also- Legal Conisequtiices Of The Constritction Of A Wall dn. The -Occupled Palestinian
Tervitory; LC T, (Tul., 2004) at 56, para. 139, ponilable af www.ic<cij.org /igwww/idocket/
J'mwpf Imwpfeame: htm [hiereinaf ter. the Wall case] (where the ICT indicated that the
exercise of inherent right o self-defense under s. 51 of the United Mations Chatter is only
available where there hasBeen ai attack by one Slale against anather Stale)
‘The most fimous example of sueh a blockade was the blockade plaged by Union states on
the Confederate states duritig the Aresican Civil War between 1861-1865. In the period
following the Second World War, we may name the conflict of the “natonilists” wilh the
People’s Republic: of China (1949:1958). See e.g, CotoMdos, INTERNATIONAL Law or
THE Gan; sipranote 94, at 714-730 (for refirences to historical examples of blockades by
and against insirgents) and David C. Surdam, The Union Nevy's Blockade Re-vansidered, in
NAVAL OLOCKADES AND SEAPOWER,SHPM naote 87, at 61,

132 ANTHONY GULLEN, THE. CONGEPT OF NON-INTERNATIONAL ARMED GONFLICY IN

| INTERNATIONAL HUMAN(TAREAN Law 17 (2010),

133 The UK Maniral, supre note 113, at 362; See also CULLEN, sEpYd note 132, 4 2223,

134 Military Advocate-Genieral's tesfiinony, sufira nate 98, at 11-19; Israel and several other States
have recognized. the Hamas as 4 terrosist ofganization: these include the United States
{wwiv.state.gov/e/ct/rls/other/des/ 123085 htm), Canada  (www publicsafety.ge.ca/
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he said that after Operation Cast Lead, Israel adopled the position that
it is bound by the laws of war that apply to both international armed
conflict and norisinternational armeéd conflict™™ The Military Advocate
stated that, in practi¢e, the TDE therefore focuses on compliance with the
risles of international hurisnitarian law.'%

41, Whileamied conflicts with ion-State parties have been recognized i
asanon-internationalincharacter,"” thisapproach hasnot been universally

adopted. For exarple; there is a consensus that the conflict between the

State of Israel and the Hamas iy an interational armed conflict, alfhough

the reasons that have fed various parties to this conclusion vary, as we

shall see below.

Indeed, in HCJ] 769/02. Public Commitiee Against Torture v
Government [2006] (4} Tak5C 3958; [2006] (2) IsrLR 459 (hereafter: the
Targeted Killings cage), the Suprerne Coutt of Israel adopted Hie position
thatinternational hurnanitarian law applies to an armed conflict between
Israel and terrorist ‘organizations not merely in an area that is subject
to occupahon, but ‘in any:case of an-armed conflict of an international
character - in other words, one that crosses the bordets of the state -
whetier or not the place in which:the armed. conflict occurs is subject to
-a belligerent: occupahon."” The Istael Supreme Court has implemented
this-approach cons:stentiy in several judgments that addressed the issue
of entering Isracl via the crossings between it and the Gaza Strip’™ In
additional judgments, the Israel Supreme Court hias gone on to hold that
although the Gaza Strip is no longer occupied,™ it is subject. to ‘those
provisiors ifi-the Powrth Geneva Convention and the First Additionial
Protocol that reflect customary interational law and apply only where
there is an intemational armed conflict4

prg/na/le/cleengaspx#iiamas) and the Buropean Union, (http://eur-lex.europa.eu/
LexUriServ/LexUriServ, do?url=0]:1:2010:178:0028:0030:EN:PDE)..

135 Military Advocate-General's testiiiony, supra note 98, at 91,

136 M., at 7894

137 SeeHamdmr v, Rumnsfeld, 548 1.5, 557 (2006).

138 See Targeted Killing case, supm note 37, 3t paras. 18.

139 See for exaaple HCJ 201709, 248709 Phgsicians for Humar Riglits v. Prime. Minister {still
unpublished: Jan. 19, 2009} 10; para. 14
"The riorimative arvangements that govem the arried conflict between [he State of lsrael
and. the Hamas organization are complex. They revolve around the international laws
relating o an: Intertiational armed conflict. Admitiedly, tha classificatton of the armed
conflict butween the state of Israeland the Hamas organization as an international conflict
raisgs several difficufties Bot in a hostof judgments we have regarded this conflict as an

. internatierial coriffict.”

140 See for example HCY 9132/07 Al-Bassipsini v. Priiee Minister (unpublishéd; Jan. 30, 2008)
[Rereiraftar Al-Bassiouni cise], at para. 12

141 Id., atparas. 12-15.
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The Supremie Court of Israel is not alone in classifying the conflict
between Tsrael and the Hamas as an international armed conflict. Various
United Nations organizations, hitnanitarian organizations, and liuman
tights organizations also classify the conflict between Israel and the Hamas
as an international armed:conflict, although the reasons that led them fo

this conclusion differ. This classification is largely a result of the position
of these organizations that the Gaza'Strip is, even today and despite
Israel's disengagement from the Gaza Strip in2005; a tertitory accupied by
Israel 2 No doubt consistent with then' humanitarian focus; the approach
that Israel is an ocqupying power vis-3-vis the Gaza Strip optimizes-the
argurnent that the provisions of & Fourth Geneva Convention regarding
the protection of civilians in a- territory that is subject to a belligerént
pccupation apply to-the population of Gaza. Since an occupation can only
exist within the context of an international armed conflict, the position
that the Gaza Strip is sub;ect to an occupation necessarily leads to the
conclusion that the conflict in the Gaza Strip is international in character.*

42.  However,evenif theconflickin the Gaza Strip were tobe classified
as a non-international armed conflict, it would appear that the rules of
international humanitarian law regarding naval blockades would still be
apphcablegwen the declivie of the doctrine of ‘recognition of belligerency;¥
the increasing acceptance by courts and tibunals to apply, international

142 Sée’ Muman Rights. Wald: [ Lost Everything, oveilabls of www.hrworg/en/
réports /2010/05/13/3-lost everykhjng (2010)¢ at‘li?

143 YoiAM DINSTEIN, THE INTERNATIONAL LAW. OF DELLIGERENT DCCUPATION 276-280
{2009y
Amiiesty Interiiational: Occupied Paléstinian Territories: The Conflict-int Gazn: A Bricfing on
Applicable Law, Investigntons,msd Accontabifity, availabléabwwwarmnesh worg/en/library/
asset/MDE15 00772009/ en /4c407b40 e840 11dd-0917-ed7 17625078/ mide 1 5007200980,
hieal#1 2009).
Human Rights Watch: Tsraell "Digengagément’ Will Not End Gaza Qecupation, available ot
wwww i, org/‘engl:sh/dqcslzoml 10/29/15:11339577 T {2004).
ICRC: ‘Dignity Denled fn the Paléstiniay Territories, aviilable at www.icre.org/web feng/
siteenglnst/himlatl/palestire-repori-131207 (2007).
United Nations:: Report of the §pecinl Rapporteny-on: Mie sitidion. of human righis i the
Palestinian fervilories octupied since 1967, auailable of bip:/ /daccess-déds-ny.on.org/doc/
UNDOC/GEN/NI0/498/94/ PDF/ 1049894 pd POpenElarment (2010).
Gishia: Disgngnged Ocelipiers: The chal Staties of Gozit, avatloble at www gisha.org /UserFiles/
File/Report#20for%:20the20website. pof (2010),
BTselem: Israel’s Obligations According to International Lave, avdilable at veww.biselem,
org/hebrew/ gaza__st'np/ israels_obligations:asp,
Se Infekitationnl Humayiitariai Lavo Handboak, supra niote 113, at 272:

144, "The law of belisgerent cccupation applies in international armad conflict only”,
Ste BlsODINSTEIN, THE INTERNATIONAL UAW OF BELLIGERENT OSCOPATION, Supranole
14%,at33.
See The LK Manual, supra note 113, at 362; See also GuLLen, dipre note 132, at 22-23.
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humanitarian law to internal conflicts;' the consensus that is developing
among Jegal experts regarding customary law: rules applicable in non-
interiational . conflict;'s ‘and "the difficulty previotsly discussed in
clagsifying contemporary. armed conflicts. In light of the aforesaid, it is
likely there will be a willingness on the: part of courts and other bodies
to recognize that the rules governing the imposition and enforcernent of
anaval blockade are applicable to nofsinternatiorial armed. conflicts.” A
step in this direction was taken in the San:Reino Manual; whiere it is stated
that a!though its provisions were intended to apply mainly in sitiations
-of initernational armed conflicts at sea, this fact was not stated expressly
in order not to deter the, apphcahen of the manual’s’ provisions to non-
international armed conflicts, insofar as they involve naval warfare:

“However, it should be noted that although the provisions of

‘this Manual are primarily meant to apply o international armed

conﬂxct atsea, this has intentionally not geen expressly indicated

in‘paragraph’1 in order not to' dissuade the implementation of

these rules in non-nternational armed conflicts involving naval

operations:"i¢

- 43, In light of this. complex reality and in. the- absence of a general
consensus under intemational law regarding the classification of such
-conflicts, theapproach présented by the Military Ad vocate-General before
the Commission; that Israel is bound by interational humanitarian law
regardless of the classification of the conflict, Is an understandable and
practically focused one, Jt should also be noted that the imposition of
the naval blockade on the.Gaza Strip is not the first case in which Israel
has. confronted these difficulties, For example, while the international
community had difficulty i cIassl.fymg the armed conflict betvween Israel
and the Hezbollah organization in Lebanon in 2006, that did not stop
recognition of the naval blockade that Isracl imposed during that conflict.

44, In view of the aforesaid, the Comunission has examined the
conditions for imposing and enforcing the naval blockade on the Gaza
Strip on the basis of the assumption ttiat the conflict between Israel and

145 See, for example, Progeeator v, Tadic, supra note 130, at paras. 65-142.

146 CUSTOMARY INTHANATIONAL HUMANITARIAN Law. (Jean-Marie Henckaerts d.—. Louise
Doswald-Beck eds., 2005).

147 This shiould ot be interprated ifi any: way 1o-suggest that the historle docirine of
“belligerency” is applicable or apprapriaty in this case. Ashas been noted, itis a dactrine
widely recagnized to have fallen into disuse. ‘Furiher, the application of such 4 doctiine
implies a level of Ieglﬂmacy that shouldnot be applied to a recognized terrorist entity.

148 Sce Sart Remo Explanation, suvka note 110, at 73,

349 moam LumeLL, EXTRATERRITORIAL UsE.oF FORCE AGAINST NON-STATE ACTORS 250~
254(2010).
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Haritas - is-international in character. However, it should be noted that
given the degree of de facto coritrol that the Hamag exercises over the
(Gaza Strip; the 51gmf1cant secunty threat thatit presents; and its attempts
to import weapons, anmunition and other military supplies, inter alia,
by sea; the Commission would have considered applying the rules
goveming the imposition and enforcement of a naval blockade even if the
conflict between Israel and the Gaza Strip-had been classified as a non-
international armed conflict.

Is the Gaza:Strip an occupied territory?

45.  In Al-Bassiount v. Prime Minister, the Supreme Court of Isrdel
held that since the disengagement in 2005, Israel does not have “effective
control’ over the Gaza Strip. Because of the importance of this conclusion,
the acmal wording of the Supreme Court is cited below:
. since September 2005 Isrdel no-loriger has-effective conirol

over what happens in the Gaze Stiip. Military. rule that applied

in the past in this territory came to aneénd by a decision of the

government, and Israeli soldiers are no longer stationied. in the

territory on a permanent basis, nor are they in charge of what

happens-there. In these citcumstances, the State of Israel does

not have a general duty to ensure the welfare of the residents

of the Gaza Stiip or to maintain public order in the Gaza Strip

according to the laws of belhgerent occupation in iriternational

law. Neither does Israel have any effective capability, in its

present position, of enforcirg order and managing civilian life

in the.Gaza Strip,*

In its. judgment, the Supreme Court further held that the main
obligations imposed on the State of Israel vis-d-vis the inhabitants of the
Gaza Strip derive from the existence of an armed conflict between Israel.
and. the Hamas orgamzatxon, ‘the degree of control exercised by the State
of [srael over the border:crossings between it and the Gaza Stilp; and the
relationship of dependency that was created - at least in certain spheres,
such as the electricity supply to the Gaza Strip - during the long period
of military. rule ‘i the Gaza Strip."®! The court also held, in- accordance
willi the position presenited by the State, that Israel is subject to the rules
of customary infernational law that apply in armed conflict, including
the requiremenit to permniit the passage of ‘food and: basic humanitarian
supph_es necessary for the survival of the civilian population.”?

150 Al-Bassiouni case, supra note 140, at para, 12.
151 1,
152 -Id.,at para, 14,
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As. previously noted, nolwithstanding the. Supteme Court's
holding, several organizations have adoptéd the position that despite the
disengagerment, the Gaza Strip contifines to be under Tsraeli oceupation,
This position is mainly based on the claim that although Israelno longer
hag a permanent military presence fn.the Gaza strip; Israel’s control of
several areas that effect the fabzic of life in the Gaza Strip amiount to
‘effective control” of the Gaza Strip. For example, the organization Giska -
Legal Center for Freedom of Movement presented before the Commission
its:position that Tsrael effectively continues to control the Gaza Strip for
six reasons: (1) Israel controls movement to and from the Gaza Strip via
land crossings; (ii) Istael exercises complete conitrol over Gaza's dirspace
and texritorial waters; (iii) Israel controls movement within Gaza through
periodic incursions and a "no-go zone”; (iv) Jsrael controls the Palestinian
population registry; (v) Israel exercises control over Gaza's tax system and
fiscal policy; (vi) Israel exercises. control over- the Palestinian ‘Authority
and its-ability to provide services 1o Gaza residents.”® A similar position
was also presented by the representatives of the B'Tselem organization in
their testimony before the Cornmissioh, ™
46.  Indeed, academics have diverging opinions as to whether Israel
has ‘effective control’ over the Gaza Stiip.” Certainly, the adoption of
the ‘position that Israel continues t6 be an occupying power in the Gaza
strip requires.an unjustifiably flexible and novel interpretation of the
term ‘effective control” Tn, other words, this interpretation would have to
be based on the understanding that two different opposing powers can
exercise ‘effective control’ in a‘territory at.the same time: the Hamas arid
Israel. Moreovet, the'intetprétation of theterm ‘effective control’ needs to
be assessed against the currently accepted approach In international law
that ‘occupation’ does not merely require military forces to be stationed

153 Disengnged Occupiers, supra tiote 142,

154" Transeript of session no, 12 "Testimony of member of the B'Tselem organization” (Jossica
Montel & Eyal Hateoveny} (Oct. 13, 2016), at 2
“Thete is & dispute regarding the queston of whether Gazs is still subject to Iscaeli
aceupation. There Is nio doubt:Lhat Israel daes not currently have effective control jn all
aspects of Hfe in the Gaza Stely; but if has such contrel in & few vty central areas; in the
aif space, the maritime space; the population registry, the entry and exit of people and of
cargo™ )

153 For examples of the viewpoints of some leading Iirseli scholars, ste DivsTeIN,
BELLIGERENT QECUPATION, SUPH note 142, at 12-30 {reaching the concliion that Ferael
eonlinues to be an occupying force); Yaval Shany, Farawiny, So Close: The Legal Status of Gaza
After Israsl's Disengagenient 8 Y. B. INvL. Hum. Law 369 (2005) (reaching the conclusion
that the disengagément Plan fed 1o the ransfer of effective control of the entire Gaza Strip
to the Palestirian Authority).
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in a certain territory, but also: that the occupying power performs the
functions of an existing governiment.®

Indeed, during the long period that Israel had the Gaza Strip under
effective control, the Gaza Strip did becomi dependent on Israel incertain
sphetes, Howevet, as the Sipreme Court of Tsrael held in Al-Bassioyni
v: Printe Minister, this. dependency is insufficient to establish ‘effective
conh'ol Tt should also be stated, inter.alia, that insofar as.the conclusion
that Yerael is an oceupying power Ini the Gaza Strip:derives from Jsrael’s
control of the airspace of the Gaza Strip; there is no support in international
law for the proposition that the control of ajrspace ameunls to-‘effective
control:"¥ With regard to land access tothe Gaza Strip; it should be noted
that the Gaza Strip also has a border crossing with Egypt (the Rafah
crossing), even though Egypt, for its.own reasons, also exercises control
of the' crossing: fromits-territory into the Gaza Strip® Simxlarly, the
impositiont of a naval blackade does not create a situation in which the
laws of occupation come into effect. Itshould be emphasxzed that the very
lack of “control’ over the land territory in the Gaza Strip in the traditional
serise of this term is what makes an external naval blockade necessary to
control access to:and egress from that territory. As a comiparison, a land
siege does not automatically result in the besieged city being held under
occupation. States; and particularly thoge that might employ navies or
alr forces, either urulaterally or within Hie framework of a coalitior, will
likely be wary of accepting the argument thiat the mere imposition of a
naval blockade ot-influence over events on the shore of a State by the use
of military power automatically creates a situation of occupation.

If Tsrael did indeed have effective control over the Gaza Strip, then it
would haveé the powet to dct as the authority resporisible for maintaining
orderin thé Gaza Strip: The Israchi forces would then be able to wait on
the coast of the Gaza Strip and intercept the vessels there. In practice,
however, Israel does not control the coast of the Gaza Strip. This area is
under the ‘effective contiol’ of the Hamas. The lack of effective control

156 See Case, Cou«rnrngAr:nai Activities On The Territory Of The Cargo, 1.C.J., 231(2005) munilable
abwww i o:g!docketf files /116710455, pd! {where it was held the physical statiening
of troops at an aupott and the existence of “administrative control” was not sufficient to
éstablish oecupation in the génse of atl:ide 4% of the Hajue Regulations).

157 Bﬂnkovic v, Belgim geid OH!_E)_’S_ _1_231 LR: 94 {2001) (where NATO's contmi aver thgairspace
basis for argujng “cffective ';ontml"l

158 It should be niotéd that at a later'stage, we will maintain that the fact that there is an-

_additional border crossing between Egypt and. the Gaza Strip doea not diminish Israel’s
huyrianitaran résponsibility for the situation in the Gaza Sirip. Héve, we are dealing witha
questitn of a diifetent nature; namely the question of “effective contral” of the Gaza Strip.
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over the Gaza Strip, including the ability to impose order there, and the
securily threat that the Hamas presents to the naval forces- operahng
near the coast of the Gaza Strip, clearly indicate the underlying logic
of interriational law thidt petmits the enforcement of ‘a naval blockade
at some distance from. the. coast, Similarly, it is difficult'to see how the
Gaza situation différs in a praclical sense from Lebanon in, 2006, when
the blockadmg Israel warship INS Hanit was hit by a missile launched
by Hezbollah from the Lebariese coast’® In light of the fact that the
territorial waters of the Gaza Strip contain mainly small vessels that are
capable of moving at high speeds, Israel’s naval forces are confronted
with a significant risk,'® Examples'such as the attack on the LS5 Cole in.
2000 in Yemen and the attack on the French supertanker Limburg in 2002
highlight both the threat presented by small vessels and the difficulty In
stopping them, ™

47.  An examination of fthe arguments, both individually and
cumulabively, therefore leads to the conclusion that Israel does not have
‘effective ‘contiol’ in the Gaza Strip. Therefore, in: alignment with the
Supreme Court of Tsrael, the Commission takes the position that Israel's
effective conirol of the Gaza Strip ended when the disengagement was
completed in 2005.

Israel’s imposition of the naval blockade

ase of the de

48.  According to the testimonies before the Comumission, the
Govemmenit of Istael imposed the naval blockade on the Gaza Stip
on January 3, 2009, -for military-security reasons, which focused on
preventing weapons, ammunition, military supplies, terrorists and
money from entefing the: Gaza Strip, and the need to prevent the
departure of terrorists, vessels filled with explosives and other maritime
borne threats from Gaza.'® The various witnesses emphasized the large
amountt of weapons that ¢ari be smuggled by sea in one single operation

159 See conoEsMan ET AL, siprd note 91, at 131135,

160 Chisf of Staff's Open Door Testimony of 11.8.2010, supra note 70, at 34-35.

161 See Thad Allén, FErlend or Eoe?: Tough to Tel, 134 ProverDINGs MAGAZINE (2008), muailable
at-www.usni.org/ magazines/proceedings/2008:10/ fifend-or-foe-tough-telt,

162 Chief of. Smﬁ"s Open Door Testimony of